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Message from the Chairman

In 2017, BOI Sri Lanka stepped into the 40™ year of sustainable growth
as the national investment promotions agency, facilitating over 2,500
Enterprises at various stages of the project cycles. By the end of 2017, BOI
has attracted over USD 15 billion cumulative Foreign Direct Investment
through its investment project which amounted to over 84% of country’s
industrial exports.

BOI continues to drive its strategy in attracting Foreign Direct Investment
and in 2017, one of the major tasks was formulating the BOI work plan in
line with country’s national development plan to enhance the Foreign Direct Investment (FDI)
levels. BOI has been placing right strategies focussed on promoting investments in a transparent

and a responsive manner that would contribute to a significant growth of the economy.

Apart from various initiatives taken by the BOI, with the Government initiatives to establish
high powered committees, BOI was able to address challenges and issues that prevented or
delayed the projects taking off the grounds swiftly. In addition to identifying new strategies to
refocus investment promotion in targeted sectors and countries, BOI fervently encourages and
facilitates existing firms to link with Global Value Chains. BOI has taken proactive initiatives to
develop new Export Processing Zones in line with government’s policy initiatives to identify

lands for development of new Economic Zones.

With all these efforts in the backdrop, BOI was able to achieve the highest ever FDI level in 2017
with a recorded figure over US$ 1.7 billion. This is more than a two fold increase compared to
the figure of US$ 801 million achieved in 2016.

[am pleased that [ have been able to steer the BOl in the right direction under the guidance of H.E.
the President, Hon. Prime Minister, Hon. Minister of Development Strategies and International
Trade, Hon. State Minister of International Trade along with the cooperation from the Board of
Directors and the staff of BOI.

[ wish to appreciate to the enterprises that have placed their confidence in Sri Lanka and the
line Agencies who joined with our team at BOI Sri Lanka for their commitment in achieving
these numbers.

[ commend the BOI Staff and the Board of BOI Sri Lanka for their commitment in implementing

Government’s investment oriented policy and export driven growth.



Message from the Director General

The BOI, which stepped into its 40" year of contributing to the national
economy, will continue to play a central role in achieving Government’s
economic objective of stronger economic growth, creation of employment
and enhancing exports, via a significant increase in Foreign Direct
Investment (FDI).

The Board of Investment of Sri Lanka (BOI) had a strong year 2017,
achieving the highest level of FDI. This is a reflection of the confidence of

investor community with the government policies.

In 2017, BOI has taken several initiatives to reduce the time taken for the approval process and to
resolve investorissuesinan efficient manner. The Project Screening Committee (PSC) immediately
screens all investment applications jointly with cross functional departments to grant approvals
and resolve all operational issues faced by Investors in an expeditious manner.

Being the investment facilitator, BOI has taken an initiative to improve service delivery by
introducing Single Window Investment Facilitation Taskforce (SWIFT) which will act as a
facilitatory arm of investment approvals process providing necessary linkages to the relevant
line agencies in order to expedite the project approving process through a function based virtual
platform.

BOI has established Re-investment Working Group to assit existing investors to expand, re-invest
and upgrade their businesses by resolving their issues if any and using them as ambassadors to
target new investors in export manufacturing and services sectors.

The BOI will invest in our employees to ensure they are “future ready” with the necessary skills to
attract and facilitate top tier foreign and local investors. The Investment Promotion Certification
Programme conducted by World Bank and the Problem Driven Iterative Adaptation (PDIA)
programme conducted by the Center for International Development (CID) of Harvard Univesity
helped to enhance the investment promotion and facilitation competencies of the BOI staff.

The BOI has recruited the highest qualified young garduates to run the organization in future and
to improve the communication skills of the staff, the training programmes have been conducted
by Toastmasters International - Colombo Toastmesters.

As we look to the future, the BOI is determined to attract advanced technology and value creation
which are essential for the long journey towards attaining first world economic status. We need
to do this while retaining our core values, including a sustainable environment.

[ would like to thank the Chairman and the Board of Directors for their excellent leadership and
directives which has led in achieving outstanding performances in 2017 and special tribute to the
BOI staff for their dedication over the past years in contributing to the BOI's significant growth.

Special thanks are due for our investors for their continued confidence, support and trust placed
on us and BOI is determined to go an extra mile to extend its unstinted support to the investors.
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Vision

“To make Sri Lanka the most
preferred destination for Sustainable
investment in Asia”

Mission

“BOI will work in a positive and
speedy manner to fulfil

Sri Lanka’s potential to attract
and retain quality investment that
leads to an enhanced export base,
and brings more and better jobs,
enhanced knowledge and skills
through new technologies and
innovations.”



BOI Profile

The Board of Investment of Sri Lanka (BOI), the country’s apex agency for investment promotion and
facilitation was incorporated as a statutory body in 1978 as Greater Colombo Economic Commission
(GCEC). The authority of GCEC was confined to the specific areas demarcated as Export Processing
Zones which concessions and other facilities were provided. These Zones were initially established in
Katunayake and Biyagama. The GCEC was converted to BOI in 1992 by an Act passed in Parliament
expanding its scope to cover the entirety of the country. BOI has evolved from an agency primarily
responsible for the promotion, coordination and facilitation of foreign and local investment in the area

of industrial exports to include services and infrastructure sectors as well.

At present, BOI owns and operates a total of 12 Export Processing Zones (EPZs) covering 04 provinces

in Sri Lanka.

I)biectives

The key objectives of the BOI focus on; foster and generate economic development, widen and strengthen
the base of the economy, encourage and promote Foreign Direct Investments, diversify the sources of
foreign exchange earnings and increase export earnings, encourage and foster the establishment and

development of industrial and enterprises within the Republic.

'(ole

To target and attract investments to priority sectors supporting implementation of the Government’s
investment policy and progressively increase the level of FDI, contributing towards achieving national
growth targets.

The BOI acts as the first point of contact for investors who intend to set up projects in high value added/
hightech manufacturing, high value added apparel, IT enabled services, tourism, food processing, logistic,
education and large scale infrastructure or other chosen sectors in Sri Lanka. Information and guidance
are provided and approvals required from other Line Agencies are coordinated by the BOI to facilitate

the investors.

Investment applications in respective sectors are evaluated by the BOI for approving and granting

concessions and facilitate visa issuance for expatriates.

The BOI provides assistance to investors throughout the project cycle from start-up to implementation
and successful operation of project by facilitating and attending to import/export clearance for import

of capital goods and raw materials and export of final products.

The BOI develops Export Processing Zones with readily available infrastructure facilities to provide

investors with suitable sites for the implementation of projects within a minimum period of time.
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Catalyst for Changing the Landscape of Sri Lanka
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BOI at a Glance

Foreign Direct Investment (1978 - 2017)
Cumulative FDI (1978 to 2017): US$ 15,015 Mn.
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Foreign Direct Investment as a Percentage of GDP (2008 - 2017)
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New Initiatives in 2017

Strengthening Investment Facilitation through Acceleration of Investment Approval Process

BOI has taken several initiatives to reduce the time taken for the approval process and to resolve investor

issues in an efficient manner by establishing following Committees.

e The Project Screening Committee (PSC)

The Project Screening Committee comprising
of relevant senior officers of the BOI chaired by
Director General meets weekly to screen all the
projects received to the BOI and to streamline
the investor facilitation process to resolve
implementation issues of both existing and the
potential investors.

e Single Window Investment Facilitation
Taskforce (SWIFT)

Being the investment facilitator, BOI has
taken an initiative to improve service delivery
by introducing Single Window Investment
Facilitation Taskforce (SWIFT) by providing
necessary linkages to the relevant line agencies in
order to expedite the project approving process
through a function based virtual platform. SWIFT
will improve investor awareness regarding
the compliances and will guide the investors

throughout the approval process.

This initiative has improved the information
transparency of regulatory processes and process
simplification of the Line Agencies. Twenty-four
most important Line Agencies will be linked
under a single platform in a phased approach.

e Land Allocation Committee

Land Allocation Committee has been established,
by which all proposals that require BOI lands are
evaluated according to a technical and financial
criteria by the Land Allocation Committee.

¢ Re-Investment Working Group

The Chairman and Director General of BOI has
appointed this group to encourage exisiting

10

investors to reinvest, expand or upgrade their
businesses by facilitating and solving their
bottlenecks. Further, this group also identifies
new potential investors through the existing
investor channel.

e Template for Screen and Evaluate Projects

The McKinsey Consultants developed a template
to screen and evaluate investors to identify right
investors and to drop non-credible investors
which has improved the BOI investor screening
process enabling BOI officers to spend more time
on feasible projects.

Identification of Lands to Develop of New
Export Processing Zones

BOI is mandated to develop Export Processing
Zonesinthe country and inline with government’s
new initiatives, proactively has taken steps to
identify lands for development of zones as well
as to find investors to develop new zones. Out
of the lands identified as suitable for developing
investment zones, it has been decided to begin
development activities in three sites namely
Bingiriya, Charlie Mount Estate - Matara and
Milleniya.

Budget Proposals to Establish New Export
Processing Zones (EPZs)

Accordingly an allocation of Rs. 2.5 Bn. has been
made in 2017 for this purpose.

Proposed Industrial Park in Milleniya

e It is proposed to establish as a PPP Model
Industrial Zone.



e Land acquisition for industrial area (244
acres) is in progress.

e 1s*scoping meeting with relevant stakeholders
was held to continue the Environment Impact
Assessment (EIA).

e A Survey, to construct an Initial power line
(Temporary) from Kalutara to Site Boundary,
is in progess.

e Approval of the Board was granted to release
a 5 acre land from Perth Estate Wagawatta to
construct the Grid Substation for permanent
power supply.

e Paymenthasbeen made to the National Water
Supply and Drainage Board for the initial
water supply of 500 m3/day and the work is
in progress.

e Preliminary work is in progress to supply
water of 2,000 m3/day.

e Thesurveyforaccessroad hasbeencompleted
and land acquisition process is in progress.

New Industrial Zone in Bingiriya - Progress

e C(Cabinet paper has been submitted to the

Ministry of Development Strategies and
International Trade (MODSIT) for land
acquisition.

e Soil investigation is being carried out.

e Request for initial water supply of
1,000 m3/day and estimates have been
obtained from the Water Board and forwarded

to MODSIT for settlement.

e Estimates have been obtained for 2 MVA
supply from the Ceylon Electricity Board and
forwarded to MODSIT for settlement.

e Conceptual layout plan has been prepared by
the BOI.

e 1%scoping meeting withrelevantstakeholders
was held to continue the Environment Impact
Assessment (EIA).

Mawathagama

Targeted Approach for Attracting Investment

The BOI has identified the target sectors for
attracting FDIs and enhance export revenue
through an in-depth research study which was
donein colobaration with the Harvard University’s
Center for International Development (CID) and
the World Bank Group. In identiying the target
sectors, special focus has been placed on export
oriented merchandise goods as well as serivces
with a view to enahnce foreign exchange eranings.

Identification of Priority Target Sectors for
Investment Promotion

The priority target sectors have been identified
based on following parameters;

e Where Sri Lanka’s offering is market-ready
(i-e. the country’s offering is strong and there
are no major constraints for attracting FDI).

e Which sectors are best-aligned with Sri
Lanka’s FDI potential.

e Where the country’s value proposition is
seen to have clear advantage over competing
countries - in terms of quality, quantity and
cost of supply.

11
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Priority Target Sectors

¢ Manufacturing Sector

- High Added, High Tech
Manufacturing (automotive components,

Value

medical devices, pharmaceuticals, solar
panels, fabricated metal parts, value
added minerals).

- High Value Added Apparel (smart textiles;

wearable technology, niche apparel

products).

- Food Processing (fish, sea food, fruits,
vegetables & dairy products).

e Services Sector
¢ [T Enable Services (IT Software, BPM, KPM).

e Tourism (hotels, recreational activities,

adventure sports & leisure facilities).

e Logistics (entrepot trade, transportation,
warehousing & storage).

¢ Education (both vocational and higher

education).

Strengthening Investment to Facilitate
Investors

In addition to above initiatves of the BOI, the
government has established two committees
to further resolve policy level investor issues in
an efficient manner and expidite the approval

process.

Single Window Investment Approval
Committee (SWIAC)

The Cabinetappointed Single Window Investment
Approval Committee chaired by Secretary to
the Treasury, is established by the Government
to grant approval for large projects and the
BOI refers all projects with significant impact
to the economy to this committee to obtain the
preliminary approvals.

Investment Approval Facilitation

Committee (IAFC)

The bottlenecks and the line agency related
issues which delay implementation of projects
have been addressed at the IAFC, chaired by the
Advisor to the Ministry of National Policies and
Economic Affairs. Most of the issues have been
successfully resolved with the participation of
relevant line agencies and the BOI.
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_ Anniversary Celebration

The BOI completes 40 years of existence in 2017. The Organization had its origins in the Greater Colombo
Economic Commission (GCEC), which was established in 1978 to generate development in the outskirts
of Colombo. Fourteen years later, in 1992, the Commission was reconstituted as the Board of Invesment
of Sri Lanka (BOI) with its mandate encompassing the entire island.

The BOI is acting as an engine of growth creating a considerable impact on the country's economic
development during last 4 decades. The BOI is therefore a significant agent of social change and its
existence of over 40 years has radically transformed Sri Lanka both economically and socially, placing
the country in a position where it can compete in an increasingly globalized world.

13
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Overview

Global FDI Inflows

Global Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) inflows
decreased by 23% in 2017 to US$ 1.43 trillion
compared to US$ 1.87 trillion in 2016. The major
reasons for this declining trend are 22% decrease
in the value of cross-border mergers & acquisitions
and 14% decrease in the value of announced
Greenfield investments.

FDI Inflows by Regions

FI Inflowws by Regions (2003-2017)
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FDI inflows into the Developed Economies sharply
declined by 37% in 2017. Developed Economies
could receive only 49.8% of global FDI in 2017
compared to the 60.6% in 2016.

Inward FDI into the Developing Economies
remained stable at US$ 671 Bn. in 2017.
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FDI inflows into the Developing Asia remained
stable in 2017 and regained the position as largest
FDI recipient in the world. FDI inflows into Latin
America and Caribbean increased by 8% in 2017.
However, FDI inflows into Africa declined by 21%
compared to the previous year.

FDI inflows into Transition Economies decreased
by 27% in 2017 and is the second lowest level
since 2005.

15
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Global FDI outflows decreased by 2.9% to US$ 1,430 Bn. in 2017 compared to the previous year.
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FDI Outflows by Regions

Outward investments of Developed and Developing Economies decreased by 3% and 6% respectively
in 2017 compared to previous year. However, Outward FDI in transition economies increased by 59% in
2017.
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Investment OQutlook 2017

1. Progress made on Applications Received

Source: MIS BOI

In the year 2017, 106 applications for new projects were submitted to the Board. Out of those 106
applications, 84 applications were approved of which 06 projects have commenced commercial
operation and 11 projects are under implementation.

In addition, 61 applications for project expansions of existing projects have been received during year
2017.

17
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2. Statuswise Project Details

L 4 Projects Approved

The total number of project approvals granted in 2017 was 144 with a total estimated investment of
US$ 4,747 Mn. (Rs. 723,781 Mn.). The estimated total number of employment opportunities of approved
projects in the year 2017 is over 37,000.

Investment & Employment Share of Approved Projects in 2017 - by Sector

No.of Est.Investment Employment

Sector
Projects (Rs Mn.) (Nos.)
Services/Infrastructure 52 521,776 9,382
Housing & Property Development 13 31,048 2,464
Hotels, Restaurant Services & Entertainment Complexes 11 42,437 915
Shopping & Office Complex 6 101,082 1,548
Hospital Services & Medical Centres 3 4,480 1,228
Power Generation Plants 3 19,827 218
Marine Services 2 2,693 20
Call Centres/BPO & Hosting Centres 2 85 160
Port Development 2 314,927 2,246
Container Services, Warehousing & Freight Forwarding 2 672 94
Other 8 4,526 489
Manufacturing 35 72,139 14,999
Agriculture 2 304 127
Expansions of Existing Projects 55 129,561 12,725
Total 144 723,781 37,233

Source: MIS BOI

Out of the total approved investment in the year 2017, the Services/Infrastructure sector accounts for
the highest contribution (72%) followed by the investments from expansions (18%) and Manufacturing
sector (10%).

Out of the total estimated employment of the approved projects in 2017, 40% is expected to create from
the Manufacturing sector while 25% is from the Services/Infrastructure sector.

L 2 Agreements Signed

The total number of projects signed agreements with BOI in 2017 accounted for 103 in which 56 were
new projects and 47 were expansions of existing projects. The total estimated investment of these
projects was amounted to US$ 3,462 Mn. (Rs. 527,882 Mn). These projects were expected to generate
over 25,900 employment opportunities.

18



L 4 Projects Commenced Construction/Implementation

In the year 2017, 68 new projects and 8 expansion projects commenced implementation/construction.

The total estimated investment of projects that commenced implementation was US$ 1,400 Mn.

(Rs. 213,531 Mn.). The expected employment generation was over 12,000.

Table 2: Top 10 projects (based on Est. Investment) commenced construction/

Project Name

The One
Transworks Square
(Pvt) Ltd
Capitol Towers Ltd.

Blue Mountain
Apartments -
Colombo 04
Havelock City (Pvt)
Ltd.

Odel Properties
One (Pvt) Ltd.
Rigid Tyre
Corporation (Pvt)
Ltd.

E A Macro Holdings
(Pvt) Ltd.

Union Place
Apartments (Pvt)
Ltd.

] S F Corporation
(Pvt) Ltd.

Marine Drive
Hotels (Pvt) Ltd.

Source: MIS BOI

implementation in 2017

Business Activity

Mixed Development
Project

A Residential
Complex

Mixed Development
Project

Mixed Development
Project

Mixed Development
Project

Radial & Solid
Tyres

Mixed Development
Project

To set up an
Apartment Complex

Solar Systems
Including Panels,
Inverters & Led
Lights

308 Roomed (Four
Star) Hotel

Est. Est.
Employment Investment

(Nos.) (Rs. Mn.)

1,350 60,300

895 16,632

138 16,269

259 15,211

66 14,730

981 10,875

20 7,892

10 7,647

83 5,337

99 5,031

Sector

Infrastructure

Infrastructure

Infrastructure

Infrastructure

Infrastructure

Manufacturing

Infrastructure

Infrastructure

Manufacturing

Tourism &
Leisure

Location

Colombo

Colombo

Colombo

Colombo

Colombo

Kalutara

Colombo

Colombo

Gampaha

Colombo

19
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*

During the year 2017, a total of 66 projects (65 new projects and 1 expansion projects) have commenced
commercial operation. The total realized investment of these projects accounted forUS$ 470 Mn. (Rs.
71,674 Mn.), and approximately 7,500 employment opportunities were created by these projects.

Projects Commenced Commercial Operation

€ Sector wise Distribution of Projects Commenced Commercial Operation

Out of 66 projects that commenced commercial operation in 2017, 17 projects were in the Tourism and
Leisure sector followed by 13 projects in the Utilities, 21 projects in Manufacturing sector (including
Apparel), 8 projects in Infrastructure sector, 4 projects in Services sector, 2 projects in Agriculture sector

and 1 project in Knowledge Services Sector.

Projects Commenced Commercial Operation in 2017
Sectoral Disitribution

Knowledge
Agriculture Services
Services 3% 1%

6%

Tourism &
Leisure
Infrastructure 26%
32%
Manufacturing
(including Utilities
Apparel 20%
32% T

Source: MIS BOI

€ District wise Distribution of Projects Commenced Commercial Operation

38% of the projects that commenced commercial operation in 2017 were located within the Colombo
and Gampaha districts. The balance projects were geographically distributed over 14 other districts.

20
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District Wise Distribution of Projects Commenced Commercial

Operation in 2017
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3. Foreign Direct Investment Attracted

The highest ever FDI was recorded in Sri Lanka in the year 2017 which amounted to US$ 1,173 Mn.
excluding foreign loans and US$ 1,710 Mn. including foreign loan component.

Sector wise FDI Received

Out of total FDI received in 2017, Housing & Property Development sector has received the highest
FDI amounting to US$ 541 Mn (32%) , followed by manufacturing sector with US$ 347.6 Mn. (20%),
Port Development sector with US$ 293 Mn. (17%), Hotel sector with US$ 253 Mn. (15%), Telephone &

Telecommunication sector with US4 209 Mn. (12%) etc.

FDI Received in 2017 (USS Mn.)
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Major Sources of Foreign Direct Investment - 2017

China was the largest source of FDI in 2017 with US$ 628 Mn. This was followed by Hong Kong (US$ 296
Mn.), India (US$ 174 Mn.), Malaysia (US$ 88 Mn.), Singapore (US$ 81 Mn.), Netherlands (US$ 72Mn.),
United Kingdom (US$ 67 Mn.), Japan (US$ 46 Mn.), Sweden (US$ 43 Mn.), United States (US$ 38 Mn),
Australia (US$ 27 Mn), Thailand (US$ 22 Mn.), Philippines (US$ 20 Mn.), UAE (US$ 19 Mn.), Dubai (US$
14 Mn.) etc. These fifteen countries together accounted for 96% of the total FDI received in the year
2017.

Major Sources of FDI {USS Mn.) - 2017

China 1 628
Hong Koag | ] 296
Imciia | - 174
Malaysla =—— &
Sngapore 250 B1
Hetherlands =3 72
United Kingdlom =23 &7
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Sweden =3 43
United States =3 38
Ausimalla £33 7
Thailand =3 22
Philippinez 23 20
United Arab Emirates &3 19
Dubai O 14
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Source: MIS BOI

4. Realized Investment (Cumulative)

The realized cumulative total investment as at end of
the year 2017 was Rs. 2,727 Bn., which showed a 26%
increase compared to the previous year. Out of Rs.
2,727 Bn. total realized investment, 60% (Rs. 1,635 Bn.)
represented the foreign component and the balance
40% (Rs. 1,092 Bn.) represented the domestic private
investments.

Cumulative Healized Ifvestment
(%.) &s ast end of 2017

m Local
The Infrastructure & Services sector accounted for
76% of the total realized cumulative investment and

the balance 24 % was from the Manufacturing sector
including Apparel.
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5. Employment (Cumulative)

Employment Cumulative as at December 2017
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The cumulative employment of BOI projects as at December 2017 was recorded as 494,397

59% of the total cumulative employment of BOI projects was from the Textile, Apparel & Leather sector
and 20% was from other Manufacturing sectors. Services & Infrastructure sector including Agriculture
represented 21% of the total cumulative employment in 2017.
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6. Export Performance

The total exports of BOI enterprises in 2017 amounted to US$ 7,792 Mn, which represented 68% of
national exports and 84% of national industrial exports.

Exports of BOl Enterprises (USS Mn.) in 2017
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Exports of BOI Enterprises (%) in 2017

Paper, Paper Froduct,  yan.petalic, Mineral
Printing & Publishing % Products
1% 2% Fabricated Metal, Machinery, &
Wood & Woodsn | - Transpost g,
Praducts El %
0% Beverages & Tobaoto
E%

" Marufactured
"~ Products (NLE.SH

Servites (includes
- Aricultunsl Secbor]

Source: MIS BOI
During the year of 2017, Apparel sector represented the highest percentage of exports (63%) followed

by the Manufacturing sector (excluding apparel) which amounted to 29%. Services and Agriculture
sectors represented 8% of the total BOI exports.
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Most often the first point of contact for the

Departmental Performance

1. Investment Promotion Department

Functions

The Investment Promotion Department is the first point of contact for the new investors. The key
function of the Investment Promotion Department is to attract Foreign Direct Investment (FDI)
from the target countries for desired sectors. Investment Promotion also involves in identifying the
potential enhancements of existing investments, and encouraging the existing investors to expand their

investments.

Progress

Outward and Inward Missions held by the Department during the year 2017

Outward Missions

Australia (Melbourne) : 13%-17% February 2017

Round Table discussion was held in Melbourne to coincide the visit of the Hon. Prime Minister.
Thailand: 15" -18" February 2017

Round Table discussion was held at the Thai Chamber of Commerce, followed by one to one meetings
with selected companies including Rojana Ind. Park Public Co., and Amata Corp.

Subsequent visits (inward) from Rojana Technical Team (March 2017) and a high level delegation in
August 2018 to sign Letter of Interest.

Hong Kong: 15* -18" March 2017

Director General, BOI participated as a guest panelist at Sri Lanka Investment Roadshow on the
invitation of the Standard Chartered Bank.

Moscow, Russia: 23-25% March 2017

Chairman, BOI represented in high level discussions, during the visit of H.E. the President in Moscow.
BOI participated in the 2™ session of Sri Lanka / Russia Intergovernmental Commission on Trade
Economic, Science & Technical Corporation held in Colombo in October 2017.

The BOI highlighted opportunities available for Russian Investors and the two sides agreed to facilitate
closer investment linkages through the exchange of business missions.

Hanoi, Vietnam: 15%-20" April 2017

The Director General, BOI represented the Sri Lanka - Vietnam Investment Forum and One to One
Business Meetings were held with leading companies in Vietnam, in the presence of the Hon. Prime
Minister.

Turkey: 14% -20* May 2017

A fact finding mission was held on invitation of the Chairman of the Apparel Association in Istanbul.
Osaka, Japan: 13" -18™ May 2017

Chairman, BOI represented the discussions with Mitsubishi Tokyo UF] Bank, Sri Lanka Japan Economic
Corporation Committee and Mitsubishi Corp.

Creating more awareness on Investment Opportunities in Sri Lanka.

Singapore: 31t May-4" June

BOI participated as a panelist in a World Bank Programme.
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Sweden & Denmark : 6™ -9" June 2017

BOI represented the Awareness Mission which was held amongst the Danish & Swedish investor
communities on the opportunities available under the Megapolis Initiatives.

Inward delegation from M/s Fortum Ltd., visited to explore Waste Management & Waste to Energy
Projects in June & September 2017.

Turkey : 14"-19' August 2017

BOI participated in the Izmir International Fair in Turkey.

Italy & Switzerland: 24" Sept.-2" October 2017

To initiate re-investment programme, Investment Promotion Missions were held in Italy & Switzerland.
This investment promotion programme was organised by a Swiss company (Contrinex) which was
already established in Sri Lanka (Ceylon Contrinex) and Director General and Executive Director
(Investor Services) represented BOI. Few companies were interested to visit Sri Lanka to find out
business possibilities. After follow up activities, The KUK Electronic has already finalised the first visit
to Sri Lanka in June 2018.

China: November 2017

Investment Promotion Seminar and One to One Meetings were held in targeted cities with pre identified
companies.

Singapore: November 2017

BOI complemented the Sri Lanka Singapore Business Council of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce in
organizing an Investment and Trade Promotion Mission with the support of IE Singapore.

Republic of Korea: November 2017

Chairman BOI participated in an Investment Promotion Mission organized to complement HE The
President’s official visit to Korea. A high-level forum was followed by one on one meeting with selected
companies.

The Lotte Engineering and Construction Company has expressed interest to explore possibilities in
investing and engaging with construction projects in Sri Lanka. Delegation from “Lotte” has already
visited Sri Lanka and had follow up discussions with the BOI.

Inward Missions

Delegates from SAITO College Malaysia and Alpha International Education Ltd of Stafford UK:
21 February

Interested in setting up a training institute to (conduct IT related designing courses for Textile &
Apparel).

BOI arranged meeting with JAAF and University of Moratuwa.

Delegation from Mitsui Asia Pacific Business Unit, Singapore : 20" February

Fact finding mission.

Business Delegation from New Zealand 6 March

Chairman BOI participated at the Business Forum organized by Australia, New Zealand Business
Council and New Zealand Trade & Enterprise.

Inward delegation visited in October 2017, with interest in establishing an Aviation Academy at Mattala
Airport.

Business Delegation from Canada 14" March

Met with the Chairman and Senior Officials of the BOI.

Delegation from JIMA CO., LTD, Japan : 23" March

Interested in Solar Power projects.
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Delegation from Mitsubishi Corporation Finance & Consulting Asia. Ltd Japan: 25" April
Interested in infrastructure sector and Investment opportunities in the Port City.

Delegation from Mitsui & Co. Ltd 26" April : Japan

Interested in Power sector.

Business Delegation from Czech. Rep.: 4" May

Chairman, BOI participated at the Business Forum and follow up discussion organized by the Hon.
Consul for Czech Rep. in Sri Lanka.

Business Delegation from: Guangxi Province, China 19" May

Industrial Parks and Port Development.

Delegation from Department of Trade Negotiation, Ministry of Commerce, Fiscal Policy, Institute
of Thailand : 237 May

Study Tour to learn about investment opportunities in Sri Lanka. Met with Senior BOI officials as well
as visited EPZ at Biyagama and Hambantota.

Business Delegation from Zhengzhou Municipal Committee, China: 24" May

Interested in a project for value addition in quartz.

Delegation from Marubeni India Pvt. from Japan 31 May

Interested in energy infrastructure sector, such as FSRU / distribution of LNG / Oil Tanks. Meetings were
arranged with Ministry of Megapolis, Petroleum Resources Development and Transport & Aviation
Sheng Yang City Government Representatives from China :1% June

Interested in Theme Parks and Tourism related projects

Business Delegation from Fujian & Lianing Provinces, China : 26" November 2017

Interested in Tourism, Manufacturing and Logistics

Confederation of Indian Industry, India: 29 June

Delegation was in Sri Lanka to participate at the “Sri Lanka and Business Conclave” organized by the
Ceylon Chamber of Commerce. Met with the Chairman BOI and Senior BOI Officials. Areas of Interest:
Agriculture / Processing, IT / BPO, Higher Education, Tourism / Leisure and LNG

Rojana Industrial Park Public Co: 215* August

Follow up of the visit to Thailand in February 2017, to sign Letter of Intent (LOI) with BOI to manage
the Industrial Park in Milleniya, Sri Lanka.

Follow up the visit to Thailand in February 2017, to sign LOI with BOI to manage

Industrial Park in Milleniya, Sri Lanka.

Delegation from Oriental Business Platform Zhejiang Province Dongyang City, China 5%
September 2017

Interested to invest in housing, tourism, hotels, apartments, shopping complex, trading and Agriculture
sectors

Delegation from China Business Council Hangzhou, China 5% September 2017

Interested to invest in Housing, Tourism, Hotels, Apartments Trading and Agriculture sectors.

KOIMA Delegation, (Korea): 6™ September 2017.

Business Forum & B2B program at the Hilton Colombo

Delegation from Jin Hua City, China 19 September 2017

Fact finding mission.

Delegation from Sinoshine , China 17" December 2017

Interested to invest in Agriculture and Environment sectors.

Delegation from Qinghai Province, China on 21 December 2017

Interested to invest in Agriculture, Housing and Industrial sectors.
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.I Research & Policy Advocacy Department

Functions

The Research and Policy Advocacy Department is mandated to propose and advocate necessary

improvements in relevant FDI policies thus becoming a key catalyst in investment related policy reform

process. In this context, the R & PA of BOI is responsible for undertaking policy research and suggesting

enhancements of various policies, laws and procedures in order to assist the government in improving

the business environment of Sri Lanka, thereby attracting the much needed foreign and domestic

investments.

Progress

*
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A key focus of the department’s activities during the year 2017 was to develop BOI Corporate
Plan for year 2017- 2020 with the technical assistance provided by the World Bank’s Investment
Promotion mission.

The department took a leading role in assessing the application of Inland Revenue Act No 24 of
2017 & Foreign Exchange Act No 12 of 2017 on existing and potential investors and created the
awareness among the BOI staff and investors through presentations and summarized documents
on the new incentive regime.

Being in line with the BOI Corporate Plan, the department played the key role in organizing a
capacity building programme; “Investment Promotion Certification Programme- IPCP”, with the
technical assistance of the World Bank Group.

Further, the department is responsible for compiling BOI Annual Report in collaboration with other
departments of the BOL.

R & PA Department was also involved in following activities;

- Preparation of the White Paper on “Why Sri Lanka has failed to achieve it’s FDI targets?,
Prominent Reasons and Corrective Measures”.

- Identification of priority sectors for investment promotion and preparation of a comprehensive
report titled “Targeting Sectors for Investment & Export Promotion”, in collaboration with the
Harvard University’s Center for International Development.

- Drafting/negotiating International Investment Agreements which include; Bilateral Investment
Treaties for the promotion and protection of foreign investment, Free Trade Agreements (FTAs)
and Comprehensive Economic Partnership Agreements.

- Preparation of various briefing notes benchmarking different countries (Australia, South Africa,
Russia, Viet Nam, China, Japan, Qatar, Singapore, Switzerland and South Korea) by analysing
trade and investment relations of both countries.

- Undertaking information dissemination function for both internal and external stakeholders
and provide investment related data from the Management Information System (MIS).

- Carrying out FDI Survey on a Quarterly basis, to get updated data on key performance indicators
of BOL
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Functions

The Investor Services Department facilitates after care services to investors registered under section 17
of the BOI law in the fields of import & export. To provide the above services, the department has five
Investor Services Centers located at Level 06, WTC, Colombo, Katunayake, Biyagama, Koggala Export
Processing Zones and Kandy Industrial Park in addition to 09 Cargo Verification Centers.

Services provided by the Investor Services Department;

Processing Import / Export CUSDECS.

Verification of Import / Export Cargo.

Issuing of Certificates of Origin for textile & apparel products exported to EU countries.
Approval for clearance of goods from bonded warehouses.

Approval for sub contracts, transfers, local sales & loans of raw material and machinery.
Approving of re-import & re-export of items.

Liaising with government organizations in respect of issues faced by BOI enterprises.
Processing and approving of GRNs for Indirect Exports.

Processing of web submission for IT / BOI projects

® ¢ 6 O 6 O O o o o

Recommendation to the Controller General of Immigration & Emigration for issuance of expatriate
visas. (Only for the Zonal Enterprises)

BOI Trade Total Trade Volume Trade in Hub Companies
(Value US$ 12,355 Mn.) (No. of TEUs 172,304)
Torfud Total
Lxpart, Impeat,
Exports, Imports, afa51 o

1483 23

Source: Investor Services Department, BOI
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- Investment Appraisal Department

The Investment Appraisal Department plays the pivotal role in the BOI in identifying the areas of
investment and providing continuous facilitating process from the acceptance of application till the
existence of the projects in Sri Lanka.

Investment Appraisal Departmentis responsible for evaluating project proposals and formulating policies
and regulations of the BOI to promote both foreign and local investments to achieve the objectives of the
BOI and Economic Goals of the Government.

As per the current policy of the government, the department has been structured into identified sectors
to promote investments and achieve BOI Objectives.
Knowledge Services - IT/BPO/KPO/ Higher Education/ Vocational Training / R & D.

Services - Hub/ Export of Services/Trading Houses (Other than Apparel) / Logistics
& Warehousing/ Regional Operating Headquarters.

Manufacturing - All manufacturing projects other than apparel.
Apparel - Apparel & textile including apparel related Trading Houses.
Infrastructure - Apartments / Housing & Town Ship Developments/ Mixed Developments

(Hotel, Service Apartment and other activities) / Shopping Complexes /
Hospitals/ Road Development/ Airports/ Ports/ Industrial Zones.

Tourism & Leisure - Hotels/ Villas/ Water Parks/ Theme Parks/ Adventure Tourism/ Air Line
Service/ Mixed Developments (Hotel and Service Apartments).

Utilities - Telecommunication / Power & Energy / Waste Management/ Mass
Communication / Water Management.

Agriculture - Agro Processing / Dairy / Cultivation / Livestock / Inland Fishing / Deep
Sea Fishing / Fish Processing.
Functions

1. Evaluating investment proposals in line with the regulations of the BOI, investment policy
document published by Exchange Control Department of Central Bank of Sri Lanka and policies of
the Government of Sri Lanka.

2. Coordinating with relevant Line Ministries to obtain required recommendations/comments based
on national policies applicable to the projects prior to granting approval.

3. Making recommendations for project proposals to obtain approval of the Board / Chairman /
Director General.

4. Facilitating projects granting customs duty and other exemptions as referred in the Schedule (B) of
the BOI Act.

5. Granting approval for the change of Scope of the Business.
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6. Granting approval for expansions in terms of location, product, activity etc.

7. Resolving and intervention in operational issues such as customs inquiries, industry related issues
etc.

8. Preparation of FDI forecast.

9. Recommendation of visa for expatriates (investors and employees).

10. Participating in various investor forums such as EDB, Ease of Doing Business to address investment
related issues.

11. Participating in Policy Making Committees with the Ministry of Finance, other Line Agencies and
Cabinet Sub Committees appointed for different sectors.

12. Communicating and coordinating with all Line Agencies prior to granting approvals such as Urban
Development Authority, Sri Lanka Tourism Development Authority, Sri Lanka Tea Board, Geological
Survey & Mines Bureau, Sri Lanka Customs, Ministry of Plantation, Ministry of Lands, Forest
Department etc.

13. Attending and responding to inquiries made by various State Agencies including Law Enforcing
Authorities, Sri Lanka Customs and other State Agencies.

Progress

New Projects

Proposed Investment
No. of projects Foreign Local Employment
(Rs. Mn) (Rs. Mn)
New project proposals received 101 592,555 181,064 20,969
Projects approved 87 436,189 154,098 18,680
Agreement signed 55 301,620 136,338 13,764
Expansions
Proposed Investment
No. of projects Foreign Local Employment
(Rs. Mn) (Rs. Mn)
New expansion proposals
_ 60 38,710 102,198 21,913
received
Expansions approved
(including proposal received in 52 16,570 73,118 17,775
previous years)
Agreement signed 47 6,342 45,082 15,989
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- Project Monitoring Department

Functions

A major function of the Project Monitoring Department is to examine the performance of projects
that have commenced commercial operations in terms of fulfilment of conditions set out in the BOI
Agreement. This remains a regular and constant activity of the Department covering the lifetime of BOI
approved projects that are in commercial operation.

Companies approved under both section 16 and Section 17 of the BOI Law are examined through the
collection of periodical information based on Audited Financial Statements, Bi-Annual Performance
Statements and employment statistics of each project.

Other key areas handled by the Department include, Issuance of Tax Certification to Companies eligible
for Tax Holiday, formal termination of Project Agreements that have reached the end of their Life Cycle as
well as those that have not complied with conditions in the BOI Agreement, inspection of projects both
under sec. 16 and sec. 17 of the BOI Law to provide performance reports for decision making by relevant
Departments and quarterly submission of relevant Agreement Terminated Projects to Commercial
Banks for withdrawal of FCBU facility granted to such companies.

Progress

e  During the year under review, 122 Nos. of Annual Tax Certificates were issued to BOI registered
companies that had complied with conditions set out in respective Agreements.

e The total collection of Financial Statements from Companies during 2017 numbered 1,477. The
inspection of Company activities carried out during the year increased to 112, following a cohesive
monitoring plan.

e  C(learing the backlog of Dormant Projects was regularized during the year under review by
processing the termination of 154 Agreements due to factors such as non-compliance with terms
and conditions of the Agreement arising from financial issues, difficulties in marketing & sourcing
of land etc. faced by the companies. It is noteworthy that terminations also occurred as a result of
asset take over by prospective investors and amalgamation or merger of companies.
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- Project Implementation Department

Functions

Main Objective of Project Implementation Department is “To ensure successful facilitation of projects,
consistent with the implementation clause stipulated in the Agreement with the BOI".

- Issue extension letters to companies on request, after getting approval from the Board.

- Identify the projects which have failed to complete implementation and recommend for termination
of Agreements to Monitoring Department.

- Update MIS in identifying the changes of status of the project.

Progress

Implemented 84 projects up to commenced commercial operations and 155 Board Papers were submitted
to the Board to get approval for extension of the Project Implementation Period. 80 site inspections were
done to ascertain the progress of the projects.

Hon. Prime Minister has appointed a committee known as “Investment Approval Facilitation Committee”
(IAFC) chaired by Mr. Paskaralingam, Advisor to the Ministry of National Policies & Economic Affairs, to
expedite the process to clear the bottle-necks of the projects and facilitate investors which is organized
by the Project Implementation Department.

Inauguration Meetings were arranged by Project Implementation Department with other Heads of
Departments to familiarize with the officers of the BOI and for smooth operation of the projects. Further
44 projects were taken up at Meetings with investors to discuss project performances.
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- Legal Department

Functions

The Legal Department advices and assists the BOl in all matters related to the legal aspects of investment.
As such provides legal assistance for the execution that is required for investment, while providing
professional advice/service to the Board as well as investors. This includes providing investor related
services on applicable legal regime for investment and execution of Investment Agreements for projects
approved under Section 17 of the BOI Law and under Strategic Development Projects Act No. 14 of 2008
as amended.

Progress

During the period BOI has contracted 55 Principal Agreements under Section 17 of the BOI Law for the
establishment of new business ventures in Sri Lanka. The major projects executed were;

- Rigid Tyre Corporation (Pvt) Limited - Dilroza 9 Yards Apparel (Pvt) Ltd.
- Hambantota International Port Group (Pvt) Limited
- Hambantota International Port Services Company (Pvt) Limited

- Best Pacific Textiles Lanka (Pvt) Limited

In addition, 225 Supplementary Agreements were contracted with existing BOI projects in relation to
expansion, changes in the scope of business, relocations, take overs and mergers.

This includes the following projects with considerable investment and employment generation:

- Ansell Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.

- MAS Fabric Park (Pvt) Ltd. (Giriulla Expansion - Formerly occupied by Kabool Lace) - Logiwiz Ltd.
- Serendib Flour Mills (Pvt) Ltd.

- Future Energy (Pvt) Ltd.

Further, the Legal Department has completed the entire procedure laid down in the Strategic Development
Project Act No. 14 of 2008, as amended, and executed the Principal Agreements for Hambantota Internal
Port Group (Pvt) Limited and Hambantota International Port Services Company (Pvt) Limited.
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- Technical Services Department

Functions

The Technical Services Department is responsible for the overall control of Action Plan for infrastructure
development pertainingto ExportProcessing Zones and Industrial Parks managed by BOI. Key functions of
the department are establishment of new Investment Zones, providing technical inputs for construction,
operation, maintenance and determination of infrastructure facilities in zones, advertising vacant lands
on availability for selection of investors for new investment projects and assisting Competent Authority
in transferring assets divested to the state.

Progress

a. Inyear 2017, a sum of Rs. 377 Mn. was incurred by the BOI mainly in respect of improvements
and upgrading of existing infrastructure in the Export Processing Zones/ Industrial Parks. Major
scale augmentations/improvements have been initiated and are in progress during the year under
review, for the Common Wastewater Treatment Plants, Construction & Improvements to Existing
Road Networks, Building, Fencing, Water supply etc.

b. Asum ofRs.56 Mn. was incurred for the new zone development such as infrastructure development
in the Wagawatta Industrial Zone by constructing internal roads, Supply & installation of mechanical
& electrical equipment for raw water intake. Preliminary investigations of sites identified for
new Zones continued, by expanding the internal road network, electricity supply, water supply,
perimeter fencing etc.

A sum of Rs.433 Mn. has been utilized under the Action Plan 2017.
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- Zone Management Department

Functions

The Zone Management Department is responsible for overall coordination and supervision of the
functions of Export Processing Zones/Industrial Parks of the BOI. The Department provides management
information related to Zones and assists to resolve their technical and functional issues. The department
provides guidance on environmental matters, land issues and facilitates enterprises in the Zones for
better prospects. In addition, the department assesses the resource requirements and intervenes for
allocation of resources to the Zones/Parks.

Progress

- New method for competitive bidding of lands was introduced and was able to achieve a high income
from allocating lands to investors.

- Overall land usage of major Zones such as Katunayake EPZ, Biyagama EPZ and Seethawaka EPZ
exceeded 90% in average. There was a very high demand for the remaining lands of other Zones. In
order to meet the demand for Zonal lands, actions were taken to develop Zone-B area of Mirigama
EPZ with necessary infrastructure facilities.

- When considering the attraction of new employees and retention of existing employees, the Zone
Management paid much attention and many awareness programmes as well as advertising systems
were introduced with the collaboration of stakeholder institutions.

- Import/Export performances of Zone enterprises have increased considerably and service facilities
were enhanced by implementing new systems and providing required training to BOI Zone staff.

- There were no significant Fire Hazards and major labour disputes recorded in any Zone in 2017.
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-Environment Management Department

Functions

The functions with regard to the Environment Protection and Management pertaining to the projects
within the purview of the BOI, are being executed by its Environment Management Department in
consultation and with concurrence of the Central Environmental Authority (CEA). The functions of
the Environment Management Department are granting environmental approvals for projects, issuing
Environmental Protection Licences, investigating environment related complaints and resolving them,
liaising with other agencies, organizations and departments in activities related to Natural Resources
Management and Environmental Pollution Control etc.

Progress
Function No.

1. (a) No. of environmental clearances granted for Projects. 63

(b) No. of environmental clearances granted for expansions/relocations. 31
2. No. of EPL issued/renewed. 979
3. No. of ERR issued in respect of sites proposed for erection of telecommunication towers. 99
4. No. of complaints attended concerning environmental issues and resolved 107
5. Environmental Monitoring

(a)No. of effluent samples collected from industries. 1164

(b)No. of effluent samples collected from common sewage treatment plant.

(c) No. of water samples 176

In addition to the above, the Environment Management Department also served in the National
Committees formed on the following International Conventions related to environment/chemicals, for
which Sri Lanka is signatory.

1. National Coordination Committee on Basel, Rotterdam, Stockholm and Minamata Conventions.
2.  Montreal Protocol on substances that deplete the Ozone Layer.
3.  United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC).
The above three Committees are chaired by the Ministry of Mahaweli Developmentand Environment.

4. Convention against Illicit Traffic in Narcotic Drugs and psychotropic substances. This is chaired by
the Precursor Control Authority.

It was ensured that all BOI projects operate in compliance with these International Conventions.

Achieved the target set for year 2017 under the ISO 9001:2008 standard based quality management
system. Under this, the set target was to ensure that 98% of the BOI projects are in possession of the
Environmental Protection Licence (EPL), and the Department achieved this target.

The Department also represented the following Technical Committees and actively contributed in its

decision making processes.

(a) Committee for deciding siting of high & medium polluting industries outside Export Processing
Zones and Industrial Parks.

(b) Basel Technical Evaluation Committee.

(c) Technical Advisory Committee for Management of Industrial Chemicals (TACMIC). All these three

Technical Committees are chaired by the CEA.
37



-ngineering Approvals & Special Projects Department

Functions

Engineering Approvals & Special Projects Department consists of two units namely; Engineering
Approvals Section and Land and Facilitation Section. Engineering Approvals Section functions as the
regulatory arm of the BOI for sites and provides four key services namely; Location approval, Building
Plan Approval, Quantity Certification and Certificate of Conformity, to Section 17 Projects.

Land and facilitation section is responsible for providing the following services to the investors.

- Assisting investors in obtaining state lands for BOI projects.

- Acquire state lands/private lands when necessary for construction of BOI Zones.

- Maintaining a Land Bank of state and private lands for the use of investors.

- Assisting the Legal Department and other departments of the BOI in matters pertaining to lands.

Progress

Site Approvals - 191
Building Plan Approvals - 173
Duty Free Clearances - 3,737
Certificate of Conformity - 60

Maintaining and updating Land Bank of state lands and private lands for the use of investors.
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ll Industrial Relations Department

Functions

The Industrial Relations Department of the BOI plays a vital role in maintaining a sound industrial

relation climate conducive for higher efficiency and productivity within the BOI Enterprises. In order to

achieve the said goal, the Industrial Relations Department handles the following functions:

Promote and facilitate to maintain labour management co-operation, industrial peace & harmony
and higher productivity in the enterprises coming under the purview of the BOI.

Provide advisory services and guidance on Labour Laws / Regulations and IR practices to the
management and employees of BOI Enterprises where necessary.

Assist investors to meet their manpower requirement through the BOI Employment Service Units
functioning in EPZs, and organizing recruitment assistance programmes.

Progress

In the year 2017, Labour Audits have been carried out in 922 BOI Enterprises in Zones and outside
Zones as well and remedial actions have been taken to rectify the shortcomings / lapses found at
the above audits.

During the year 2017, Industrial Relations Department facilitated the formation and operation of
150 Employees’ Councils.

There are five Facilitation Centres in operation at Katunayake, Biyagama, Koggala, Wathupitiwala
Export Processing Zones and Kandy Industrial Park during the year 2017 for the use of Trade Union
Officials to meet their members working in the respective zone enterprises freely and privately as
and when necessary.

115 Awareness Programmes have been conducted during the year 2017 for Employees and
Management Officials of the BOI Enterprises on various subjects such as Social Dialogue, General
Awareness, Workplace Co-operation, Decent Work Practices and Health & Safety, etc. in collaboration
with relevant government agencies.

In maintaining industrial peace & harmony in the BOI enterprises, IR Officers mediate in settling
any industrial dispute occurred in BOI Enterprises. 10 industrial disputes / strikes occurred in BOI
enterprises during the year 2017 were resolved with the support of Labour Dept. officials where
necessary.

During the year 2017, 68,129 job seekers were registered with the Employment Services Units
at EPZs out of which 66,801 have been referred to the enterprises for placement interviews. In
addition, IR Department facilitates in organizing Job Fairs / Career guidance programmes in
collaboration with other relevant agencies in order to attract more job seekers to the employment
opportunities existing in BOI Enterprises. During the period under review, 14 such Job Fairs /
Career Guidance programmes have been conducted island wide.

The establishment of first day care centre and pre-school at KEPZ provides a tangible solution for
employees who are willing to continue their jobs while keeping their kids in a secured place within
the zone and this also provides a solution to reduce high labour turnover and create attractive
impression of the zone for new recruits. Atthe end of the year, 72 kids have been facilitated and 60
among them were attending the pre-school.
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- Information Technology Department

Functions

Information Technology Department has been setup to plan, design, develop, evaluate and implement

IT solutions for BOL. It also coordinates procurement, commissioning and maintenance of ICT resource

of the organization.

IT Department manages the organization’s corporate network to provide IT infrastructure with hardware

& software for communication and all IT requirement of its users to give around-the-clock service.

Progress

40

-In order to avoid the complex manual procedure of FDI survey data collecting process, a web
solution was developed and launched by the IT Department to submit FDI survey forms online.
The system supports enterprises to submit their FDI survey forms and monitor the progress of
their submissions online. The Research & Policy Advocacy Department officers can view the online
submitted FDI forms and transfer data into MIS.

A web solution was designed and implemented to submit online requests for employee’s ID cards
for BOI enterprises. They have the facility to get their ID cards by submitting online requests and
making online payments via their pre-paid account. This is a more streamlined and automated web
solution which was introduced to eliminate the existing manual procedure of issuing employee 1D
cards.

IT Department developed and launched a Mobile App for BOI telephone directory of BOI officers.
BOI officers can install the said Mobile App into their mobile phones so that they can search any
mobile number, generate telephone calls and send emails via the App to any BOI officer.

A system has been designed, developed and implemented by the IT Department to allocate tasks for
IT officers, monitor performance and follow up targets.

Successfully implemented a new software solution with an out-sourced software system for
processing board papers & managing board meetings.

Various enhancements were done to the Visa System to fulfil all requirements of users and the
management with report modifications and comprehensive decision making information.



- Media & Publicity Department

Functions

The Media Department of the BOI is responsible for external communications to create awareness about
investment opportunities in Sri Lanka, the country’s business climate and the organization’s successes
through a variety of media addressed to different types of audiences.

Progress

In 2017 the BOI engaged in publicity campaigns using different types of media. Furthermore printed
promotional materials were developed; advertisements were placed in publications, to convey its
message to a wide audience.

Events participated

- Job Fairs in Kurunegala, Avissawella and Kandy

Media coverages
- EU-Sri Lanka Dialogue

- Launch of Oxford Business Group Report

Press Conference
- Signing of Kantale Sugar Agreement
- Launch of Oxford Business Group Report 2017

- Rojana - BOI signing ceremony

Publications
- Pitch Books, 2 brochures for President’s visits (Russia & Australia)

- Ministry of Development Strategies and International Trade Performance Report

Press Releases

- 28 Nos. sent out.

Designed

- Sri Lanka Australia Trade and Investment Relation brochure

- Investment Promotion Handbook for Diplomats brochure

- Sri Lanka Russia Trade and Investment Relation brochure

- Invest in Sri Lanka Russian brochure

- Reducing time for construction permit approval leaflet

- Bingiriya Hoarding

- Bogambara Hoarding

- BOI Investment Guide - Japanese

- Banner for Ministry of Development Strategies and International Trade
- Procedure of Land release

- ACover for BOI Telephone Directory 2017
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-istration Department

Functions

The Administration Department provides logistical support for the operations of other Departments.

It provides optimum services to its client Departments and Export Processing Zones as well. The

Department has following sub units for smooth operation of its functions.

Stores & Supplies Unit
Transport Unit
Maintenance Unit
Mail Unit

General Administration

Progress

42

Procurement of three nos. of Brand New Motor Cars, a SUV, four nos. of Double Cabs & a Van to the
Vehicle Fleet, four Motor Cycles, one Tractor & Trailer, Water Bowser & 108 nos. of 650VA UPSs.

Re-evaluation of the existing Insurance Policies of the BOI with an Insurance Consultant.
Arrangements were made to submit the Annual Reports to (2012-2016) to the parliament
Infrastructure facilities of the other Departments in the WTC Building were improved.

Procurement of 66 personal computer to the BOI.
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-s Management Department

Functions

Human Resources Department is the key department which has the responsibility to manage the
total human resources of the Board by developing and implementing policies and programms that
contribute to achieve organizational and employee goals. Its main functions are human resource
planning, performance assessment, training and development, maintenance of discipline, maintenance
of attendance and leave and employee welfare services.

Progress

- Seven Executives, three Management Assistant category employees and six Primary Level employees
were newly recruited to the Board'’s service.

- Six Contract employees were absorbed in to the permanent cadre.

- 52 Executives, 28 Management Assistant category employees and 16 Primary Level employees
were promoted to higher grades.

- Staff Trainings (Total 573)

Staff Training 2017

M
300
250
2
150
1 (K
o

Forsign Trainings  Master Degree  Local Training (Saft In-House Training
Programmes Skills) Programmes

Source : Human Resource Department, BOI

- Fifty five Trainees from recognized Universities & Vocational Training Institutes were provided On
the Job Training in various fields as a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) measure of the BOI.
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. Security & Fire Department

Functions

Security Division:
Security and safety of property and human
lives.

Prevention of possible sabotage, subversive
activities, theft, illegal removal of duty free &
other goods, inclusive of repair/return items.

Maintaining all entrances and exit points with
close checks on illegal entries to the Zones.

Skilled staff on mobile and foot patrol in all
Zones.

Duties at custom-bonded areas, 24 hour

vigilance, surveillance in Zone-related areas.

I[ssuing of entry permits together with BOI
staff, within and after working hours except
on weekends and holidays where the security
staff is fully responsible for this task.

Frequent factory inspections carried out in
all Zones for detections of attempted theft,
misuse of expired entry permits etc.

Coordination between Zone Management,

enterprises and law enforcement authorities.

Security supervision at closed down

enterprises.

Daily / Monthly meetings, briefings, training,
awareness programmes and instruction

sessions held in all Zones.

Progress

Training Programmes:

Fire Division:
Responding to fire calls & emergency
situations in the Zones and the areas of close
proximity outside the Zones.

Fire prevention inspections (overall).
Fire risk assessments (overall).
Fire drills & awareness to factory staff.

Training on fire equipment handling to factory
staff.

Fire training on request of enterprises.

Inspection of fire hydrants and equipment of
enterprises.

Issuing of compliance certificates, fire
certificates and evacuation certificates to
enterprises.

Fire equipment is checked on daily basis for
efficiency.

The fire staff also responds to emergency
situations related to Zone Management.

Responding to fire calls & emergency situation.

Fire risk assessments through annual fire
prevention inspections.

Evacuation drills & awareness to factory staff/
employees.

Training on fire equipment handling/first aid
to staff & factory employees.

Consultation on installation of fire equipment
to factories and servicing of existing fire
vehicles.

For security personnel: English Course-for a period of 04 months commenced from 02/02/2017 to

22/06/2017

For Fire personnel: One day seminar was held in June 2017 at Colombo Fire Brigade
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Year Ended 31 December 2017 2016 Change %
Rs. Mn. Rs. Mn.

Revenue 3,712 3,605 3
Operating Expenses (3,211) (3,049) (5)
Finance Income 337 222 52
Finance Expense (1D (11 -
Surplus Before Taxation 827 768 8
Tax Expenses (71) 47 (51)
Other Comprehensive Income (25) 14 (278)
Total Comprehensive Income 731 735 9]
Total Assets 42,412 41,747 2
Total Equity 41,005 40,453 1

Financial Review 2017

Profitability

Net Surplus (Rs.Mn)

The Board recorded a Net Surplus after taxation
of 756 M for year 2017 & there is a 5% increase
compared to year 2016.
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Revenue

Revenue Growth (Rs.Mn)

101t
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Expenditure

Operating Expenditure (Rs.Mn)

Government Levies & Taxes (Rs.Mn)
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Operating Revenue of year 2017 has increased to Rs.
3,712 M from Rs. 3,605 M recorded during the previous
year. This is a growth of Rs. 107 M and it is 3% over the
previous year. Revenue from Import/Export Service
Charges which accounts for 29% of the Total Revenue has
increased by 79 M to Rs.1,091 M & this is a 8% growth
compared to year 2016.

In the year under review, Total Operating Expenses have

increased by 5% to Rs. 3,211 M in year 2017 compared to
year 2016. Expenses incurred for Investment Promotion
and Maintenance of Zones have been classified under
Operating Expenses. Administrative Expenses too have
increased by 3% over 2016. This is mainly due to the
increase in Personnel Costs and Depreciation.

Amounts paid on account of Government Levies have
increased by 64% compared to last year. This is due to the
increase in disallowed VAT input. BOI has paid Rs. 71 M as
income tax on interest income for the year under review.
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BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" DECEMBER 2017 2016

= Rs. Ra.

Note

Revenue 4 3,711.862,608 3,605,145,347
Less : Expenses
Operating Expenses [ 265,378,859 265.978,777
Administrative Expenses 7 2,724,7137,396 2,639.675,029
Government Levies 8 1'H), 599,853 116,511,263
Other Expenses 9 20,943,193 26,528,404
Total Operating Expenses 3.210,65%.301 3.048,693,473
Resualis from Operating Activities 501,203,307 556,451,874
Finance Income 336,920,319 222 265,759
Finance Expenses 10,940,559 10,588,937
Net Finance Income 1 325,979,76i) 211,676,822
Surplus Before Taxation ; 817,183,067 768,128,696
Tax Expenses 70,759,017 47,342,329
Surplus for the Period ?EE#E,ESII 720,786 367
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BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31”7 DECEMBER

Burplus for the Period

Other Comprehensive Income
Less : Defined benefit plan Actuarial (Gain)/Loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

2017 2016
Nole Rs, R,
756,424,050 720,786 367
211 25054316  (14,247.556)
731,360,734 T35033.923
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BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31°" DECEMBER

ASSETS

Mom- Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment
Irvestment Propemy

Capital Work-in-Frogress
Financial Azceis

Votal Maon- Carrent Assels

Currend Assels

Inventories

Howises For Drisposal

Finamncinl Asseis

Feceivables from Enterprises

Payments in Advance and Other Recenvhles
Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Tatal Current Asuels

Toinl Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Accumulated Fund

Reserves

Defemed Revenus
Deeferred Expendinume

Total Equity

Non Carrent Linbilities

Retirement Benefit Obligmtions

Long Term Borrowings falling after one year
Tl Mon Carrent Linbilities

Current Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings felling within cne vear

Accried Expenses amd Other Paymhles

Tax Payabls
Total Current Liakilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

M ote

I
12
1%
14

15
14
17
1%

T k{1E
Rs. Rs.
% 246,129 406 4,303,930 267
31,045, 348,525 31,061 431 420
| 45% 645 476 Lk AT 652
550,120,565 S1%.207 444
1,643,972 38.324,131,792
|5.288.767 15.007.657
2.551,000 1551000
I180.817.880 |6T.000.271
244,621,184 259, 859,902
450, 138,02 561,945.146
3,168 262 320 2416619374
4,870,679.203 1.423,013,140
T 411.323.178 4L 747.145.141
10,707.121.650 160.410,484.416
15,340,603 134 15,340.093,234
26,047,814.584 28.751,177.650
15,372,603 440 15,120 869,118
(415.893.541) (419.319.798)
1,956, TS 14,700, 549,320
41,004,524, 784 40,452,726,970
265,684,519 136238 048
_AT923181 201 80,139
IJE3 607721 255 409087
13,776,989 4 8046601
1,060,917.370 3051018
19.4%6,310 20, 148,476
1,094, 190_569 1, 0K, BiFD_DKS
AT AVT 3T ATS 41,747 145,141

"Nobes to the Financiol Stmternvents ™ se-ouf on pages & 1o 24 form an imtegrat-part of the Financial Stasments.

The Board of Directors is responisible for the preparation and presentation of these finnrcial stafements
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BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317 DECEMBER 2017

Accumulated Revaluation Totl
Fund Reserves Equity
Rs. Rs. Hs.
Balance as at 01" January 2016 9619169977 15340693234  24,959.863.211
Surplus for the Period 735,033,923 - 735,033,923
Capital Gain - Cashew Corporation land transfer 213,760,000 213,760,000
Fund transfers to Treasury {1 50,000,000) (150,000,000
Expenditure on account of Treasury (86.026) (86,026)
Facilitation of Infrastruciure for Mega Projects (7,393,460) - (7,393 460)
Ralance as at 31 December 2016 10410484416 15.340.693,234 25,751,177.650
Balance as at 01" January 2017 10410484 416  153400603,234  215.751,1 77,650
Surplus for the Period 731,369,734 131,369,734
Fund transfers 1o Treasury {220,000,000) {220,000,000)
Reversal of Capital Gain - Cashew Corporation land trans  (213,760,000) {211,760,000)
Facilitation of Infrastrocture for Mega Projects (972,500) - (972,500
Balance as at 31% December 2017 10,707,121,650 15,340,693, 234 26,047 814,884

"Notes to the Financial Statements * set cut on pages 8 to 24 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

51



BOARD OF INVESTEMENT OF SRI LANKA

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T DECEMBER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations {Note 24)

Income Tax Paid

Fayment of Retirement Benafit Obligations

Deferred Revenue Received

Exchange Loss of Deforred Revenue

Cazh Relund
Net cash inflowsAont flows) from operating sctivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investiment income

S4alT Loan & Fin, Assistonce

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceads from sale of Fixed Asscis

Capitad work in progress

Deferred Expenditure

Facilitation of Infrastrocture Mega Prajecis

Met cash inflows outflows) from investing setivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Leasze Installments Paid

Fund Transfer to Treasury

Advance Survey Charges

Met cash flowsouillows) from finoncing activities

Met Increase/ (Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash & cash equivielents at end of the year

52

2007 06
Rs{ Mn.) Rs{Mn.)
810.44 1084.08
(T141) (3578
(34.11) (34.95)
461.77 343.7
{0,23) .
. (4.56)
1,166.45 1,349.60
2602 fd7.22
{29.72) (6.44)
{96.02) (225.79)
AR 5.20
(156.58) {179:73)
{0.09) (26.89)
[0.12) {7.39)
{156.40) {201.83)
(18,35} (31.18)
{220.009 {150.00)
{0,063 {109}
(258.41) (181.27)
T51.64 87451
241662 1,542.11
3,168.26 241662
e T me——————
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BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA
Revenue (Rs, Million)

‘Net Surplus After Taxation (Rs. Million)

Capital Expenditure (Rs. Million)




BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

2.3

24

Reporting Entity

Board of Investment of Sri Lanka is established under Board of Investment of S Lanka
Law. No 4 of 1978. The registered office and the principal place of organization is
located at West Tower, WTC, Echelon Square, Colombo 01.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The statement of Financial Position, Comprehensive income, Changes in Equity, Cash
Flow and notes together with summary of significant accounting policies of the Board
have been prepared in accordance with S Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS) issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 8r Lanka which represent International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standard Board.

Use of Estimates, Judgements and Assumptions

The preparation of the Boards' financial statements requires management to make
Jjudgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. The estimates and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liahility
affected in the future.

Going Coneern

When preparing the financial statements the Management has assessed the ability of the
Board to continue as a going concern. The Management has a reasonable expectation
that the Board has adequatc resouwrces to confinue in operational existence for the
foresecable future. The Board does not foresee a need for liquidation or cessation of
operations, taking into account all available information about the future. Accordingly,
the Board continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statEmenis.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional currency of the Board is determined to be Sri Lankan Rupees and the
Financial Statements are also presented in Sri Lankan Rupees.
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BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Contd.)

3

kR

31

56

Significant Accounting Policies
Financial Assefs
The Board classifies ifs financial assets in to loans and receivables and held 1o maturity

investments. The classification is determined by management &t initial recognition and
depends on the purpose for which the imvestments were done and acquired.
(a) Classification
(i)  Loans and Receivables
Loans and Receivables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable
pavments that are not guoted in an active market. Receivables arising from ordinary
transactions are also classified in this category and are reviewed for impairment.

(i}  Held-to-Maturity Fingneial Azsets

Held-io-maturity invesimenis are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Board's Management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

(b) Impairment

Financial Assets arc reviewed al cach balance sheet date to deterrmne whether there 15
any indication of impaimment. If any such indication exists the assets recoverable amount
is estimated.

An impairment loss 15 recognized whenever the carrying amount of an assets or 1t’s cash
generating units exceed its recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recogmized in the
income statement.

(e} De-recognition

Impairment losses recognized in prior period are assessed al each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no Jonger exists. An impairment loss 18 de-
recognized if there has been a change in Lhe estimates wsed o determine the recoverable
amount.

Property, Plant and Equipment
{a) Cost

Value of property plant and equipment camied at valuation less accumulated depreciation
as at 1* January 2011 have heen considered being the deemed cost as at 1™ January 2011
as per SLFRS |[.



BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SHI LANKA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

33

A4

(b}  Depreciation

The provision for depreciation is caleulated on the straight-line basis on the cost/
valuarion of the Property, Plant and Equipment. All Property, Plant and Equipment other
than land have been depreciated annually over the useful life.

Buildings & Structures 20 vears
Plant and Machinery 10 vears
Fixtures & Fittings 10 years .
Oifice Furniture & Equipment 10 years
Computers 3 vears
Maotor Vehicles 5 vears

Depreciation is not charged on fixed assets in the vear of purchase, while charging in full
in the vear of disposal.

ic) De-recognition

Items of property and equipment are de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefils are expected from its use. Gain or loss arising on de-recognition of an
item of properly, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceed and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the income statement.

(d)  Capital Work in Progress

Capital expenses incurred during the year which are not completed as at the Balance
sheet date are shown as Capital Work in Progress ,whilst the capital assets which have
been completed during the vear and available to use have been transferred o Property,

Plant and Equipment.
(el Leaschold Assets

Assels acquired under finance leases are capitalized & included under the category of
leaschold motor vehicles with recognition of a corresponding financial liability. Assets
held under finance leases are depreciated over their period of use.

in Structures

Fair Values of Structures have been assessed under seven main sub categories. All items
and components connected with each main sub category are considered as forming part

one unit,

Investment Properties
Investment properties are stated at cost prevailed as of the date of classifving the said

assets under investment properties.

Inventories
All inventories have been valued at lower of Cost or Net Realizable Value. Cost is

determined based on First im First out basis, (FIFO)
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BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

3.5

3.7

38

58

Other Assets
Other assets include Other Debtors, Receivables, Advances, Deposits and Prepayments.

fa)  Advances, Deposits, Prepaid Expenditure

Expenditure which iz deemed to have a benefit or relationship 1o more than one financial
yvear is classified as advances, deposits and prepaid expenditure. Such expenditure is
written off over the period, to which it relates, on a time proportion basis.

b Other Deb

Other debtors are recognized at cost less impairment loss, A iotal of Rs 507,650.00 is
reflected under the other recéivable as cash shoriage at Head office. The court Case still

pending.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and shori-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
o an insigmificant risk of changes in value. These are held for the purpose of meeting
shori-term cash commitments,

Cash Flow Statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared by using indirect method in accordance with
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No, 7 (LKAS) on cash flow statements.

Employee Benefits
fa) Defined Contribution Flans

Employees are ehgible for Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF) Contnbutions and
Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) Contributions in line with the respective statutes and
regulations. The Board pays fixed contributions of gross emoluments of employees to
Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees” Trust Fund and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

(h) Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment plans other than defined contribution plans.
Board is liable to pay gratuity in terms of the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, A
provision for the obligations under the Act is determined based on an actuarial valeation.

Linhilities & Provision

Liahilities & Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when there is a present legal
/eonstructive obligation as a result of the past events the settlement & which is expected
to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits,



BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

39

310

311

Obligations payable at the demand of the creditor or within one year of balance sheet date
are treated as current lisbilities in the balance sheet. Liabilities payable after one year
from the balance sheet are treated as non current liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position.

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities include other creditors including Accrued Expenditure, These are stated
at their historical value which is deemed to be their fair value.

Income Recognition

fa}  Revenug
Revenue from services/fees is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. License Fee and Agreement processing Fees are recognized on cash hasis.

b Interest Income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments including fnancial
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, are recognized within
‘Finance income” in the income statement,

fc) Cher Income
Other income is recognised on an acerual basis,

Expenses

Expenses Recognition
(a) Revemie Expenditure

All expenses are measured at fair value of the consideration given and recognized in
the period to which those expenses relate. The surplus eamed by the Board as shown in
the income statement is after providing for all known liabilities and for depreciation of
Property, Plant and Equipment,

() Capital Expenditure

Expenditare incurred for the purpose of extending or improving assets of a permanent
nature by means 1o carry on the organization or for the purpose of increasing the
service/product capacity of the orgunization has been treated as Capital Expenditure.

Taxation

Income tax is based on the elements of interest income as reported in the financial
statement and is computed in accordance with provisions of the Inland Revenue Act

No. 10 of 2006, The Board is exempt from Income Tax on profits and income, other
than profits and income from interest.
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BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

60

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" DECEMBER 2017 2016
Rs. Rs.
4 Revenue
Ground Rent 836,974,485 770,853,162
Annual Fees 717,579,891 687,405,189
Import/Export Service Charges 1,091,708,658 1,012,870,498
Net Income from Supply of Water (Note 4.1) 402 860,636 412,690,657
Land Premium 201,443,760 223,182,809
Rent Income 8,337,335 105,676,758
License Fee Sec.-16 Enterprises 30,164,743 26,353,505
Sale of Entry Permits | 83,860,944 176,197,977
Agreement/Processing Fees 50,015,830 73,869,982
Income from Housing & Other Projects 17,480,363 18,786,103
Miscellancous Income 91,435,963 97,258,706
ji'?tlﬂ..ﬁllﬂ 3,605,145.347
4.1 Net Income from Supply of Water for Enterprises
Income from Water Supply 1,334,919,915 1,257,047 009
Related Cost on Water Supply {932,059,279) (844,356,352)
Net Income from Supply of Water 402,860,636 412,690,657
3 Surplus from Operations
Surplus from Operations is stated after charging/(crediting ) all expenses
including the followings.
Operating Expenses (Note 6) 265,378,859 205,978,777
Administrative Expenses (Note 7) 2,724,737 396 2.639,675,029
Government Levies(Note §) 190,599 853 116,511,263
(ther Expenses (Note 9) 29.943,193 26,528 404
6 Operating Expenses
Investment Promotion Expenses 37,357,229 35,577,054
Maintenance of Zones 122,994,012 119,074,542
Light & Power 48,286,027 53935215
Security Services 53433317 54,218,698
Welfare Expenses to Zone Employees 3,308,275 3,173,268
IESE‘!'?B.SH' 265,978,777



BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31™ DECEMBER

7

T.1

Administrative Expenses

Personnel Cost (Naote 7.1)

Staff Welfare Expenses

Printing & Stationary

Maintenance of PM Computer & Offi. Equip.
Building Maintenance

Transport Related Expenses

Office Rent & Verification Unit Rent
Press Motifications

Water Consumption

Communication Expenses
Municipality Rates

Staff Training

Legal & Professionnl Charges
Compensation for Legal obligations
Travelling & Subsistence

Audit Fees

Impairment on Deblors

Depreciation

Personnel Cast

Board Members Fee

Chairman / Director General

Salaries & Wages - Executive StafT
Salaries & Wages - Clerical & Allied Staff
Salaries & Wages - Security Staff

Salaries & Wages - Minor Staff

Civertime

Provision for Leave Encashment

Bomus

Provision for Retirement Benefit Obligation,
Contribution to Employee's Provident Fund
Contribution 10 Emplayee's Trust Fund
Other Staff Cost

2017 2016
Rs. Rs.
1,621,713,148 1,558,555,244
225,724,124 220,044,053
20,715,558 24,783,354
40,964,380 39.219 489
81,856,531 72,706,977
99,603,533 96,092,086
47,208,987 46,504,143
7,800,380 4,078 488
4,661,753 4978312
37,851,961 37,234,821
15,907,608 B.571.820
15,855,742 13,616,305
19,012,185 40,995 850
1,800,000 -
5,832,365 5,408 600
2,400,000 1,200,000
. 21,000,456
466,730,142 444,595 022

542,000 511,000
6,674,478 7,785,476
470,013,606 470,720,307
104,084,722 105,213,509
53,547,052 52,561,153
128,005,038 131,053,882
132,002,728 114,313,570
59,438,271 55,045,813
86,227,250 48,159,291
38,515,873 36,185,587
949,579,145 88,827,364
19,915,829 17,765,476
422,987,156 430,212,816
1,621,713,148 1,558,555,244
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n

62

Government Levies
Stamp Duty
Mation Building Tax

Value Added Tax - Disallowed VAT Input

Diher Expenses
Expenses on [ssuing [dentity Cands
Sundry Expenses
Container Kev Locks
[nsurance
Environment Control Expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
Entertainment

Met Finance Income

Fimance Income

Interest Income on Call Deposits/Others
Interest Income on Staff Loans

Tatal Finance ncome

Finance Expenses
Interest on Lease

Bank Charges
Total Finance Expenses

Met Finanee Income

2017 2016

Rs. Rs.
983,155 684215
44,666,586 43,513,475
144 950,112 T2313,573
1,599,853 116,511,263
1,761,993 2.963.972
19,164,534 16,199,543
1,703,607 1,048,592
5,791,506 4,424 142
G5 B55 268,350
JR.265 2TR 147
TET.433 1,345,658
_IF##JJ!I'] 26,518 404
308,381,770 195 641 555
28,338,549 26,624,204
336,920,319 222 265,759
10,220 435 0958 480
711,124 630,457
10 540,559 10,588,937
325,979,760 211,676,522
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12

13

64

Investment Property

Balance as at 1 January

Additions during the vear

Disposals during the year

Less -Accumulated Amortization as-at 31" December
Balance as at 31" December

Capilal Work-in-Progress

(remeral Projects

Balance as at 1" January
Additions the during the year
Capitalized during the year
Refunds & Adjustments
Balance as at 31" December

Special Projects

Balance as at 1" January
Refunds

Additions during the year
Balance as at 31" December

Total Capital Work-in-Progress

M7 2016

31,172,293.810 31.356.094,597
- 26,869,116
- 210,669,903

126,945,285 110,860,380

31,045,348,525 31,061,433,429

1,210,618,370 1,034,438.160
352,180,166 293,737,713
(337,410,928) (117,409,766)
(628,146) (147,757)
1,224,759,462 1,210,618,370
229,853,282 226,304,133

- (363,320
5032732 3,912,469
234,886,014 229,853,282
1,459,645,476 1.440,471,652

Advance payments on preliminary and development expenses on Special Projects which can
not be estimated and classified initially or as at Balance Sheet date have been shown under

Capital work in progress until those projects are completed.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°' DECEMBER

14

14.1

14.2

Mon Current Financial Assely

Staff Loans & Advances {Note 14.1)
Total Non Current Financial Assets (Note 14.3)

2017 2016

Rs. Rs.
350,320,565 S18,297 444
550,320,565 518,297,444

The part less than one year of other non current financial assets is included under other current linancial

assers for Be 174,534 643/

Siall Loans & Advances

Staff Loans & Advances - Maturity part more than one year (Note 14 550,320,565

Stalt Loans & Advances - Maturity part less than one vear (Note 15)

Total Staff Loans & Advances

Financial Assistance Programme

Balance as at 1" January

Fepaid during the vear

Balance as at 31" December before Provision of Impairment
Less - Provision for Impairment

Balance as at 31" December after Provision fer Impairment
Measured at amortized cost by maturity part less than one year
Total Financial Assistance Programme

2017 2016
Rs. Rs.
518,297.444
174,534,643 160,018.228
724,855,208 678,315,672
29,560,360 46,741,333
(3,216.297) (17.180.972)
26,344,063 26,560,360
{26,344, 064) (28.646.982)
- 913,378
- 913,378
. 913,378
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4.3 Non Current Financial Assets

Loans and receivables measured at amortized cost break down by maturity date as follows,

Maturity
3naz22nm7? Between 1 After
Hs. and 05 years 005 vears
Stafl Louns & Advances 550,320,565 372,888,519 177,432,046
Total Non Current Financial Assets 550,320,565 372,888.519 I'J"?,iil.‘#l.l.'lulﬁ
Maturity
31.12.2016 Between | After
Hs. and (5 vears 5 vears
Staff Loans & Advances 518,297.443 349,733,973 168,563 465
Total Non Current Financial Assets 518,297,443 349,733,978 168,563,465
2017 2016
Rs, Rs.
15  Current Financial Assets
Measured a1 amortized cost by maturity part less than one year
Staff Loans 163,636,306 151,764,891
Staff Advances 10,898,338 8,253,338
Total Staff Loans & Advances 174,534 643 160,018,229
Financial Assistance Programme (Note 14.2) - 913,378
Investiment Held for Maturity
Fixed Deposit - State Morigage & [nvestmént Bank 6,263,246 6,048,665
Fixed Depaosit 20,000 20,000
Total Current Financial Assets 150,817,889 167,000,272
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16 Receivables from Enterprises

Receivables from Enferprises
Less-Provision for Impairment on Debtors - (Note 16.1)

16.1 Provision for Impatrment on Debiors

Balance as at 1* January
Written off during the year
Provision made during the year
Balance as at 31" December

17  Payments in Advance and Other Receivables
Advance Paymenis
Advance Peyments Foreign Travel
Sri Lanka Mission Abroad
Mobilization Advances
Prepaid Expenses
Interest Income - Receivables
Deposit Receivables
Deposit Against Pending Litigation
(ther Receivables
Less-Provision for Impairment on Deblors (17.1)

17.1 Provision for Impairment an Debiors - Other Receivables

Balance as at 1" January
Prowision made during the vear
Balance as at 31 December

2017 2016
Rs. Rs.
594,291,216 564,553,943
(349,670,032}  (304,664,041)
244,621,184 159 889,902
304,664,041 290,480,584
45,005,991 4,183,457
349,670,032 204,664,041
2,823 706 2,218,845
742,555 569,959
305,839 285,734
52,709,549 28,820,616
513,900 -
15,453,767 64,553,536
11,085,104 10,191,354
105,766,250 105,766,250
281,357,610 400, 544,092
(71,710,332)  (142,005,280)
d&ﬂll 38,042 561,945,146
7 LI}
Rs. Hs.
142,005,280 33,049 93]
(70,294 948) (18,955 349
71,710,332 142,005,180
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18 Favourable Cash & Cash Equivalents

Bank of Ceylon - Personal Branch
Bank of Ceylon - Personal Branch
Bank of Ceylon - Personal Branch
Sampath bank

Bank of Ceylon -Katunayake
Bank of Ceylon -Bivagama

Bank of Ceylon - Koggala

Bank of Ceylon - Digana

Bank of Ceylon -Avissawella
Bank of Ceylon -Ingiriva

Bank of Cevlon - Mirigama

Bank of Ceylon - Nittambuwa
Bank of Ceylon - Kurunagala
Gold Sovereign

Balance in Franking Machine

Temporary Surplus Fund - Bank of Ceylon
National Savings Bank - Staff Security Deposits

Depasit-Gratuity

Repos

Call Deposit/Other Deposits
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

19 Deferred Expenditure

2017 2016
Rs. Rs.
63,501,814 22,851,661
1,261,158 2,203,505
246,955 3,574,308
22,611 25,000
29,766,883 31,936,303
47,934,429 90,211,131
6,126,785 4,729,027
4,561,930 2418480
16,503,426 23,979,266
3,036,019 16.106,528
26,065 23,609,253
5,471,748 5,044,141
4,570,527 3,212,586
44,800 44,800
317,859 789,781
3,310,905 3,113,847
221,324 - 210,560
246,337,081

2733,000000  2,108,000,000
. 75,059,096
3.168,262,320 416,619,374

BO1 has acquired nine (%) floors of World Trade Center in 2008, the cost of interior decorations
Jcarpeting and partitions are recognized in the income stalement on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of 10 years. Amortization of Cost of zone development is recognized over

the 20 years,

Balance as at 1¥ January

Expenditure Deferred during the year
Less - Current vear expenditure
Balance as a1 317 December

68

2017 2016
Rs. Rs.
419,319,798 437,454,012
44,256,925 26,894,607
(47.683,182) {45,028,821)

415,893,541

__19.319798
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20 [referred Hevenpe

Land Peemium i N |

Cirant 0.2

2.1 Deferred Hevenoe - Land Premiom

Balance as at 1 January

Received during the year

Exchange loss

Cancelled Agreement

Recognized income through Incomse Stalements

Baltavce as a1 317 (Note 20.1.1)

2017 2016
Rs. Hs.
I5,356,994,390  15,100,455,558
13,600,041 20,413,561
15, 372,600,440  15,020,869.118
15,100,455.558 14.963.690,654
461,771,403 143,740,59]
(230,437
(1,610,046 (4,560,050}
(01,392,079)  (222.415.937)

15,158,994, 399 15,100,455 558

2011 Deferred Revenue Malurity
M.azionT Within 01 Bietween | After
Rs. T mnd (15 years 5 years
Land Fremium 15,358,904 300 301,392070 1,006,060, 354 14,150,641 525
15358 994,399  200,392.079 I e, 60,394 14,150,641,925
Maturity
022006 Within 0 Betwesn | Adfter
R, year and (1S vears & weary
Land Premium 13,100.455,358 322415937 I, HI2079.686 15,705,954 935

15,100,455,558 222415017

1,1 11.075.686

13,755,058 915

20l Deferved Revenoe - Grang

Grant from the Japneese government is recognized as Mon Cument Assets af their fair value Grant is recognized

#s income over the period o match with the depreciation expenses on those assies ane recognized.

Balonce as ar 17 January
Hecognized Income through Income Statements

Balance as ot 31° December

21 Retirement Benefil Chbligntions

Total present vakue of obligations as at 1™ January
Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Agtuarial (Gain)loss on obigations

Lss - Payments made’payable during the year
Tatal present value of defined benefits obligations

T MG
Rs. R
Z0.413.561 27,218,081
13,609,041 20,413,561
236,228,948 249,038,271
25 985 184 24 503,827
12,530,688 11,481,755
25054 518 {14 247 556)
;31.|y.sn'.r: 13-_131'34‘?_,353
iﬁilﬁh.ﬂﬂ :'jﬁ,%ws
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Rs. Rs.

Retirement Benefit Obligations (Contd. )
21.1  Expenses Recognlzed in the Income Statement,

Imterest Cost 25.985,184 24,901 827
Current Service Cost 12,530,658 11,281,759
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 25034316 {[14,247,556)
Total Expenses Retirement Benefit Obhgations 63,570,189 22,138,030

An independent actuarial valution of the retirement bepefit obligation was camied out as at 31 December 2017
by professional actuary M/S M. Poopalanathan. The valustion method  used by the Actuaries 1o value the
Retirement Benefit Obligation is = Projected Unit Credit Method®.

The Key Assumptions ased by Actusry including the following.

70

i 2006

(i) Dhscount Rate | 0% 1%

(i) Salary Increment Rate Fixed Fixed
{iii} Assumption regarding Future Mortality AlSeTT0 AT
(iv} Retirement Age 60 ¥ ears 6 Y ears

T 2016

Hs, Hs.

12 Finance Lease -
Balance as at 1" Manuary 56,660,901 57,326,624
Finonée Lease obtained durmg theyear G061 R 420 31T 380
VAT Adjustment - 1,467,345
Instullments paid during the vear (58,350,593) (32650451
Balance as at 317 December 78,928,729 56,660,907
Less - Interest in suspense {17.228.557) (11,672,072}
Capital Payable 61,700,171 44,988,830
Long - Term Bomowings falling within ong vear 13,776,989 24,808,691
Long Term Bomowings falfing after one year 47.923.182 20,180,139
Total Payvable Finance Leoss Gl, 700,171 44,988 B30

23
Aceraed Expenses and Oiher Payables
Sundry Creditors 90,216,777 53,238,525
Acoruad Expenses 214,861,337 208 565,124
Funds received for commaonwealth FDI promotion 917,160 1507, 160
Funds received for Tsunami I 163,058 I 958 830
Funds received for Flood Victims TEI058 Z
Dislog - Subsidy 232,849 .
MAS Holding - Grant 1,000,000 3
Receipts in Advance 319,418,722 2T 689,681
Refundable Deposits 113,243,633 107,263,729
Land Reservation Fees [4, 730,035 10124850
Deposit Payable 299,611,644 326,533,604
Central Environmertal Authoriny 4,760,197 4,760,197
Total Operating and Oiher Payables 1,060,917.370 093,051,918
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25

26.1

26.2

BOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 315T DECEMBER 2017 2016
Rs(Mn)  Hs(Mn)

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Surplus after Income Tax 731.37 T35.03
Depreciation 466,73 444.60
Income Tax Expense 70.76 47.34
Provision for Ret. Benefit Obligations 38.52 16,39
Acturial (Gain) / Loss 25.05 {14,25)
Provision for Imparement of Debtors (27.5%) 21.00
Impairment Written off . {1.23)
Deflered Revenue - Land Premium {201.39) (222.42)
Deffered Revenue - Grant {6.80) {6.80)
Revenue on Cancelled Agreements (1.61) -
(Profit)Loss on sale of fixed assels 0.14 {(2.97)
Investment income (336.92) {195.64)
Interest on Lease 10.23 |80
Amortization of deferred expenditure 47.68 45.03
Operating surplus before working capital changes Kl16.16 H87.87
Working capital changes

Stocks {D.28) (0.79)
Receivables from enterprises (29.74) {90,73)
Payment in advance & other Receivables (29.76) 127.21
Financial asscts (13.82) (8.58)
Accrued expenses & other pavables 67.87 169,10
Operating surplus after working capital changes 810.44 1.084.08
Related Party Disclosures

Refer Annexure |

Contingent Liabilities

The list of pending litigations aitached and actual hability of such litigations can’t be ascertained
accurately. (Annexure 1)

F'rl.'-'n’iﬁ_iﬁn for sum of Rs, 102,135,350.0d4) which has been seized by the Court in relation to case filed
by Million Garments (Pvt) Ltd., against the BOlon 01,01 2015
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Annexure |

Related Party Disclosures

Mr. Dumindra Ratnayake , Chairman - BOU has indicated that he has no transactions with BOI
enterprises fior 2017,

Mr. P B Mangala Yapa , Board Member - BOI has indicated that he has no transactions with
BOI enterprises for 2017,

Mr. Sagara Gunawardana , Board Member - BOI has indicated that he has no transactions with
BOI enterprises for 2017,

Mr. Hemantha Wickramasinghe, Board Member - BOI has indicated that he has no transaction
with BOI enterprises for 2017,

Mr. Ajit Gunawardene, Board Member — BOl has a control andfor significant influence over
the following BOI enterprises with which Business transactions were entered into with the BOI for
2017,

|, John Keells International (Pvt) Lid
2, The Colombo lee Company (Pvt) Lid
3, John Keells Computer Services (Pvt) Ltd
4. John Keells BPO Solutions Lanka (Pvt) Lid
5. Habarana Lodge Limited
6. Intemational Tourists & Hoteliers Lid
7.  Kandy Walk Inn Lid
B. Rajowells Hotels Lid
9.  Asian Hotels & Properties PLC
10. Trans Asia Hotels PLC
11, Yala Village (Pvt) Ltd
12. Beruwala Holiday Resorts (Pvt) Lid
13. Trinco Holiday Resorts (Pvt) Lid
14. Hikkaduwa Holiday Resoris (Pvt) Ltd
15. John Keells Residential Properties (Pvt) Lid
16. British Overseas (Pvt) Lid
17. Waterfront Properties (Pvt) Lid
18,  Transware Logistics (Pvt) Lid
19, South Asin Gateway Terminals (Pvt) Ltd
20. Lanka Marine Services (Pvt) Lid
21.  John Keells Logistics (Pvt) Lid
22, Saffron Aviation (Pvt) Ltd
23.  Rajawella Holding Ltd
24, John Keells Warehousing (Pvt) Ltd
25.  Mackinnons Travels (Pvt) Lid
26. Wirawila Walk Inn Ltd
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The Chairman
Board of Investment ol Sri Lanka

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Board of Investment of Sri
Lanka (BOL) for the yvear ended 31 December 2017 in terms of Section 14(2) (¢) of the Finance
Act, No. 38 ol 1971.

The audit of financial statements of the Board of Investment of Sri Lanka (“the Board™)
comprising the statéement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the statement of income
and other comprehensive income, stutement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounling policies and other explanatory
information, was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the
Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section
13(1) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 and Section 31 of the Greater Colombo Economic
Commission Law No. 4 of 1978, as amended by Act, No. 49 of 1992, My commenis and
observations which I consider should be published with the Annual Report of the Board in terms of
Section 14(2) (c) of the Finance Act appear in this reporl. A detailed report in terms of Section
13(7) {a) of the Finance Act was issued to the Chairman of the Board on 01 October 2017,

1.2 Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standerds and for such internal control as
the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are frec from material misstatements, whether due to frauds or errors.

1.3 Auditors’ Responsibility

My responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit, |
conducted my audit in sccordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards consistent with
international standards of Supreme Audit Institution (ISSAL 1000-1810). Those Standards
require that 1 comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

i P magel et Sdoopiy @ pasl fa FE . darmgee Jdf, ulbpyFess §esenn B R ekt Bl Bamisss ells. Bii Desde
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reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatements,

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selecied depend on the auditor’s
Judgments, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the financial
statements, whether due 1o froud or eror.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal contrel relevant to the Board's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial stotements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of sccounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting cstimates made by management, as well as
cvaluating the overall presentation of financial statements, Sub - sections (3) and (4) of
Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 give discretionary power to the Auditor
General o determiine Lhe scope and the oxtent of the audit. | believe that the audit evidence |
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for my audit opinion,

1.4 Basis for Qualified Opinion

My opinion is qualified based on the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this report.

L. Financial Statements
2.1. Qualified Opinion

In my opinion except for the effects of the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this repon,

the financial siatements give a true and Fair view of financial position of the Board of
Investment of Sri Lanka (BOI) as at 31 December 2017 and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

3 Comments on Financial Statements

221  Compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS)

The following observations are made.

(e} LKAS 01- Presentation of Financial Statements;- The sccounting policy, nature
and circumstances associated with the expenditure incurred for facilitation of
mfrastructure for Mega Projects which directly deducted from the accumulated fund
had not been disclosed in the financial statements.
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®) LKAS 16 — Property Plant and Equipment:- The Board had not charged the
depreciation on fixed assets in the vear of purchase. However, it had been charged in
full in the year of disposal. Hence, the depreciation for the yenr under review had
been understated by Rs. 7.866,369 in the financial statements.

(¢} LKAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures:- The Board had failed 1o disclose the
noture and value of individually <ignificant transactions which conduected with
related parties.

(d} LKAS 39 - Finuncial Instruments Recognition and Measurement:- The
impairment on long outstanding balances of staff loan had not been recognized in
the financial statements for the year under review.

2.2.2  Accounting Deficiencics

The following observations are made.

{a) An amount of Rs 209.600.000 had been shown as receivable from Cashew
Corporation of Sri Lanka in the financial statements since the year 2016, However,
the corresponding amount hed not been shown as pavable 10 the Board in the
financial statements of Cashew Corporation of Sri Lanka and this had not confirmed
to the Board too, Hence, the recoverability of that balance was doubt in audit.

(k)  The land premium income received from a private company in Horana Expon
Processing Zones (HEPZ) had been overstated by Rs. 1,410,549 and the differed
revenue had been understated by the same amount due to computalion error,

(]  Amortization on differed expenditure for the year under review had been overstated
by Rs.1,330.929 duc to computation esror,

{d)  Even though the total contract value of Rs. 930,142 relating to 3 construction works
of Mirjjawila Expon Processing Zone had been fully paid as at 31 December 2017,
these works were included in the works in progress asat 31 December 2017 without
being capitalized,
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223 Un-reconciled Differcnces

Although the provision for retirement benelit obligation for the vear under review as per
the actuarial valuation was Rs. 24,115,267, it was shown as Rs. 25,054,316 in the financial
statements. Hence, an un-reconciled difference of Rs, 939,049 was observed in andit.

224  Accounts Reeeivable and Payable

Accounts Reccivable

-

The following observations are made.

{a) The dues from BOl approved enterprises as at 31 December 2017 amounted to
R$.594,291,216 and out of this, an amount of Rs. 279,622 328 or 47 per cenl had
remained outstanding for more than two years. Further, provision for impairment on
dues from BOT approved enterprises had represented 59 per cent of the total dues as at
the end of the year under review.

(b} Annual fees receivable as at 31 December 2017 was amounted to Rs, 252,766,237 and
out of this, a sum of Re. 156,034 986 or 62 per cent had remained outstanding for over
four years. In the meantime, a provision for impairment of Rs, 221,713,312 had been
made during the year under review thereon and it representing 88 per cent of total dues
as at 31 December 2017.

Further, out of total provision for impairment annual fee receivables, a sum of
Hs.201,646,285 or 91 per cent had represented dues from 529 cancelled projects; 151

closed down projects and 75 operation suspended projects.

Out of total provisions for impairment of Rs. 349,670,032 made in the year under
review, a sum of Rs. 262,358,801 or 75 per cent representing the impairment made for
cancelled closed down and operation suspended projects as at 31 December 2017.

(e} A sum of Rs.1,604 200 receivable from a privale company which was the auctioneer of
Wathupitiwala Housing Units had remained unrecovered for over seven years and no
evidence made available 1o prove the existence of an agreement between the company
and the Board.

{d) A cash shortage of Rs. 507,650 shown under otker receivables remained unchanged for
over fourteen years.
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{e) Out of total other receivables amounting to Rs 281,357,610 as &t 31 December 2017,
an amount of Rs. 233,346,759 or 90 per ceml represented dues from Government
Ministrics and Statutory Boards. It was further observed that an outstanding balance of
Bs. 37,680,103 receivable rom government institutions had not been recovered over 4
years, Details are shown below,

Mame of the Instituiion Amount due as at
31 December 2017

Rs.
Janatha Fstnte Development Board 37 412,573
Ministry of Foreign Affairs 141,950
Sri Lanka State Plantation Corporation 125,580
Total Amount 37,680,103

EEZEZoOT oD

The receivable amount from Janatha Estate Development Board had remained
unchanged for over ten vears. However, a 100 per cent provision for impairment
on outstanding balances from Government institutions for over four years had
been made in the financial statements since failed to recover these balances even
up to 31 December 2017.

() Out of total irrecoverable siafl loan balance of Rs. 5,766,335 as at 31 December 2017, a
sum of Rs. 3,202,582 or 55 per cent had remained unsettled for over 4 years.

Accounts Payables

The following observations are made.

(a) Sundry creditors aggregating Bs. 5.913,789 had not been seitled for over 3 years.

(b} Out of retention money toialing Rs.24,405,234, an amount of Rs.7,897,111 or 12 per
cent related to 16 contracts had remained unsettled for more than three vears.

{c) Receipt in advance ageregating Rs. 10,313,595 had remained unchanged for more than
three years. No proper uctions had been ken in this regard.
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2.3 Non—compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations and Management Decisions

Instances of non-compliance observed in audit are given below.

Reference to Laws, Rules and Nom — Compliances
Regulations ete.

() Section 11 of Finance Act, No. 38 I'he Board had invested a sum of Rs. 6.807.75
of 1971 million as at 31 December 2017 without the
approval of the appropriate Minister afier
obtaining the concurrence of the Minister of

Finance,

(b} Financial Regulations 770 (2) of Fixed assets costing Rs. 3,113255 had been

the Government of the disposed during the year under review without
Democratic Socialist Republic of the approval of the accounting officer.
Sri Lanka

(e} Covernmen Procurcment The Board had organized an exhibition in the
Giuidelines 2006, theme of *BOI*s contribution 1o development of

Sri Lanka and paid Rs.7.630,000 for two privaie
companies without following the procurement
procedure

24 Transactions Not Supported by Adequate Authority

The [ollowing observations are made.

(a) It was observed that the Board had paid 7 allowances 1otaled Rs. 512,809,119 10 its
siaff after obtaining only the Board approval without being obtained proper
approvals in terms of provisions in Section 13 (2) (b) of the Board of Investment Act
No, 04 of 1978 and Public Enterprises Circular No. 95 of 14 June 1994,

(b} The directions of the Minister or the approval of the Department of Management
Services and recommendation of the Salaries and Cadre Commission had not been
obtained for the computation of Key Performance Payment (KPP) as requested by
Management Services Circular No. 39 of 26 May 2009.
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The Board had paid sn annual bonus of Rs.58,649 750 for the year 2017 at a rate of
Rs. 45,000 or one month salary whichever is higher for permanent employees and
Rs45.000 for casual and contract basis employees in contrary to the Public
Enterprises Circular No, PED 03/2017 of 1] December 2017, Hence, an overpayment
of Rs. 41,302,250 made as bonus in the year under review.

The employees of the Board enjoy three categories of loans with zero interest rate
and seven categories of loans with an interest rate of 4.2 per cent. The following
obscrvations are made in this connection.

(i) The staff loan scheme is included in the Human Resources Policy Manual of the

Board and is being implemented since the year 2007 under the approval of the
Board of Directors. The approval of the Department of Public Enterprises had
been requested by the Board for this Manual in the year 2014, However, the loan
scheme is being implemented without the approval of the Department of Public
Enterprises and the balance of stafl joans as at 31 December 2017 was
Rs.724 855,208,

(i} In addition to the above, a housing loan scheme for employees of the Board had

been introduced with effect from 09 August 1994. Accordingly, an cmployee
who has obtained a loan from a public or private bank or a lending institution for
any housing purpose is granted reimbursement of the deference between the
aciual annual interest on the loan and 4.2 per cent subject to a maximum of 20.3
per cent. A sum of Rs: 42,122,777 had been reimbursed for the sbove loan
scheme within the year under review withowt the approval of the Department of

Public Enterprises.

Financial Review

Financial Resulis

According to the financial statements presented, the operation of the Board for the vear
ended 31 December 2017 had resulted in a pre- tax net surplus of Rs.827,183,067 as
compared with the pre- tax net surplus of Rs.768,128,696 for the preceding year, thus
showing an improvement of Rs59,054371 in the financial resulis for the vear under
review. Increase of revenue and finance income by Rs. 106,717,261 and Rs.114.654.560
respectively as against the increase of total expenses by R 162,317,450 with compared 1o
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the previous vear were the main reasons atiributed for this improvement in the financial

results,

4. Operating Review

4.1 Performance

Progress of achieving the main objectives of the Board for the year under review is as

fiolbovws.

(a)  Progress of the BOA Projects

The progress of BOI Projects performed under Section 17 of the BOI Law for the year

under review and five proceeding years are given below,

Year Number of Number of
Projects for which Projects
Agreements Signed Commenced the
(New Agreements Commercial
and Expansions)  Operations (New
Agreements and
Expansions)
2017 103 iy
2016 185 73
2015 157 100
2014 160 10
2013 147 108

The following observations are made.

Number of Nomber Numberof
Projects of Projects
Suspended  Projects which
Closed  Agreements
down Cancelled
7 7 148
7 10 T8
5 27 23
0 15 56
3 16 122

(i} Number of agreements signed in the year under review had been decreased by 44
per cent as compared with the previous year.

(ii) A significant decrease in number of projects commenced the commercial operations

during the period from 2013 to 2017 is observed.

{b) Attracted Foreign Direct Invesiments

Attracted Foreign Direct Investments (FDT) during the period from 2013 to 2017 is

given below,
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Year  Annual Target as per Corporate Plan Actual Actual Achievements
2014-2016 and 2017-2020 as a percentage of the
Annual Targets
LSS Million USS Million

2017 1.000 1,710 7l
2016 5,000 201,00 16
2015 3,500 969.66 28
2014 2,500 1616.26 65
2013 1,391 1391 40 100

According to the Corporate Plan for the period of 2017-2020, the annual target of
attracting Foreign Direct Investments (FDI) for the year under review had been set out
in an abnormal manner and it was only 20 per cent as compared with the target for the
previous year. Hence, o significant increase in actual achievements for the yvear under

review was shown,

4.2  Management Activities

The following observations are made.

(a) As a result of insufficient water supply of the National Water Supply and Drainage
Board and tube well of Walupitiwela Export Processing Zone. the required water for
Enterprises had been supplied by the Board by using hired bowsers, Accordingly, the
cost per Im’ of water was Rs. 395 during the year under review. However, the Board
had charged only Rs. 75 per Im® “fwﬂwauppliﬂi to the Enterprises. Hence, a loss of
Rs. 5.280.320 had been sustained to the Board. Nevertheless, the Board had not
itroduced a proper mechanism to minimize the loss even up 1o 30 June 2018,

(b)  Fifty nine premises of Seethawaka Export Processing Zone, Koggala Export Processing
Zone and katunayaka Export Processing Zone with an extent of 53,667 square feet had
been leased out to the external parties for an annual rent of Rs.17,207.076 without
enlenng into written agreements.

fe) It was observed that the Board had not aken sctions to formulate and regularize the
policy to revise the BOI fees and charpes and to assure that all ils revenue is carned
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properly. As a result, the Board hus 1o bear the loss of revenne to be earned. The
following observations are made al the audit tesi check carried out in this connection.

(i} The BOT fees and charges are recommencled by the Rate Commitiee of the Board
and approved by the Board of Directors. Afier that these are published in the
Government Gazette. However, in most instances, the proposed fee or charge is
decided by adding some amount o the existing fee or charge by the Rate Commitiee
or the revised fee or charge is proposed by the Head of the relevant Expornt
Processing Zone and it is recommended by the Rate Committee. However, the
method of deciding the amount added to the existing fee or charge or the base used
for revision of fee or charge was not made available for audit.

(ity A part of the ground floor of the administrative building at Secthawaka Expont
Processing Zone has been rented out to the Bank of Ceylon since the vear 2003, A
rate of Rs. 30 per square feet had been charged for the period of 2003-2014 and it
was revised as Rs. 45 per square feet from 01 January 2016, However, the base
used for determine the rent was not submitted to the audit. Further, it was revealed
that, the Board had not entered into an agreement with the Bank of Ceylon in this

regard,

(iti}y The lease rental of 15 trade sialls &t Aweriwatta bus terminal and 04 trade stalls
facing 1o the Baseline road which are owned to Kaunayake Exporl Processing
Zone had not been revised since the year 2009 for over a period of eight years even
though it should be revised in every three years as per the report of the Government
Valuer,

(iv) According to the wrillen agreement entered into between the Board and a private
bank branch at Kandy Industrial Park on 02 September 2004, the annual ground
rent should be revised in every three years. However, it was observed that the
ground rent had not been revised as per the agreement.

(d)  Ceylon Steel Corporation Ltd, known as Ceylon Heavy Industries and Construction
Company Ltd. had entersd into an sgreemient with the Board on 07 May 1998 to
modernize and upgrade the existing factory at Athurugiriva. Subsequemly, a
supplementary agreement had been entered into between two partics on 03 June
2011 w modemnize and upgrade the existing factory under the Strategic
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Development Project Act No. 14 of 2008. The following observations are made in

this connection.
(i} The company had not introdoced additional range of products as agreed.

{ii)  Although it was agreed 1o increase the cxisting production capacity 1o 250,00 MT,
the production capacity of the company had not increased to 250,000 MT by 2015,

Details are given below.
Year Production Capacity (MT)
2001 78,847
2012 138,197
2013 132,765
2014 181,417
2015 169,521

{iti} Although the Board had granted relieves such as ten vear tax holiday, impori tax
concessions, custom duty exemptions ete. to the company, the Board had fmled to
carryout close monitoring with regard 10 non-fulfillment of terms and conditions in
the supplementary agrecment.

4.3  Operating Inefficicneics

4.3.1 Operation of Export processing Zones (EPZ), Industrial Parks (IP) and Regional
Offices

—

It was observed that the [ollowing Export Processing Zones had continuously sustained

losses over number of years due to excessive administrative expenses,

Name of the Zone Predax Surplus ADeficit) for the Year

2017 16 2015 2014 2013 2012

Rs. 000" Rs, 000" Rs. 000" Rs. 000" Rs 000" Rs. 000

Koggala Export (12,547) (10,903) @7,108) (40,781) (14,0500 (11.775)
Processing Jone
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Wathupitiwala Export  (16,911)  (9,062) (3,323) TIT (2969 (1.767)

Processing fone

Malwaththa Export (4.824) 02 (1.914) (4376) (2.748) (5.531)
Processing Park

Mirijjawila Industrial ~ (16.044)  ({4,828) 1,256  (8.,384) 6,334 0.5
Park

4.4 Tdentified Losses

The Board had acquired & land at Keragala on 23 January 2004 1o develop an Export
Processing Zone (EPZ) and the Board had agreed to pay a monthly allowance of Rs. 3,000 to
Rs.6.000 lor 08 terminated employees who worked in the land as labourers at the time of
acquisition of the land on sympathetic ground until the land is developed as an EPZ with the
intention of providing job opportunities in the industries to be set up in the zone, However,
the establishment of EPZ had been delayed due to various reasons and the Board had decided
to suspend the payment of allowances to those workers. As a result, 06 workers of them had
made a complaint againsi the Board ot the Office of the Assistant Commissioner of Labour
by demanding their arrears amouni. Finally, both parties came into an agreement for an
amicable settlement of the dispute under the Industrial Dispute Act and the Board had 1o be
deposited an amount of Rs, 1 800,000 as compensation at the Office of the Assistant
Commissioner of Labour, Gampaha on 12 July 2017.

4.5 Resources Relensed to Oither Dastitutions

The following observations are made.

(a} In contrary to Sections 8.3.9 and 9.4 of the Public Enterprises Circular No. PED 12 of
U2 June 2003 on Public Enterprises Guidelines for Good Governance, three employees
of the Board had been released to the Ministry of Development Strategics and
International Trade and incurred a sum of Rs, 4,629,590 as salaries and overtimes for
the year 2017,
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(b} The vehicle bearing No. 54-3315 which was owned to the former Ministry of Policy

Planning and Implementation is being used by the Board over a period of 10 years.
However, the Board had not taken action to take over the vehicle to the Board even up
o 31 December 2017, The Board had incurred a sum of R3.290,610 as maintenance cost
of the vehicle during the year 2017,

(¢} Twelve vehicle parking passes for parking facilities at the World Trade Center had been

provided to the Minisiry of Development Strategies and International Trade by the
Board for the vear under review and a sum of Rs.720,000 had been spent thereof.
However, The Board had failed to reimburse this expenditure from the Ministry even up
to 31 December 2017,

{d} Fixed assets of the Board with a cost of Rs.3,823,250 had been released to the Ministry

4.7
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of Development Strategies and Intemational Trade, without obtaining proper approval,

Human Resources Management

The following observations are made.

(@) Sixty four (64) Management Assistants (Non-Technical) and hundred and twenty six
(126) Primary Level Employees arc in excess as compared with the approved cadre
as at 31 December 2007 as result of recruiting ninety six (96) employces on contract
basis and hundred and three (103) emplovees on casual hasis without considering
the actual human resources requirements of the Board. Further, prior approval from
the Department of Management Services had not been obtained for these
recruifments.

{b) Nine (09) managerial level posts had been filled on acting basis as at 31 December
2017. Further, according 1o the Finagce Circular No. 124 of 24 October 1997 ol the
Ministry of Finance and Planning, covering up duties of a vacant post should be
Hmited 1o a period of 03 months, 08 officers had been assumed for cover up duties
of the vacant posts for & period ranging from 06 months 10 51 months as at 31
Dccember 2017,

(e} A succession plan for the fuure buman resources requirements had not been
prepared by the Board even as o 31 Docember 2017,
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8. Achievement of Sustainable Development Goals

All government institutions should carry out their duties sccording to the “Agenda™ 2030 of
the United Nations as agreed by the members of the United Nations in the month of
September 2015, Accordingly, the Board had identified the Goals No. 08, 09 and 17 as
related 1o its day to day activities, However, the targets together with milesiones in
achieving those targets, and indicators for evaluating the achievement of such targets had
not been set out by the Board.

6. Aceountability and Good Governance

6.1  Action Plan

The following observations are made in connection with the Action Plan prepared for the
vear 2017.
(i)  Action Man had not been prepared in line with the Corporate Plan of the Board.

(it} Outputs or indicators had not been set out as enable to measures the progress of the
pared activities.

(ili) Thirty one activities and thirty six activities with the allocation of Rs. 219.65 million
and Rs. 155.3 million respectively which planned to complete during the yvear 2017
had not been completed or commenced during the year as scheduled in the Action
Plan.

6.2 !‘.win:uuunt and Social Humuslhht:.r

TIH: following observations are m&dc in connection with the impact on the environment
from the activities of the Board,

(i)  An apparcl industry in Seethawaka: Expori Processing Zone and the Seethawaka
Export Processing Zone are being operated since April 2013 and 31 December 2010
respectively without obtaining the Environment Protection License due to non-
comply with the standards of the Central Environmental Authority.

(i)  According o the leld inspection carricd out in the Secthawaka and Bivagama
Export Processing Zones on 06, 09 and 19 of July 2018 the following observations
are made.
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# An environment friendly mechanism for disposing the factory waste had not been
introduced. Hence the solid waste of the factories is dumped in an open area
within the Zone in a way of harmful to the Environment,

# Tremted water of the Seethawaka Export Processing Zone is released 1o a pond
situated near the waste water treatment plant. However, as a result of overflow of
the treatment plant in the rainy periods, the waste water is mixed with the treated
water of the pond and passed to the niver.

Procurement Plan

Although the Master Procurement Plan had been prepared by the Board for the year 2017,
it had not been approved by a responsible officer and the following observations are also
made in connection with the Procurcment Plan prepared as per Procurement Guidelines
2016.

(i) Procurement activities envisaged at least for a period of three years had not
been listed in the Master Procurement Plan According to Guideline 4.2.1 (h).

{ii)  The Masier Procurement Plan had not been regularly updated at intervals not
exceeding six months according to Guideline 4.2.1 (¢).

(1} Al the sample audit check camied out, it was revealed that Procurement Time
Schedule for 28 procurement activities out of 31 activities carried oul during the
year 2017 had not been prepared and 03 procurement activities for which the
Procurement Time Schedules had been prepared were not complied with
Guideline 4.2.2 (b),

(iv)  Hundred and ninety six procurement activities completed during the vear had not
been included in the Master Procurement Plan.

(v) Twenty onc procurement sctivitics with an estimated cost of Rs. 272.63 million
planned w perform during the year 2017 had not been completed during the vear,
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Delayed Projects

The initial concept for consiruction of Proposed Main Entrance Building at Seethawaka
Export Processing Zone had been formulated in the year 2011 in order 10 accommodate
container checking and basic facilities for security and custom staff. This activity had been
included in the Master Procurement Plan and scheduled to complete as at 31 December
2017 as well as it was included in the Action Plan of the Board for the year 2017, Although
the investors, service providers and emplovees are facing difficulties in the absence of
proper building at main gate, the construction of the proposed building was delayed up to
the end of the year under review.

Budgetary Conirols

Significant variations were observed between the budgeted and the actual figures, thus
indicating that the budget had not been made use of as an effective instrumemt of
management control.

Unresolved Audit Paragraphs

(a) The Board had granted permission to investmenl companies to mortgage its
leasehold nights and interests in the demised premises and the buildings thereon and
all plant, machinery and fixtures permanently fastened to the demised premises to
any Bank and / or Credit Institution by way of signing tripartite agreement. The
following observations are made in this connection.

(i) Some of companies ended up with liquidation by defaulting loans obtained
[rom financial institutions.

(ii)  The Board had to bear the loss of depriving the land value, opportunity cost
of idling land and dues to be receivable 1o the Board due to unsettled issues

relating to mongaged properties.

(iif} ~ The Perth Estate in Maputugala, Horana had been leased out to Vidyodaya
Ayvuvedic Medical College Pyvt. Lid. The said property had been mongaged
o the People’s Bank thereby obtaining a loan amount of Rs. 5 million.
Furthermore, & tripartite agreement had not been entered into in obtaining the
said lean. The property had been acquired by the bank on 12 May 2013 due
to fuilure in paying the loan, and it had been decided to sell the property in
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public auction. Although a new investor had agreed 1o purchase the leased
property in the year 2014, an agreement had not been entered into between
the Board and the new investor even up 1o 31 May 2018,

(b}  The Board had purchased the Perth Estate and a part of the estate had been handed

(ch
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over to the Sri Lanka State Plantation Corporation (SLSPC) for a period of 5 vears
from the year 1999 for management, Subsequently, it had been extended up to OB
December 2006.

The following observations are made in this connection.

(1) According to the financial statements presented for the year 2006, the total
amournt receivable from Sri Lanka State Plantation Corporation relating to the
Perth Estate amounted to Rs. 16.47 million. However, the Board had not identified
and reported the correct amount reccivable from the Sri Lanka State Plantation
Corporation even up to 31 December 2017.

(ii)  Motor vehicle rent and bungalow rent amounting to Rs.12.42 million had been
irregularly transferred 1o the contractor’s account through the current accounts.

{iii)  Although the extent of the land purchased by the Board from the Sri Lanka State
Plantation Corporation was 1563 acres () roods 24.74 perches, according o the
survey report, the extent of the land owned by the Board of Investment was 1435
acres 3 roods 25.03 perches. Accordingly, the difference of 127 acres 0 roods
39.71 perches had been identified by the Board, whereas the Board has not taken
action up to 31 December 2017 1o take over the said extent of lands.

A private company was eolered into an agreement with the Board on 14 August 1992
under Section 17 of the BOI Law 1o set up and operate a businéss of manufacture and
export of apparct and other textiles. On 05 November 1992 the Board had terminated the
agreement and requested investing company to transfer all buildings and machineries
thereon to the Board with the agreed compensation. Since the Board had failed to pay
compensation as agreed, the matter was referred to the Sri Lanka National Arbitration
Centre and the award was made on 07 August 2000 to pay a sum of Rs. 23, 835,535 as
full and final senlement. Upon payment of the said sum, the enterprise filed an
application in High Court of Colombo bearing HC/ARB/1254/02 under Section 31 of the
Arbitration Act w enforce an arbirral award seeking a further payment of Rs, 37,200,000
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from the Board. As per the judgment delivered by the High Court on 14 May 2012, the
Board was liable to pay Rs. 102,138,350, On 22 December 2014 the Registrar of the
Commercial High Court has given an order 1o seize BOC account bearing number
1431688 for the amount of Rs. 102,138,330 since the Board failed 10 comply with the
High Court decision. However, on 01 January 2015 an amount of Rs.102,138,350 had
been deposited by the Board in a bank account of the High Court. The Board filed a case
againsi the judgment and the case was in progress even as at 31 December 2017,

(d) The Board had terminated an employee of the Board on several malpractices and the
employee filed a case in the Labour Tribunal Colombo, against the decision of
termination. As per the order delivered by Labour Tribunal the Board had to deposit
Rs. 3,627,900 as compensation al the Labour Tribunal Colombo on 22 August 2016,
Thereafier, the Board had appealed against the judgment given by the Lubour Tribunal
Colombo and the case is in progress even as at 51 December 201 7.

{e} According to the Cabinet Decision No.l2/356/504/045 dated 22 March 2012, the
approval was granted to transfer a land with an extent of 818 acres at Sampoor,
Trincomalee 10 the Board to develop a heavy industrial zone. The land was granted to the
Board by then President of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka on free of charge.
The Board had granted approval to relcase funds up to a sum of Rs.347,130,000 to the
Divisional Secrctary, Muthur for the construction of 1218 houses for relocation of families
who have been affected due 1o the acquisition of the land. Accordingly, a sum of
R5.20,000,000 had been paid to the Divisional Secretary, Muthur as a part payment on 01
Augusi 2014, However, the land granted 1o the Board for the project had been revoked by
a notice published in the Gazette Extraordinary No. 1913/19 of 07 May 2015. The Board
had not taken action 1o recover the amount paid from responsible parties even up 1o 31
December 2017,

(D A land named Maliduwakanda Estate with an extent of 122 acres 01 roods 274 perches,
purchased by the Board on 23 Jasuary 2004 ot cost of Rs. 97,937,000 had not been
utilized for any purpose up to the end of June 2018. According 10 the fixed assel register,
the book value of this land as st 31 December 2017 was Rs.100, 800,000,
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(g) The balance of Tsunami Relief Fund and funds received for Commonwealth FDI
Promotion amounting to Rs. 1,163,958 and Rs. 917,160 respectively remained unchanged
even up (o the end of the year under review without being utilized for intended purposcs,

(h) The proposal of improvements 1o Common Sewage Treatment Plant at wathupitiwala
Export Processing Zone was made in the year 2009. Accordingly. it was decided to
increase the capacity of the plant from 400 m’ per day to 630 m® per day. On 14 May
2016, the company which provides the maintenance service of the treatment Plant had
informed the Board that increasing of plant capacity 1o meet the waste water discharge
volume is very much essential as the insufficient capacity of the plant has heavily
affected to the smoeoth operation and maimtenance of treatment plant and high prionty
should be given to meet the treated waste waler guality standards of the plant outlet. The
Technical Evaluation Commitiee had been appointed on 03 August 2016, However it
was observed that the project had not been completed even up to 31 May 2018.

(i) Committee On Public Enterprises (COPE) held on 05 May 2017 had directed the Board 1o
take steps to create an incentive payment system in consistent o their contribution to the
performance of the institute s cost of the stafl has been increased compared to the total
cosl. However it was observed that the Board had not followed the COPE direction.

Systems and Controls

Weaknesses in systems and controls observed during the course of audit were brought 1o the
notice of the Chairman of the Board from time to time. Special attention is needed in
respect of the following areas of control.

Areas of Systems and Controls Observations

Control over Personnel Emoluments  The Boand had not iaken proper approvals for staff
allowances such as professional allowances, monthly
transport allowances and Key Performance Paymenis
elc.

Collection of Ducs from Enterprises  As the several procedures had been followed by the
Board, it has been unable to recover the outstanding
balances from BO1 approved enterpriscs.
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The procurement plan had not been made use of as an
effective instrument of management control.

The Board has no proper mechanism to classify ils
properties correctly.
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BUOARD OF INVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

Inve for the vear ended 31 Dece ]
Section 14{2){c) of the Finance Act No. 38 of 1971

2.2 Comments on Fipancial Statements

2.2.1 Compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS)

{a) LKAS 01 - Presentation of Financial Statements

BOT has disclosed significant accounting policies & other aceounting policies
wherever it is required. Accounting policies have been disclosed assessing the
transactions which could influence the economic decisions of users & which are
material, Expenditure on Mega Projects has been directly deducted from the
Accumulated Fund as the size & nature of this transaction is nol molerial as a
determining factor 10 be disclosed separately,

by LKAS 16 - Property Plant and Equipment

The depreciable amount of an Asset has been allocated on o systematic basis
aver its useful life, to simplify the Fixed Assets Module & to be compatibie wath
the IMAS. Further, Board has adopted present depreciation policy based on
LEKAS 16.

ic) LKAS 24 — Related Party Disclosures

Moted.

() LKAS 39 — Financial Instruments Recognition and Measarement

MNobed.

2.2.2 Accounting Deficiencies

(a) Land known as former Cashew Corporation premises was vested under the Act

of Underperforming Enterprises or Underutilized Assets. The book value of the
land is  Rs. 209.600,000/- and the Cabinet of Ministers has approved to transfer
this land to UDA.

Further, the Compensation Tribunal has determined the compensation to be paid
to BOI as Rs. 423,360,000/~ based on the valuation of Government Chief
Valuer.

jnancial Statements of the Board of
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Considering above information, the book value has been shown under other
receivables to give legal effect to the above transaction.

(b) Agreed.
Action has been taken to adjust the sccounts,

(c) Noted.

{d) Necessary action will be taken to capitalize the balances during the year 2018,

2.2.3 Un-reconciled Differences

Agreed. Action has been aken to adjust the accounts.

2.2.4 Accounis Receivable & Payvahle

Accounts Receivable
(a) Noved.
It is pertinent to note that the average recovery rate of the BOI is around 98%
and the details are given below:
27 2016 2015
Total revenue of the Board 4 644 4440 35990
Dhges fess than one vear 247 67 27
Average Recovery Percentage 5% A% 8%

Further, out of total dues as at 31.12.2016, a sum of Bs. 217 459,654/- has been
recovered during year 2017,

(b} Noted. :

Accounting policy adopted by BOI for provision for impairment is to provide

100% for dues of cancelled, closed & operation suspended projects and dues
gver tWio vears,

{c) BOI had awarded the contract of auctioning houses at Wathupitiwala Export
Processing Zone 1o the auctioneer, M/t Dunstan Kelanrt, Selection of the
auctioneer was made through the paper advertisement and subsequent decisien
of the Procurement Committee. The auction was completed successfully and
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the bidders who obtained houses had paid their advance money to the
auctioneer. However, the auctioneer had failed o deposit that amount to the
BOL.

The BOI had made effort to get this amount of Rs.1,604 200/- to the BOI and
the Legal Department of the BOI has sent Letters of Demand to M/s Dunstan
Kelaart, whereas the Letters of Demand were returmed back as the Business was
closed and the owner has [eft the country.

On instructions of the Audit Committee, the officers of the BOI met the Director
of the Fraud Investigation Burcan to check the possibility of filing a case against
M/s Dunsian Kelaart,

The matter has been referred to the Attormey General's Department on
31.08.2016. Semior Siate Counsel mformed that a draft opinion is ready.
However, they sought further clanification with regard to payments and
execution of title deeds. Relevant Officials have been informed to provide
required information and which is awaited. Attorney General’s Department will
release their advice upon submission of the same.

(d} Misappropriation of cash of BOIl a! Baron Javathilake Mawatha Office was
happened on 06021995, The personnel who had involved in  the
misappropriation was dismissed on 04051995, CID is handling this case at
High Court under HC/12146/06,

{2} Dues from Government Ministries and Statutory Boards
Janatha Estate Development Board (JEDB)

The Secretary, Ministry ol State Resources and Enterprise Development has
informed the BOI by his letter dated 13.10.2014 that the amount will be set off
when JEDB property at No.175, Vauxhall Swreet, Colombo 2 is released 1o BOL
Investment Appraisal Department of BO1 informed that the mixed development
project which is 1o be located in the land at Vauxhall Street has not been
implemented wet, due to a pending issue with regard 1o the land releasing

process.

As a result the settlement of dues from JEDB is still pending.
A reminder was sent to JEDB requesting 1o seitle the owstanding amount as this
i5 a long oulstanding issue.

Ministry of Foreign Affairs

The Consular Affairs Division of Ministry of Foreign Affairs was housed in the
3 4% 58 foors of the BOI building t Sir Baron Jayathilake Mawatha on 2
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lease agreement. A vault room which was used by the BOI was also at the 4™
floor of the building and the key of the vanlt was not handed over to the
Ministry of Foreign Affairs. Therefore, the Ministry had retained part of the rent
until the key of the vault was handed over to the Ministry.

Sri Lanka State Plantation Corporation {SLSPC)

Board approval was granted at its 288" meeting held on 14.02.2012 1o deposit
Rs.125,580/- a1 the Office of the Assistant Commissioner of Labour/Panadura in
favour of the former Superintendent of Perth Estate, by the BOI withow taking
steps to appeal apgaingt the order of the Leamed President of Labour Tribunal,
Kalutara, for claiming re-instatement with back wages until the age of 60 years
or compensation of Rs.864,683/10.

BOI requested SLSPC by the letter dated 12.06.2014 to reimburse the deposit.

In compliance with SLFRS, 100% provision has been made for likely bad debts
more than two vears as all efforts to recover these dues have failed.

Even though it was mentioned thai a sum of Rs. 3,202,582 had remained
unsettled over 4 years, it reveals as per the records that the actual due amount
over 4 years 15 Rs. 1,052,413.31. Action has already been taken to recover the
vehicle loan balance of Rs. 254.697.33 over (M years from the respective
sureties. Further, the loan balances amounting to Rs. 764,769.78 over (4 years
are due from four employees who are under interdiction and action will be taken
to recover the said due amount on the conclusion of their disciplinary cases.
Balance loan amount over four years will be recovered from the sureties in due
COUTSE.

Accounts Payvahle

(@) Noted.

(b} Arrangements will be made 1o notify/clarify the outstanding retention payments

pertaining to relevant contracts and afier obtmining the concurreénce of the
contractors arrangements will be made to seitle retention payments or if
otherwise same will be taken as income 1o the BOIL accounts.,

ic) Noted.
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{a) Noted. We have inttaled action to obtain the Minister's approval.

(b} Fixed Assets amounting to Rs.3,113.255 had been disposed according to the
procedures laid down in the Financial Manual.

() Exhibition held for 40" Anniversary of the Open Economy from 27 w 31 of July
200°T;

Due to extremely short timelines to exccute the above project, permission to
deviate from the general procurement process has been requested and granted
from/by the Board of Directors, and the related expenses have been approved by
the Mimistry Procurement Committee.

Following expenses were approved;

= Design work, fabricating & installation, hiring of equipment:
M/s: Gravitas Infegrated Holdings (Pvt) Lid - Rs, 7,405,000/ (excl. VAT)

*  Installation of 3m x 6m cubicles:
M/s M.W. Ventures International (Pvt) Ltd - - Rs. 225 000/-

Communication received from the Prime Minister’s Office and the Ministry of
Development Strategies & International Trade dated 13.07.2017 and 25.07.2017
regarding the above exhibition snd subsequent approvals oblamned from the
Board of Directors of BOT as well as the Ministry Procurement Commitiee are
attached herewith (PL Refer Annexure I).

2.4 Transactions not Supported by Adequate Authority

{a) As the apex agency of the government promoting and Facilitating loreign direct
mvestment ‘and private sector capital formation in priorty sectors of the
economy, the BO1 has made a siglliﬁcant contribution to develop the cconomy
of the country from its inception in year 1978 and the workforce of the BOT has
made a huge contribution by giving their maximum capacity to the organization
in achieving its corporate objectives.

BOI should have highiy qualified and motivated stail 1o achieve its Hh‘jﬂl."!i‘l'l:.‘h
In order to motivate & retain the existing staff in the organization as well as

attract highly qualified staff to the organization, BOI salary scales were kept
higher when compared to those in the public service and ‘other state owned
organizations at the time of its estabhshment. In addition, vanious allowances/
payments were approved for BOI employees by various authorities from its
inception (e.g. HLE, the President, Secretary to the Treasury, Board of Directors,
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Government Circulars, etc.) and the said allowances’ payments have been
continued.

L]

Approval of the Board of Directors was granted for the Transport Allowance
at its meeting held on 06.11.1990. H.E. the president has granted approval
for the Tramsport Allowance on 08.11.1996. Further, the above Transport
Allowance was included in to the Human Resource Policy Manual of the
BOI which was approved by the Board of Directors on 20.03.2007.
Approval for the Human Resources Policy Manual of the BOI was reguested
from the Department of Public Enterprises on 10.03.2014,

Attendance Incentive Scheme operated in the BOl was approved by the
Beard of Directors on (46.11.19% and approved by the Her Excellency the
President on 08.11.1996. It had been replaced by the Key Performance
Payment (KPP) Scheme which evaluates emplovee’s punctuality,
accomplishments and personal traits as per the COPE directives. Said KPP
Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors on 29.10.2013.
Approval for the Key Performance Scheme was requested from the
Depariment of Public Enterprises by letter (Ref EC/I2Z/EST/192) dated
03.06.2014 and they have referred this matter for the observations of
Department of Management Services by letter (Ref. PE'NBE/BOLPR) dated
19.06.2014,

Encashment of unutilized medical leave was compiled in the BOI leave
regulations and approved by the Board of Directors on 11.12,1979. Further,
the above leave encashment was included in to the Human Resource Policy
Manual of the BOI which was approved by the Board of Directors on
200,03, 2007, Approval for the Human Resources Policy Manual of the BOI
was requested from the Department of Public Enterprizes on 10.03.2014,

Management of the BOIl has decided to pay a Hardship Allowance to the
employees who are attached 1o Minjjawila EPZ considering the difficulties
they have to encounier being employees of the particular Zone. Approval of
the Board of Directors was granted for the Hardship Allowance at its
meeting held on 13.05.201 6.

Personal Assistant to the Chairman was paid a Special Allowance for duties
a5 Agsistant to the Board's Secretary in addition to her routine office work in
the Chairman's Office and for coordination of Board Papers & Board
Decisions, Chairman had grarted approval for the said payment. However,
she has resigned from the service of the Board on 24.07.2017.

An Assistant Director attached to Investment Appraisal Department is paid a
Special Allowance for the additional duties and special assignments given
by the Director General in addition to core duties in the lnvestment
Apprmsal Department. Director General has granted approval for the sud
payment.

As a mark of appreciation of the dedicated service rendered by the
employees of the BOL to the organization to reach its ehjectives, anniversary



BOARD OF INNESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

payments were made on the occasions of 20, 25%, 30% 350 gnd 40
anmiversanies of the BOL.

»  Board of Directors al its 325" meeting held on 07" July 2015 has approved
the payment of the Special Allowance to the Executive Staff comprising of
Junior, Middle and Senior Managers as per the Public Administration
Circular No.18/2015 of 26™ June 2015.

(b) Board of Directors at its 347" meeting held on 06.10.2016 has granted approval
o revise the payment method of KPP allocating a higher weight for
performance of emplovees which is more beneficial to the organization with no
increase in the cost. Approval for the Key Performance Payment Scheme was
requesied from the Department of Public Enterprises by letter (Rel
EC/12Z/EST/192) dated 03.06.2014 and they have referred this matter for the
observations of Department of Manogement Services by letter (Ref
PENBE/BOIPR) dated 19.06.2014,

(¢) The basic criteria for bonus had been as follows:
{1} The organization should eam profit

(i1} The approval of the Board of Directors should be oblained for the payment
of bonus

(iii) The annual accounts of the organization should be submitied to the
Auditor General on or before the duc date

{iv)  Provisions are not provided by the Treasury for the payment of bonus

As the BOI has fulfilled the above critena and having considered the net surplus
for the nine (09) months ended on 30.09.2017, the Board of Directors at its 367"
meeting hield on 10.11.2017 has granted approval o pay Rs 45,000/~ or one
month's salary whichever is higher for the permanent emplovees and Rs.
45 000y~ for casual & contract emplovees of the BOI as the bonus for the year
2017,

(d} (1 & ii)

All the Loen Schemes of the BOLwere implemented from its inception with the
approval of the Board of Directors and the said benefits have been enjoved by
the emplovees to-date,

Subsequently, all the loan schemes were included in to the Human Resource
Policy Manual of the BOl which was approved by the Board of Directors on
20.03 2007. Approval for the Human Resources Policy Mamual of the BOT was
requested from the Department of Public Enterprises on 10.03.2014.
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Fi ial

Moted,

Operating Review
Performance

(a) Progress.of the BOI Projects

(i) The key objective of the BOI is to attract gquality, sustaimable, high value
Foreign Direct Investment to the country. Therefore, mere count of number
of agreements signed will not indicate the clear picture of the investment
attracted (o the country in the particular vear. Although the mumber of
agreements signed in 2016 is higher than 2017, the estimated investment is
much higher in 2017.

Est. Investment of Agreement signed in 2016: USS 2,187 Mn.
Est. Invesiment of Agréement signed in 2017: US$ 3,462 Mn.

{it) Projects get delayed to stant its commercial operation due (o various reasons
bevond the control of the BOI, as the investor needs to get various approvals
such as land clearance, Environmental clearance, approvals from UDA,
Local Government etc. prior to commencement of operations. In addition,
suspension of tax holidavs and introduction of cut-off dates o bring
investments by the Inland Revenue Law in 2014 also delayed
commencement of operation of projects.

(b) Atrmgted Forgign Direct Investmenis

The current Corporate Plan is for the period 2017 — 2020. The targers given in
this Corporate Plan 201 7-2020 was stated in 2 scenarios due to the uncertainty
and the non-availability of incentive package from 2014-2018.

Scenario | : Continue with the present investment climate,
Scenario 2 @ 'With the improved investment climate by fulfilling the
requirements to attract investment refemred in the section

titled “Essential requirement to achieve BOT targets”
(Section G).

. FDI Targets (USS Bn.)

017 2018 29 2020
Scenano | 1 1.6 1.8 2
Scenano 2 1 2.5 3 3
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However, due to the large scale infrastructure projects such as CHEC Port City
and Hambantota Port Development project, 8ri Lanka could attract USS 1.7 Bn
FDI for the year 2017 which exceeded the target of USS | Bn, Accordingly, we
have now decided to achieve USS 2.5 Bn in 2018 as per the targets set in
Scenario 2,

4.1 Management Activities
{a) Noted.

(b} Building, premises and stores being leased out without wrilten agreemenis;

EPZAP | Name of Lessee Hemarks

SEPE Bank of Ceylon Draft Lease Agreement has  been issued oo
19102016 and revised drafi on 16.01.2018.
N Awatling twign the agreschont .
SEPZ | American & Efird | Drafi Lease Agreement was issued 1o the Company
Lanka (Pvt) L1d on 19.10.2016 which was collected on 10.08.2017.
Awaiting to sign the agrecment,
KgEPZ | Koggala Garments | Lease Agreement was signed on 07.10.2010 for o
[Pty Lid period of three (03) years. Necessary action will be
taken to rencw the agreement.

Arrangements have already been made to sign the agreements for the BOI
premises at KEPZ which have been leased oul based on acceptance of letter of
award without written agreement and the same 15 being processed. Also, please
note that the relevant lessees are running their businesses in accordance with the
rules and regulations mentioned in the letter of awerd and monthly rentals are
paid without long outstanding.

(c) BOI Rates and Charges

(i) Now apolicy for revision of BOI Fees & Charges has been established with
the approval of Board of Directars.

(i1} The charges applicable was baSed on the approved rates for year 2016,

The first drafi agreement has been sent to the Bank of Cevlon on 077
October 2003. Thereafter. from time to time amended drafis have been
exchanged between the parties with vanous amendments. The location has
been changed in November 2015 and again several drafts have been
exchanged with amendments, After several reminders, on 05™ July 2017,
Bank of Ceylon has paid the processing fee and collected the draht

agregment.
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Thereafter the draft agreement has been amended several times. Based on
the amendments prepared by the Legal Department of Bank of Ceylon and
as per the letter dated 24™ November 2017 issued by the Senior Deputy
Director (SEPZ) of BOI, a revised draft was issued by the Legal Depariment
on 16% January 2018, BOI is now awaiting the confirmation from the Bank
of Ceylon 1o sign the Lease Agreement.

(iii ) The attempts made by the BOI to increase the rentals of the trade stalls at
Averiwatte Bus Terminal with effect from 10.02.2009 as per the
Government Chief Valuer's valuation report dated 04.11.2008 were
unsuccessiul. Subsequently, the proposed rentals were reduced by the
Government Chief Valuer on the request made by the BOI, considering the
appeals of the respective lessees,

Considermg the: following reasons, BOI had not amived at a decision to

increase the lease rentals of the said trade stalls every three vears as

proposed by the Government Chief Valuer;

*  Recovening monthly rentals had also become a cumbersome exercise and
the dilliculty to implement the revisions ol the Jease renitals

= Declining of their businesses targeted o the zonal worker community
and the direct employment of the enterprises of KEPZ was gradually
decreasing (eg: December 2009 - 43048 nos. and August 2015 - 38226
nos.

= Repairs and maintenance of the trade stalls were totally attended by the
Lessees al their own cost,

=  Uncertainty of holding the agreements entered with the respective
Lessees of the aforesad trade stalls under the Acro City Development
Programme that was seriously discussed in vear 2014

However, action would be initiated to obtain a valuation and compare with
existing rates and make recommendations to the Rates Committee of BOI [in
respect of item nos. 4.2(c)(ii) & (1ii) above].

{iv)Noted.

(d} Ceylon Steel Corporation Lid {E'SC‘L}

(i) “CSCL has confirmed by the letter dated 22.09.2017 that it J:um:nt!y consists
with all required machinery, equipment and technology in respect of
manufacturing steel fabrication. [t has also been stated that manufacture of
steel Babrication has been hmited to internal use due to high manufacturing
cost and low market demand.

(i1} CSCL has also indicated that capecity hes been enhanced to meet the
production requirement of 250,000 Mts. However, it has been stated there is
no market requirement for such a quantity.
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(i1 )CSCL has signed a Supplementary Agreement with the BOI on (13.06,201 ]
under the Strategic Development Projects Aot No. 14 of 2008 as amended,
with approval granted by the Cabinet of Ministers granting concessions such
as income tax exemptions, Customs Duty exemptions and other benefits.

43 Operating Ineflicicncs

4.3.1 Operation_of Export Processing Zones (EPZZ). Industrial Parks (IFP)
and Regional Offices (ROQ)
Koggala Export Processing Zone

= Drop in revenue is mainly due to loss of Bs.4.9 Mn from supply of water
for enterprises. Most of the wastages in water supply network has been
rectified and thereby revenue has gradually increased in the latter part of
the year 2017, Actions have been taken to reduce the water loss further to
increase the income.

= High administrative expenses in KgEPZ is mainly due fo excessive staff
and maximurmn efforts will be taken to make the situation favourable based
O management instructions,

Waikiupitiwals B p o 7
@ Shortage of Water

e e r

Dhaily water requirement of the zone is more than 1000m’ and the agreed
quantity from National Water Supply & Drainage Board is 700m’/day.
250m*/day is obtained from the tube well at the zone.

However, NWS&DB is not in a position to provide the agreed quantity
due 1o lack of required infrastructure facilities (as staled by them) and the
normal daily supply from the NWS&DB is less than 500m*/day and most
of the instances this is even reduced less than 300m’/day. Therefore, the
zone is obtaining water from Mirigama EPZ using hired bowsers. The
quantity obtained from the MEPZ varies according 1o the supply of
NWS&DEB; hence the cost also varies. Rs.619Mn was spent for this
process in year 2017. .

It has to be operated 24 Hr basis and therefore incurs a considerable
amount of expenses for 113 operation.

o Adminisitative Expenses

Personnel cost, stafl welfare expenses and depreciation were very high
compared 1o other administrative eéxpenses.
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Malwatte Expon Processing Park (MEFPT)

= Administeative Fxpenses
During the period, personnel cost, staff welfare expenses and depreciation
as a percentage of total administrative expenses shows a considerable
amount in the MEPP.

The aforesaid expenses contnibuted memendously for repeated losses
expenenced duning the penod considered.

= Limitations of Lands to offer for lovesmments

Since the zone is a small oné, income sources are also very limited, Total
industrial area is only 26 acres,

©  Operating Cost
This cost is essential 10 maintain and upgrade the infrastructure facilities
and therefore there is no possibility of reducing those. However, during the
period average cost is only Rs 5.43Mn due to the efforts being taken to
control the same.

Accordingly. the personnel cost, stalf welfare expenses and depreciation
were the contributory factors for the loss experienced during the concerned
period.

Mirijjawila Industrial Park (MIP}
2  The income genmeration at MIP is less compéred to administrative cost.

Increase of income is expected with the new policies of the Govemment
under Hambanlota development plan.

Identified Los

Following details are furmshed for clarification with regard to the matter of paying
compensation for 06 labourers who had been working in the BOI acquired land at

Keragala;

= This 120 Acre Kemgala land has been acquired by the BOI on 23.01.2004 1o
develop as an Export Processing Zone (EPZ).

* The Board had taken a decision for paying monthly allowance (Rs. 3.000¢- to
Rs 6,000/-) to the eight (08) workers (at that time) until the land developed as
an EPZ with the inension of providing job opporturities in the industnes o be
coming up.

= However due to the continuous delaying of developing the land as an EPZ, the
06 persons out of above have made a complaint to the Assistant Commissioner
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of Labour (ACL), Gampaha demanding their arrears of wages as per Coconut
Crowing Wages Board with respective EPF and job secunity.

= After several discussions with respective labourers. ACL Gampaha and BOI
officials, came to an amicable solution to pav asum of Rz, 300,000/~ per each
person wotalling to Rs, 1,800,004y~ for 06 labourers as compensation.

»  The matter of paying compensation (total Rs. 1,800,000/-) to the 06 labourers
have been referred to the Board and obtain the approval for paying Rs. 300.000/-
each to the six employees as recommended by ACL (Gampaha) and obtained
additional budget allocation Rs. 1,800,000/ as well for this purpose (Trem MNeo.
4.4, referring to Board Paper No. 358/11 of the 358th Meeting held on
(206201 7).

«  Accordingly., agreement of the amicable settlement (12.1 Settlement by
Conciliation of the Industrial Dispute Act 1930) have been signed by the six
{06) involved workers with the BOI management and ACL - Gampaha.

«  Also six individual affidavits have been obtained as to this s, 300,000/- each
are the full and final settlement of the dispute.

*  The total compensation Rs. 1.800,000/-, has been deposited with the ACL
Campaha.

Resources Released to Other Institutions

{a) Deputy Director and the Actg. Administrative Officer who were mentioned in
the above query were temporanly released to the Line Ministry based on the
requests dated 31.05.2016 and 20.11.2015 made by the Secretary, Ministey of
Development Strategies & International Trade,

Office Aide (Casual) who was mentioned in the above guery was temporarily
released to the Line Ministry on the request dated 01.10.2015 made by the
Additional Secretary of the Ministry of Development Strategies & International
Trade.

Line Ministry has not released them to the BO1as at 31.122017.

(b} The Mitsubishi Pajero (64-3315) is registered in the name of Secretary, Ministry
of Policy Planning and Implementation. It has been used by the BOI more than
20 vears and identified for disposal at the next Auction. BOI sent a letter to the
Ministry of Finance and Mass Media to transfer the ownership of this vehicle

prior to disposal,

(¢) The Ministry of Development Strategies & Intermationsl Trade is the Line
Ministry of the BOIL Therefore, Ministry of Development Strategies &

115



116

BOARD OF TNVESTMENT OF SRI LANKA

International Trade has established its offices in three (03) floors (Level 06, 25
& 27) owned by the BOl on a Lease Agreement. Twelve (12) numbers of
vehicle parking passes have been given 1o the Ministry of Development
Strategies & International Trade on the request of the Secretary of the Ministry.
Since Line Ministry is the tenant of the BOI floors, it 13 entitled to get parking
facilities for their vehicles and the parking charge is eovered by the lease rental,

{d} The Line Ministry has been using the two floors {Level 25, 27) from the vear

2005 on a lease Agreement. The Board of Directors bas granted approval to rent
out the said floors to the line Ministry with all assets,

The fixed assets which have been given to the Ministry were previously used by
the BOI and those items will be taken over for the use of BOL once the Ministry
will hand over the premises back 1o the BOLL

4.7 Human Resource Management

(a)

(b}

Excess emplovees in the Management Assistant Category & Primary Level
Category are mainly casual and contract basis emplovees who-were recruited on
short term basis to attend essential day-to-day operations mainly in Export
Processing Zones & Industrial Parks. Most of the Management Assistants have
been deploved at Permit Offices, Investor Services Units and other duty stations
where there are essential manpower requirements.

Several batches of Security Guards were recruiled on contract basis to serve in
the Export Processing Zones and Industrial Parks under the BOT as per the
requests of investors regarding the security arrangements in the respective Zones
and Parks. Most of zonal security functions were covered by the private security
firms. As per the directives of management, Security Guards were recruited on
contract basis by removing private security personnel from the zonal security
service. Accordingly, private security personnel at Katunayake EPZ and
Bivagama EPZ were totally removed and their services are covered by the above
contract Security Guards at present

Drivers and Labourers were recruited on contract & casual basis o attend
essential routing. operations mainly in Expon Processing Zones & Industrial
Parks. ;

Prior approval from Department of Management Services - Noted.

Theee (03) managerial level posts out of 08 posts menticaed in the query have
been filled recently. One (01) emplovee, who was onacting basis, has expired in
March 2018, Amangements will be made to fill the remamng posts covered on
acting basis in due course,
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(¢) A committee was appointed to do a preliminary study in developing a
Suceession Plan and the commitiee report was presented to the Chairman and
the Director General. 1t was decided o create awsreness on the importance of
suecession planning among the Higher Managerial Officers and said awareness
programme was conducted by a well-recognized Human Resource Specialist (A
Professor in HRM) in February 2018, Accordingly, the process of prepanng a
Succession Plan is in progress,

\chi ' of Sustainable Devel ' Goal

Overall targets of BOl are focused on achieving economic growth by aftracting
Foreign Direct Investments (FD1) and creating equal employment opportunities,
increasing export income of the country, developing infrastructure etc. Thereby, when
the overall BOI targets are identified it will in turn contribute to the achievement of
Sustainable Development Goals (SDG) indirectly in the long term. Therefore, BOI
has identified the Sustainable Development Goal Nos. 08, 09 and 17 as those can be
related to the planned activities of the BO| with measurable output/indicator.

Goal Nos. 01 {end poverty in all its forms everywhere), (7 (ensure access to
affordable, reliable, sustainable and modern energy for all) and 10 (reduce inequality
within and among countries) can be considered as the indirect positive oulcomes of
the BOI activities. For example BOI contributes to poverty alleviation by attracting
foreign direct investment resulting in establishment/expansion of new/existing
enterprises, creating employment and increasing export income of the country,

Accordingly. it is pertinent o note that the following targets of BOI can be assigned
for SDG No. 01, 07 and 1t

Institution/Tivision
Groals Targets Responsible under
your Institution
SDG (1] Ne Poverty |- The BOI has a target for employment BOI
End poverty in all iss | opportunities over 600,000 by 2020.
forms everywhere. |- Develop 03 Export Processing Zones

in  Kalutara, Kurunegala  and
Futtalam Districts o create more
direct and indirect employment
opportunities in regional areas.

SDG (T Affordable - Solar manufacturing  has  been BOI
and Clean Energy identified as one of the tarpeted
Ensure access o | Seciorsameng 10 priority sectors to
affordable, reliable; | attractFDIL

sustainable amd |- BOI promotes investments in wind
modern energy for | power, bio-mass and wasie energy.
all. [
SDG (10) Reduce - The FDI target for 2018 isUSD 25Bn BOI

Inequality and for 2020, it is USD 5Bn. Exports
Reduce  inequality | ©OF BOT enterprises to be increased to
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Institurion/THvision
Goals Targets Responsible under
your Institution
within and among | USD 9 Bn by 2020 and to generats
countries. emplovment opportunities over
600,000 by 2020,

This will contribute to the economic
development of the country and
thereby reduce the inequality of Its

people.

Further action will be taken to conduct workshops for the semor officers with a view
of identifving the Sustainable Development Goals in a broader sense and its

application to the planning process of BOI.

- Acgountability & Good Governance

6.1 Action Plan

{i) BOI prepared its Corporate Plan 2017-2020 with the technical assistance
of the World Bank and the 2017 Action Plan was prepared in line with this
Corporate Plan.

The Action Plan 2017 has been prepared aiming 1o achieve the Targets
given in the Corporate Plan and BOI has identified the activities of BOI to
achieve set targets which can directly or indirectly be achieved by
regpective departments. A summary of largets and corresponding core
activities in the Action Plan are given below for your easy reference.

7 Formulation & advocating policies to improve
couniry's business environment.

2 ldentification of sectors and  countries for
investment promaotion.

2 Preparation of promotional matérials

(= Appmising invéstment proposals & approving

through Project Screening Committee or Single
Window Invesment Approval Commitiee,

Turgets Activities Progress
1. Attract  Foreign |7 Outward and inward promotion missions to @ Attracted
Diirect Investment |  promote the country, USD 1.7 Bn FDI

2 |05 sses were

2. Investor © Facilitate projects’ through One-Stop-Shop &L
Facilitation T1AFC. resobved

A Develop  environment protection  required |a Tree planting
infrastructure in existing zones, programs were
conducted in

| eich zone
3, Export Generation o Facilitating imports/exports by BOI enterprses. |© Reduce time
e Introduced  pre-shipment  Troport-Fxport | taken for import-
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Targets Activities Progress
Documentation in line with 5a Lanka Customs | export
a Developing  acceptance  of  electronic | documentation
documentation. from 20 minutes
to 10 munutes,
4. Employment = Promoting labour intensive projects and decent @ Rate of Labour
Creation work practices in BOI enterprises. Turmnover
= Conducting Labour Fairs. reduced to 3.9%
5. Development of [® Planning of new zones, Land Acquisitions for {2 Identifyving  lands
New Zones & | Development of Zones. for development
im_PT'F'*'i-ﬂ% = Regular meetings to evaluate the progress. projects
existing Zones = Upgrading existing zones. = Initial
Discussions with
a Thai Investor
o Coordination
with RDA

{iil) Wherever possible, output has been indicsted. For some proposed
activities, it is difficult o specify the output. For an example, making
specific policies for the industry and service sectors is done when and

(i) =

where need arses.

However, we¢ have indicated the policy

recommendations which we have made in the progress column of the
Action Plan. Also in some inslances, the overall achievement of the
activity could be the output.

31 Activities with an aliocation of Rs, 219.65 Mn

Depariment’

.!'Euu

Enginesring
Approvals & Kuolivapitiva land as a

Special
Prajects

Obtaining

free grant

= Al a meeting held in the office of the Hon, Prime Minister, the

decision has heen taken (o acquire the Section of Mahanugalanda
land in Kulivapitiva which belongs to Public Trustez for the
purpase of setting up of the proposed Industrial Complex.
Accordingly, acquisition was inimaied and the land was vested in
BOI on 21.12.2016 under Section 44 Notice of the Land
Acquisition Act.

* Although with the vesting, BOI could lease out the land, investor

waried to purchase i on ouright basis.
To sell the land, BOF had o oblam it as & free grant from Land
Cammissioner General {LCGY and BO1 made a formal regueest for
this on 18.01.2017.
Retease the land on outright basis to the BOI by the LCG is
pending due to the renson that for the relesse. LCG wanted the
opinion of the Attomey General which is pending since March,
207
Therefore, chtaining the land on a free grant could not be completed
in 2017 a5 planned.

KEPZ

Canstriction of new
| entramnce struchere. for

The work of enmtrasce swocthure has o be complered after
completion of access romd o phase 1V which was completed in
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Department! Activity Reasons
phase IV of KEPE December 2007, However, BOI managed 1o complete: construction

of entance structure in Junuary 2018,
Witgnwatte | Asphail Concrete PC has gramted approval to award the above contract o0
Industral Surfacing along the 22032017, However, Rigid Tvre Company has used the road 1o
Lome (WIZ) | sccess road keep the building materals for their land development works and

=

e

wall construction. Hence, this contract has not been awarded 1o the
contracior until 29.08.201 7. Further, road levels have-been reduced
with the land levels of Rigid Tyre Company and side drains
excavated have been disappeared. Accordingly, construction work
of the road has been delayed. Funher, bad weather condition has
also affected. Howewer, the enrire road has been completed on |
20,03 2018,

Construction of drains,
culvert, cuscade and
road surfacing for part
of acdess road near Lot
TA

For the request of the mvestors ¢ (hao Zhen International (Pyt)
Ltd, road levels huve been reduced near Lot 7A. Due to change of
desion levels of the romd, culvert, cascade & drains have been
changed time to time on the request of the nvestor. Accordingly,
the above works could not be implemented within the vear 2017,

Constructhon of
culbvert at station
O+ T00km

! culvert kos been completed on 20022018,

PC has granted approval o award this contract on 02112007,
Accordingly, this contract has been awarded on [0.11.2017, As
Rigid Tyre Company has used the road for their land development
warks, part by part of the culven was completed. However, the

Storm witer drainage
Al fnain eftrance ansd

Diesign levels of the roud entrance area have been changed with the
request of investors. Hence, storm water drainage svstem has been
delayed until the surfecing of the road.

Construction of drains
along the access road

Time to time, design levels of the road were changed. Hence,

ion of design levels of the drains hove been delaved.
Thershy, this work hes been delaved until the road surfacing is
finnlized,

Water supply line
fram Horana EPZ up
o WIZ

Rigid Tvre Company has raized their land in bigh elevation. Hence,
designed levels, path and pipe specials have been changed with the
change of lay out plan of WiIZ Henge, thiz work couldn™t be
completed in year 2007,

AR

KgEPZ Reinstiement of road | As per the actual stuation arisen, the design, estimate & bidding
to 2™ Gate from Galle | documents had to be revised time o time. considering the practical
Road requirements,
Reinszarement of Also, practical difficulties encountered during the implementation
internal road Py Pz of works, Accordingly, it may not iotally tally with the given time
Pp (7T10m) - Stage | | periads of the Action Plan.
& Culvert Howewver, contracts were awarded for Reinstatement of Road o 2%
(iate from Cealle Road and Reinstatement of Intemnal Road Pyi-Pir-
Pia (710 m) — Stage 1 & Culvert, on 01.11,2017 & 15.09.2017
respectively.
During the construetion petod, expectediplanned progress of thase
coniracts couldn’t b achisved due to the impact of bad weather
canditions prevailed and delays cused by the contractor.
KgEPZ Constriction of During the constrixtion period, the following issuwes dffected 115

sludge pumip house

= Contractor's failure to ackieve stisfactory progress as planned.

progress durning the implementation;
Varations & desigs changes encountered during the construction

A considerable time pericd for giving solutions for the variations
& design changes by the Consulant (NWS&DB).

Mon availability of some pipes in the market to be purchased by
the Contractor,
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surfacing along Ps- Py
road

Dﬂr;lru::ntf Activily
HEPZ Asphalt concrere Estimate for Asphalt concrete surfacing slong Ps — Pr road was

submitied on 10.10.2017 and Actg. Executive Director {Technical
Services) approved it on 30, 16,2017, Then the paper advermisement
was published on L2007 end. 14,11,2017. Procurement
Committeg granted approval o award this coniragt on 28,02.2018,
Thiz work has been awarded in vear 2018 accordingly,

Construction of RCC | Departmental estimate was forwarded to Technical Services Dept,
drain from Lot 8A 10 | of BOT on 20,07 2007 and it was approved on 01082017, Afier
Lot Mo 33 bidding procedures, PC has granted the approval 10 award this
contrect, This has been avwarded on 17.10.2017 and commenced the
construction work on 300002017, Hence, the whole work fo be
completed on 27.00 2018,
Replacing Filter BO1 has requested from NWS&DB to inspect the treatment plant
Media [or and submif the estumate and bidding document onm 26.12.20016,
1000m /day water NWS&DB hos inspected the plant at several times and submitted
treatiment plant the report on 05042008 Hence, this work couldn't be
implemented within vear 20107, |
SEPZ Investigate and design | Contract of emptying & cleaning of equalization tank hos been
for deflected & cracks | awarded to NWS&DB for their estimated amount of Rs.
appeared roof slabof | 3,334,260/ on 12.05.2017.
:quaiiz;m'unmt NWS&DE by their letter dated 23032018 mformed that the
ing of some safety [tems, hinng of submersible sewermge
pump and hiring of Gl pipes are still in procuremem! process,
Information | Introduce onling BOM has been working with Lankaclear, the service provider to
Technology | pavment facility in provide a common e-payment platform imtegrating all the banks in
Department | Visa Recommendation | Sri Lanks, Once the service is implemented, the online paymint
System and integrate | facility in visa recommendation system will be established,
with Immigration & Integration with Immigration Depariment will be done once ihe
Emigration development and implementation of softwure package is completed
Depariment's visa by the One Stop Shop Unif to-communicate with Line Agencies at
SWLIEM its second phase of development.
Implement Internet It had been planned to impleméent an internet payment gateway with
Pavment Gateway of | Sempath Bank for on-ling payments. Finance Depariment of BOM ks
Sampath Bank for i the procezs of signing the agreement with Sampath Bank to
onling payments, implement the solulion.
BOH has further been working with Lankaclear the sérvice provider,
for an improved sligmative solution as it cin provide the platform
linking all the banks for payiments
[nformation | Introduce e BOI enterprises have been provided with e-services and process
Technology |services and aviomation in FDI Data Submision System and the web porial
Department | automation for BOI developed for 1D Cord lssuance System.
services .
Activitics_to_be _completed partly not completed 1n 2017 as scheduled
(following activities are pertaining to Seethawaks EPT)
Activity Frasors
Constriction of weir sross | Werr design was completed & submmitted by the NWS&DB in vear

Fee)

the Kelani River {Consuliancy

2013, However BOY needed modEfications to suit the present
Circurmnstances.

| Supply and installotion of

Competitive bids had been invitel as per the newspaper advertisements
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Beasons

magnetic flow meter for WTP

Wal (04 nos, ) for Docoulation
tank mixtorzs - WP

Supply and installation of |

dated 250520017 & 27052017, Six paries had subanitted the bids,
However nome of the parties had boen selected. PC [ at their meeting
held on 200022017 approved 1o recall the bids,

Accordingly bids were recalled a5 por the newspaper advertisemesnls
dated 20, 102007 & 28102017, Bid closing was oo 15112017, PO I
has granted spproval ar theie meeling held oo 192.03 2018 1o award the |
comlract.

Competitive bids were invited as per the newspaper advertisements
daved 13072007 & 153072007, Four pactiss had submitied the bids.
However selected pamy had not submitted some Socuments requiced [or
eviluations. ARer obiaining the approvel of PC 1L relevant documents
werg  collected by the procureinent enbity  and  scrutimized &
racommended by the TEC and approved fy the PC 1T at their mesting
held on 08.01 2018 10 award of the codifract

Augmentation’  Lnproveseend
of  Waste Water Treatmem
Pland

Cousultancy work has been assigned (o the NWS&0B H_.‘i-_]'.lI:T B lester
dated 31,08 20105,

Supply  amd  Iostallaton of
electrically driven sludge re-
cirgulalion puinps (03 Mos)

Costfract has been awerded o MY Megalech (Pl Lid as per the letter
of acceptance dated 22,1 12007,

Supply and  installaion  of
cloctrically  drivem  sludge
feeding  pump 01 Mo,
submersible duck oot pumipsz
(02 Nos b Supply of 100
dim.  submerzible standby
pump 0L Mok

TEC hae submilled a bid eveluation report dated 07712017 o the PO
Il — Head Office. PC 1T by the minure of item no. 3342017 dared
L L20ET informed the TEC tw submil & supplemeantary repart to the
PCIL TEC has snbmitted & supplementasy eeport dated 22,1 L2017 w
FCIL

Awaiting the PC approval to award ths contract.

Supply  and  imswallation of
electrically driven contrifuzal
pumps {03 Mos) o Moo 062
Lift station

Construction of
(approx.)  length
dizposul line — Phese 1

effiuem

160 m |

Mot attended invear 2007 & scheduled o atlend n vear 2008,

Contract was awarded as pcmi: BO lester dated 19.10,2017.

Construction of Store Boom &
Facorn Room

Renabilitation  of  damaged
| perimeter fence {part of)

E;:l_mpctlti'-.': bids were invited Bs per the newspaper advertisements
dated 27042017 & 29042007, Two partie: hed submizted bids
However. none of the parties had been selactad. PC IT &t the meeting
held on 26,07, 2017 approved to recall bids.

Accordingly. bids were recalled by the newspaper advertisements dared
26.00.2007 & ZR10.2017, Bid closing was on 16.11.2017. PC 1T has
granted approval at their meeting held on 09042018 for award of the
COHPACT

Comstruction of shed {part) for
softing of solid waste

Contract awarded — (2.11.2017
Confract eompleted — 3122007

Purchae ol laboraiory
cguipment

Chuotations bad been called for purchosing of 03 ilems (07nosl T
items (06 nos) were suppiied and pevments were made, The other item
wis supplied in Pebruary 2018 but il was observed that it was oot the
requested item. Therefore, the item was returned, Fresh quetations have
to be obiained for purchasing the same.

Constrsction of new sanitary
land filling =itz {part}at lot G2
- SEPZ

Contract awirded — 28.11.2017
Contract completad — 12032018
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" 30 Activities with an allocetion of Bs, [535.53 Mn

Plonned o complele the pralimminary siaee of seavines dunne 2017

e paariment

Activity Hoemarks
| Zone :
KEP?, Construction: of  pew | This procoremant has e 2 retendered and thesefore awarding
sewape B well  af | waee deleved,
Phaze T1
Modification  w okl | Has 1o be retendered as oo bids were received,

{existing) grit canal ar

W'l plant :

Renovation and | Time constraints due o handling of large number of contracts
improvement oo toilets | for 40M anniversary commemoration held at KEPZ. The
at BOW boifdings activity will be done in 2018,

EEPY Protection of slope of ' This pl'n_iém has  be done in parallel with construction of
ellluent dischorge canal | muitipurpose bulding af sporks complex. This projecl wes
adjgeent to playground | delaved dus 0 the construetion of mulipurpose kaiiding was

eeat Dimaliesd.
Supplying arwl Fxing of | Time censtrnds doe 5o handling of large number of conlrcts
Fire [Tvdrants for 4™ enniversary commemorarion held at KEMY. Howeswer
_ coatucl wis awarded in Junuary 2018,
| BEFZ Earth works | [oitiel plasy was w complete e project dunng Ghie vear of
| constryction of a ROC | 2007 and TEC recommended o awand the contract. Howewver,
drom between 30w 5.3 | the Prcursmenl  Commities. decided o re-tzndsr the
km o Jeep Teack — | procurement and thessfore the project was not complatad in
Block A 2T and postponad o complete in vesr 2018,
Bolonce work for the | These two (02) prijecis were ineluded in o the Action Plan
Renovations of Fire and 2017 merely for the purpese of confinuing in wear 2018,
Sevurity Buoilding Cstimutions wene completsd in vear 2017,
Balence work Tor the
Renovarions of Admin,
Building and other B
buildings
Supply, mstallation and | All activities were completed during vesr 2007 and TEC
commissioning  of a | requested awerding of the contract. Procurement Comimitteés
CCTV camera system | approval was obtained to award the contract in February 2018
to cover the ares of | and the pro‘se: is nearing completion. Please note thet, during
Biock & & B the bidding stage BOT had to change the scope of the wark
several times w4 per twe instruction of [T Department. which
tead for some delay,

Wepawaita | Ihprovemens o an | Most of the Ends of WL have been allocated o Rigid Tyvre

Industrial | existing butlding for use  Company, Existing building has also been sllocated to Rigid

fome (WL o= BOLoffice . Tyre Company. Hence, this improvement has been cancelled.
Constnxction of sccurity Estimzte for constructon of security points has been sent to
it the Technical Services Deps on 26092017 and still it has pol

_ been finalized.

‘Caonstrzetion ot | Estimae for construction ar pr:nmctur tence has been sent to
permeler fence ihe Technical Services Dept on 7012007, [t has been
famended and approved on 21092017, After tollowing
[ bidding procedures, PO has granted approval an 2200 2008 (o
eward shis contracr, This fes been awarded on 0Z.02.2018:

Henece, this werk 15 implemented within 2008,
KgEPZ Supply and installation @ Approval for the biddng document wes  granted ot

0 mm «ia.
delvery

23 hp &k |

| {suerion

&

Procizement Commitee meeting held op 29082017, KgEPZ
receted minutas on 18.09.2017,
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Kemarks

bvpel cenirifugal pumps ll Bid closing debe was cotended up to 20.10.2M 7,

04 s,

= Appeoval e tendesr awardwg was granted by PO omseling
condiected on 13.12.2007,

= Contrel was awacded an GEO 201 8.

= An per the implementation of ose dctivilies, fune periods
given in pre-panned documents can be varied due to the
aclual proglical situations £ issues.

Capslruetion af

additional cithuent
pump fRouse for sen oul

= Revised Dogineer's estimale o be obuined from BWELELDB
and renders will e me-called according to the revised
esbimets,

for water intake

The budgst allocation in vear 2077 was onlv for one pump. As
it was obgerved the demand for wotsr owas oo high,
management  decided to nstall  two turbine  pumps
subzequently. Currently, the activity is in bidding stags and
thee bids will e closing oo 17.05.2018.

fall including
instzllation of pumps
KIP Balanes  wark  of | This activity was unable to completz during the vear 2017,
comstruction  of  an | Delav was due e praciical ssues ansimg Gom implementing
goosd road o Lot Mos, | the procurement procedures and unrealistic weather sondition,
3 Conlract was awarded in 2017 and the work has beer
suhstartizlly complered on GE.N3.Z0HE
Falance work  of _|_|1I'-=H.E'E:-."I‘l"l_.- was unable to complete during the year 2017,
{mprovereents boroads, | Delayed due o procticel ssees arising from implemeniing the
drains, walkways ctc,, | procurément procedurgs and uarealistic weather condition,
including sand sealing. | Comteas]  was awerded i 2007 and work  substanially
L s e compieted an 08,03, 2018.
Purchasizg Tkiz activity wgs unable to complete during the year 2917,
avtpmatically on = off | Delived due o practical issues arising fom implamenting the
valve for disribimion procurcment procedurcs, Contract has been awarded in yesr
fartk 2017 and purchasing has been completed on 25.0] 201 4.
Construction of & small | This activily was unable 1o complete durng e vear 2037,
soale treatmenr plant Dicleved due to practical issues arising from implementing the |
procursnient procedures and  unreshsoe weather condition.,
Contract has hecn awarded i 2007 and work has heen
sibsracually cormpleted oo D803, 201 8,
Mainienanse  work  of | Bids were called In two sccasions, whereas received odly one
wateT fountain bid in hoth occssiona & bid prices were much higher and
could fon be able to juscfv. Wien this matter was brought up
at a cepital budget meeting. it was imstructed not to arocesd;
hence the wark wis giver up.
MEPZ Supply of standby putnp ~ This activwity was unabls to complete duringe the vear 2017.

Supply & laying wiler
supply lines upto Block

Construction completed within year 20107,

[esizn consulieney
investigation &
COTETUCLon supervision

MWSAEDE has mot undertaken this work des to their curment |

workload: hence constoiction supervision is being directly
dome by B

of WWTP

Construction of  This activity was unable o complete during the vear 2017 due
maluration peads, | (o practical Istues ariging from implementing the procurement
detention:  pond & | procedures. Conueets hive been gwarded before ending the
drving bed wesar 2017,
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HEI];;T;E“L Activity Hemarks
MEP. [Tesign conAulancy | Bequired to camry out the designs together with Block B hy
investigalion & | Acle. Execwive Dirsclor (Technicel Servces) by the letler
construction supervision | dated 27.04, 2015,
ul lving SEWET
collection  nelwork. of
Biock A
Fixing of lightning | Expansion to the existing huilding was awarded on
ATPCSDET  system to [ 13.03.2017 end complered on 02022018, Arangements
Administeation buildizg | made w fxiog of lghtning arresters after the completion of
cxpansion works.
Construction of  goard | Construstion Complered swithin sear 2017,
room  and  barrier  for
Block B at MEPZ
MLEFPZ Proposed exiension b | These activities were unable o complete during the year 2017

the existing BN office
butbding

bur contract was awarded before ending the vear 2017, Earlier
manaeemenl decided o bave buillding in Block B [or the
office staff az Block B is o he developed. Subsoquently
manogemenl decided W bave an oMice next W the sone
management oftice for comvenicnee,

Construgtion  of  chain
link Fence along Block
B hoondary

Adter finalizing the proposed avout pian of Blok B of MEPE,
corsiruction of chan link fence has been awarded on
2TANLINTE and the due dare of completion is 26.08. 2015,

| WEDE

| lreament Plant

Imppovements o the
Bus Stand

Dalance work of acésss

ical issues o aris Tom  imple i ;
dus B oproctical issues oansing Gom  implementing  the
procurcment procedurcs, All contracts have becn awarded

raad to Lor MNos, 35 &
-
Purchasmgz of standby
pumips For Wasle Warer

before the end of vear 2017 excepl Aupmentalion of Common
Waste Water Treatment Plant. Augmencation of OWWTP has
i be re-lendersd os oper the decision of Procurement
Conunines IT on 28.06,2007.

bl
Water

Purchasing - ol
blower for
Treatment Plant

Beplacing of damaoged
EEVVET [HDEE

These activities were unabiz to complere during the year 2017 |

Expansion of existing
office  building {phase
10

Dhie 1o changes in design part (drawing and reareangement of
departments| estimate). it was delayed and decided 1o
complete the work in 2018 Accordingly, funds were allocated
for this job wunder Action Plan 2018, Now work has besn
copmpleted,

Alr conditioning
balance par of oflfce
building

Do to limitacien of funds during sear 2007, 01 was decided @
complete work from the Dbudger  allocaten o 2018,
Accordingly, finds were aloceted under Action Flan 2018,
Conimel Ias new beea awarded [0 a conlracror

[rmprovements . the
Solid Waste  dispesal
Bystlem

Mlanogerment dacided oo cancel,

17
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6.2  Environment and Social Responsibility

1)} = Apparel busmess in Seethowaka Exporl Processing Zone

lhis is engaged in manufacture ol lead oxide and 1o gualify lor the
renewal of the Environmental Proteclion License (EPLY wath the CEA
concurrence, following reports are required.

]

Performance asscssment on cxiractor deviees carmicd out by Industrial
Technology lnstituge (111).

This has been subminted and 1T has proposed [urther improvements,
These have been attended.

Medical reports on employee health via Depulv Commissioner of
Labour (Occupational Health) of Department of Labour.

These reports oo have now heen submitfted.

Factory working environment Lead levels by ITL

Testing by Industrial Technology Institute (I'TI} has been done on
01.08. 2018 and the test reporta are pending. [F resulls reveal complying
within the required limits, papers will be referred to CEA requestng
concurrence for issuing the EPL.

» Seethwaka Fxport Processing Zone

Main reasons;

a

Uperading of the common waste water treatment plant (CWWTP) is
required.

Bids have now been called to augment the CWWTP and alier selection
of a suitable Bidder, augmentation regquirements will be attended.

Having a proper facility tor solid waste management
Proposals have been called to dispese the solid waste inm an

environmentally fmendiy manner through competitive bidding process
before the end of 2018,

(11 = Solid waste
Dump vard has been in existence since the inception of the zone.
Penadically sonl coverage is carmied oul, Proposals have been called 1o
dispose solid waste in an environmentally friendly manner through
competitive bidding before the end of vear 2018,

« Untreated waste water

A comsultant 15 1o be selected v augroent Ihe waste waler reatment planl
by November 2018 in order o increase the capacity to prevent such
occurrences in future:
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.3 Procurement Plan

Action Plan for every year is prepared and approval of the Board of Directors of
BOT is oblained, Therelore, Procurement Plan has notl been [orwarded 1o the Boanrd
of Directors of BOM for approval in previous years which is not a requirement as per
Procurement Guidelines 2006 prepared by the National Procurement Agency.

Mop-compliances as per Procurement Cruidelines 2006:

(i) Procurement activities envisaged at least for a penoed of three (03] years wall be
ineluded in the Master Procurement Plan in future and work will be commenced

from 3™ quarter of 201 8.

{11} Master Procurement Plan prepared for 2017 had pot been updated at intervals
not exceeding six months. Instead. the guarterly performance reports have been
prepared and forwarded to the Committee on Public Enterprises (COPE)
inchiding number of contracts swarded, value of contracts awarded and the
forecast for next two guarters.

[n additien, Master Procurement Plan is monitored through the progress
meetings on Capital Budget.

(ifi)Procurement tme schedule for all relevant procurement activities will be
prepared in compliance with the section 4.2.2 (b} in future.

(iv)Reasons for not including the procurement activities in the Master Procurement
Plan

Division | Remarks

Head | Many BOI departments and mones sent ther requests for procurements time o
Office | time, when the needs arisen. Some of the requirements arise suddenly due to
failures, urgent requirements etc,; hence such type of needs zre difficult to
forecast at the minial stage.

KgEPZ | * We were compelled to deviate from the master procurement plan when it was
vital fo supply the items when requested during the vear 2017, Supply was done
subjected to necessary approval of the Dhrector (Zone) and Regional
Procurement Commitree.

= Procurement plan was given at the beginning of the year depending an the
reguireinent of sepplies poted at that time. Bu deviation shall be expected as
the reguirement may differ with the Gme akin o changes in the circumstaneas.

* Further, the Head (MTice was noticed when fund transfers were required in
order i bransler the Tunds emong budget lines. - -
HEFZE | = Desizn for replacing Oler media, npeovements o inlake and auamentation of
CWWTP (03 Mos. of Procurement Activities) have not been included to the

Master Frocarement Plan since these payments wre consuliancy payments.

Payvment for supply & installation of 0% Nos. suomersthle pumps for intake well

& gqualization tank (011 no. of Procorement Activityt has not been included as it

is & retenticn payment.

| = Supply & installation of submersible pump & motars for CWWTP (I No. of
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Diwision

BEI'E

PuwERE

o o _ Hemarks
Procurement Activity b has not been mcluded stnee 1t has been awaerded on
| 11112016, =
= ] projects were nol included in the Master Procurement Plan - 20017 smee
those project were stsrted during the vear 2002 and 20000 and 03 of thoese weres
refeasing ol relenlion mancy.
= |2 procurements {such as procurement of steel cuing machine, AC machines,
photocopy  machines, refrigerator. computers, fax maching, ofTice macks,
visitor's chairs and fire eguipment) were made usinp minor capilal provizions as
decitded at the bepiming of the yeor doe o urpent requirements; hence those
| owere not meluded in the Master Procurernent Plan,
* Construction of aceess road and storm water drains to new block of land
at MwkEPs,
This contract has commenced on year 2016 and completed on e end of
January 2017, Therefore this activity has not been included in Master
Plan 2017, because Master Plan was lnalized afier approving action Plan
2007 in March.
» Replacing ol existing damased pantry cupboard
This activity was decided to do in mid of the year considering the
condition of exisling pantry cupboards, Therelore, il has nol been
impluded in the Muaster Plan 2017,

5 ot ol

KEPZ

Al the complainls ol imvestors to ease the traffic jam in the msh time
sccurity barrier has ta be relocated as an urgent requirement.

= Purchasinpg of new cutter pumip in collecting tank
With the unexpected break downs of pumps, new pump had to be
purchased mmediately 1o avert the risk of overflowing the waste water
to the nearbv stream.

= Pabricating & fixing of small root for collecting tank (5. T.P)
Due 1o the number of complaints made by the surmrounding community
regarding the bad smell spreading from waste water pumpina tank, the
sealed root had to be fixed on the tank as an urgent requirement.

® Purchasing of water Meters
At the request of enterprises for new water connections, water meters had
to be purchased.

= Purchasing of office furniture
Aceommaodations had 10 be provided due to deployment of several
officers on promotions and other transfers in the mid of the vear.

There are 17 items it the Action Plan 2017 approved by the Boord for
implementation of capial budget proposal at KEPZ, Procurement of 19 itcms
were completed when plepaning the Master Procurement Plan {i.e. procurement
complesed in 2016 or before). Theretore, the aid 19 items were not included to
the Master Procurement Plan.

Adso, the procuremment sclivilies whick were cormied oot based on the requests
made by the Depts/Units of KEPZ time (o Gme threoghout the year with the
approval of relevant authorities and vblicng the Reourrent Budget and the Minar
Capital Alleeation of KEPE for the Year 2007 too were not included in the
haster Procorement *lan.

SEFE

Master Procurement Plan (MPP) 2017 was prepared based on the procurements

{oontracts) which were planned o commence in 2017 for infrastructure works of

the wone. Therefore, the MPP 2017 does not cover the angping procurements
| which hud been started befors 2017,
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(v} Procurement activilies which were not completed durimg 2017 as planned

Activity as er Master

Lone Procurement Plan Clarificution
Head | Supply & maintenance of | Cxpected tme of completion was changed dus
Office | hardware and soflware solutiom o the change of scope of the work.
for processing of Hoard Papers
al managing Board Minutes
KEPZ | Supply & installation of 06 | Procurcment activitics commenced in 2016 and
barchole pumps for mibs wells wiork completed in 2017,
supplying and imstaliation of | Sought instructions of consultant and contractor
ROOE W A generator for CWWTP | for augmentation of STP m determiine optimum
capacity of penecater and Jdue w delay of
_ o | response. the procurement pot delayed. _
Protection of slope of effluent | This project has 1o be done in parallel with
discharge  canal adiacent ©@  the construction of multipurpose building ar
playzround sports complex. Due o not finalizing of
congtruction ol mullipurpose hinldmg This
) project was delaved.
Supply & fixing of fire hydrants | Time constramis due (o handling of large no
of conmacts for 40" Anniversary
Commemoration held at KEPZ. However
comracth was pwarded Tanoary 2018,
BEPZ | Expansion of the cexisting | The design and consoltancy of the above
capacity of the hft smtion at | hgg been assigned o National Water Supply
Block B & Drainage Board (NWS&DB) and the
entire project was delayed due to the delay
om The parl ol the NWSEDR. Tt has been
requested 1o take a linal decision on this and
consider an alternative option.
Supply &  installation and | The scope of the above work had to be
commissioning of CCTV camert | revised several times by studving a similar
systert o cover the area of | work carred out at KEPZ in consultation
Blacks & And M with  relevan!  authorities.  However,
procurement process gould be started ac the |
latter part of 2017 and balance work can be |
completed early. .
WERZ | Improvement ta the bus stand These activities were unable to complere during |
Balanes work of access road fo | the wear 2017 due to practical issues arising
Lot oo, 35 and 36 fromm implementing the procurement procedures.
Augmentation of CW W TP All contraces have been awarded hefore the end
Purchasing ol standby pumps Tor of year 2017 exerpt Augmentation of Cammon
CWWTP Waste Warer Trearment Plant. Augmentation of
“Purchasing of air blower for | CWWTE las 12 be re-tendered as per the
water treatment plant decizon o Procurenent Commitlze 11 on
Replacing of balance dzmaged 23062007,
| SEWET PIPEs
WEPZ | Improvement: two. the bostal
butlding . Munagement decided o concel.
Improvements 1o the solid waste ¥

disposal svarem
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Activity as per Master
Procurement Plan

Clarification

MEPZ

Supplv of stand by pump for
water intake

This activity was unabie to complete during the
vear 2017, The bodger allocation in vear 2007
wis only for one pump. As we abserved the
demand for water was too high. management
decided to  mstall  two  torbine  pumps
subsequenthe,  Cormently, the activity is in
pidding srape o the bids will be clesing on
17.05. 2018,

Construction of maturstion
ponds, detention pond & drving
beds

This activity was unahle o complere during the
wear 20017 due e proctical issues wvrising [rom
implementing  the  procurement  proceduores.
Contracts have been Awarded before ending the
year 217,

S S

Proposed  extension ™ the

existing BOT ofTice building

These activities wre unable o complete during

the vear 2007 but contract hes been Awarded
before ending the wear 2017, Earlier
manapement decided to heve buoilding in Block
B for the office smft a5 Block B is to he
developed. Subsequently management decided
te have an office next 1o the zone management
affice for convenience.

Supply and installaticn
stamnd by penerator for CWW TP

=

Departmental estirmate has been submitted to the
H/OD on 210920017, Actg, ED (T/%) has
mstructed to inclede the iem for construction of
a separale room on 09102017, Hence, this
work has been incleded m Action Plan 24118,
This esimate has heen submitted in year 2018,
Hence, this work couldn’t be implemented in
wear 2017,

SEFZL

i it

Supply  ond  installation of
clecrmically  driven sludge
recivenlation pumps - (13 nos.

| Confrace has been awarded o Megatoch (ve)

Itd as por BOPs letter of acceprance dated
22.11.2017, e date of Completion i on
0304 2018,

Supply &  installation of
clectrically  driven  sludge
foedmg thomps - (1 na,

submersible duck foor pump —
02 nos., supply of 1i0nm dia
submersible standby pump - 01

.

TEC has submitted a hid evaluatinn repor dated
G2 T tothe PO - 11 = HAOL Az pee PO - 1)
by the minmte of item no. 3542017 dated
W L1E201Y micemed te TEC to submit a
supplementary reporl 1o the PC - 11 TEC has
submitted a supplementary  report dated
22:01.2007 o PC—TIL

Awmbting the PC approval o award the contracr,

-

Construction ol Proposed Mun Fntrance Boilding @l Secthawaks Export
Provessing Zone
v Initial concept of construction of propesed main entrance building had

been formulated i year 2001 o accommodale general Sceuriiy Office.
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Otfice for Security Officer, Stores for security defections/documents,
armoury, Changing Room for Secunty Guards (male & female), Toilet.

Bathroom and Pantry. Total conceptual area is 91.5 m®,

Diesign consultancy had awarded to General Managrer, State Enginecering
Corporation Sri Lanka by BOI letter dated 09.08.201 1.

Schematic Design Drawing (Dirw, Mo, 200 1-144/A01) had been submitted
by SEC by their letter dated 03.11.201 1 for BOT approvals.

After serutimzing the schematic drawing, BOI informed the requirement of
some additions and changes of drawings o SEC.

Accondingly, SEC had submiited revised schematic desipn dmwing by
their letter dated 12.01.2012 and the Preliminary Project Estimate by their
letter dated 16.01.2002 wo BOM.

Rs.
© Allow fior Preliminaries - SOH,000.00
o Allow for Construction of Entrance Building- 8. 004, 004006
t  Allow for External Works - LA KOk

Total " 2.200.00H0. 0

After obtaining & series of clarlications, confirmations [rom SEC [or the
identified shortcomings of the construction activities, BOIL, had accepted
architectural concept design of Drawing No. (201 1-144VADS/EXT/13 by
the letter dated 05.02.2014 and reguested to proceed with the detailed
design work,

SEC had submitted a Preliminary Project Estimate dated 15.00.2014 as per
the BOT approved Drawing No. (2011-144A/DS/EXTA3,

Rs.
o Adlow for Preliminaries - B0 00,00
Allow For Construction of Exdtrance Building- L3000, Q00 00
o Allow for External Works - LA QG000
Tuial - 20, 150, 0000

SEC had submitted drall bidding document and construction drawings to
the BOI by their letter dated (02042001 5,

After finalizing the scope of the activities, Enginecr’s Estimate for the
seope of the work had submitted by SEC through the letter dated
13.05.2016 and the total Floor Area s 400m?,

Rs.
= Cost of Preliminanes - [ 2000, 0.0
< Cost for Demoliton - 3200000
7 Coat for Building Work - 19 450,905.00
o Provisional Bun " - LM 00
Basic Cost Estimate - 210 S )

As per the Board Paper No. 367/14, the Committee had noticed that some
rates of the Fngineer's Fslimate prepared by SHEC were comparatively
higher than the present market rules and o the Preliminary Bill, the
estitmated cost of Rs. 1.2 Mn can be covered with Rs. 0.3 Mn.

Accordime to the Engineer’s Estimale, the cost of the progect after detailed
design is Bs. 21,070,905/~ {5 per the submission by SEC); therchy there is
o increase in the cost of project as mentioned in the query,

The Board at its Meeling Mo, 367 held on IO, L1201 T has granted approval
to implement the proposed designed Entrance Building at SEPZ
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comsidering the present operational sspects of a4 customs bonded area and
has granted a fnancial allocation of Ks. 16 Mn from the Capital Budger of
year 2078,

Delay occurred due to the reasons mentioned above.

S ey i P iy

Significant variances observed between budget and actual

Expenditore == Clarification
General expenses - Sumdries Pl Refer Annexure IT o
Maintenance of Zones Accordmg to Budget Hs, 13581 Mn

has heen allecatsd to Zone mamtenancs
and it i3 included pon-cash iem of
smamization  of  deferred  zone
development amounting Lo Bs. 38 Mn.

Enlertemment Expenditure has been canmrolled by the
—— . e TI'IE]'!HE{‘-'IH'CI'I:T-

Investment MPromotion Capenses | ~idu-

(scncral Expenscs - Flower | -do-

Arrangement

Periodical & Publication ~di-

Corpocate Social Responsibality li= _ o

Compensation paid on Legal Cases It is very difticukr o estmate due o
uncerrainty of expendifure
Budpeled wnder oeneral expenditure

Expenses on Tdentity Cards
(Contaimer Key Locks

Income Tax Budgered interest income has inereased
from Rs, 216,54 Mn 1o Rs. 336.92 Mn,
Stamp Dty Dhie o increase of receipts & stamp

duty of lease agreements,

BOI has used the Budgetary Contrel System as an effective instrument of
Management control to achieve the Annual Budger

(a) (i & if)

The Board of Investment { BOT ) is mandated eo attract investments with the
investors” own capital when such investor is either local or forsien, In
exceptional situations, the BOT could consider permitting an investor who
has obtained the BOI land on lzase to morgage te leasehold rights to
mest the Financial needs of such party. As a matte of practice, the BOH
does not promote investors (o raise financial facilites through local Banks
by mortgaging the BO[ land leased to them.
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Our view 18 thal (here are sullicient controls in the Topartile Agreement
entered into among the investor, Bank and BOI in order 1o safeguard the
rights ol the BOL Under the Banking Act, 1n 2 situation where the bank
carnes out Parate execution where there is a default by the investor to the
Bank, the Bank is compelled to give notice 10 the BOL In this connection
the opimon received from the Attorney General’s Department is artached
herewith (Annexure 111).

It should be noted that if the BOI had been aware of the performance of
the enterprises it would have been possible to intervene and take any
action to protect the interests of BOT prior to these Enterprises going into
Liguidation.

These mstances could have been prevented if 2 proper mechanism had
been in place whereby the RO could identily situation of Pnlerprises
going mio Liguidation based on their performance, Az such the BOI could
terminate the Poncipal Agreement entered into with the Enterprise based
on non-compliance and follow the procedure laid down in the Tripartite
Agreemenl.

(ifiyThe land in guestion was primarily allocated to MY Vidyodava Ayurvedic
Medical College (Pvi) Lk, a BDOT approved project on lease. The property
was mortgaged to People’s Bank by the company in 2008 without the
consent of BOL BOI has terminated the lease agreement on 11.08.2018.
Mow the Jeasehold deht is with the People’s Bank.

People’s Bank has made a request to BOI to give them an opportunity to

negotiate with a prospective investor to recover their dues by disposing of

the said land., BOI informed the People’s Bank that we have no objection

for negotiating with a prospective investor. subject to following

conditions;

o The new project shall be gualified to recerve the Section 17 status of
the BOI

= The new investor shall enter into a lease agreement with the BOT for
the land.

This matter was laken up i the Screeming Commitiee meeting held on

15.03.201 8 and decided to;

o Resurvey and (o oblain g valuation report for the lond

o Advertise the said land for Request for Proposals (REP) from potential
investor

BOI is in the process of preparing a survey plan forthis land.
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(b {i) The amount receivable rom 56 Lanka State Plantation Corporsiion
{BLSPCY s Ry, 164 Mnoas al 31, 12,2006 a3 per the audited financial
statements submitted by them.

BOI has sent several reminders from time to time requesting the above
sum due to us and alse requested o submit awlited accounts signed by
Chairman {SLSPC), as the Audiled Financial Statements submitted arc
incomplete.

SLSPC by their letter of 02.02.2012 informed that they had managed
the Perth BEstate until August 2007 as per extensions granted by the
B, Accordingly, the amount due could be identufied only afrer
completion of the audit of financial statements for the period January
2007 1o August 2007,

Despite several reminders over the past few vears for the submission of
audited accounts for the period Janwary 2007 1o August 2007, SLSPC
has nol responded,

SLSPC was informed of the above lapse al the meeting held an
04.07. 2007 with Chairman 3LSPC.

Further, a letler was sent on 26" January 2018 to the Seccretary,
Ministry of Devclopment Strategies & International Irade by
Exscutive Diregtor {Finance) of the BOL requesting o assist &
imlervene gl Mimsterial Lesel o resolve this ssue,

{it} No records relating to motor vehicle rent and bungalow rent are
available in the accounts of BOI as hose ransaclions have not besn
done by BOI. Therefore, information relsted to motor wvehicle and
bungalow rent have been reguested from SLEPC,

This issee was discussed al a meeting held with SLSPC officers and
BOI on 04.07.2017,

{111)BOI requested SLSPC to release such extent of land (127A OR 39 67/
o BOH by the letters dated 19.11.2012 and 06.09.2013.

A meeting was held on $6.07.2017 with the participation ol baoth
Chairmen of BOD and SLSPC to resolve (he issues perlaining o dbove,
As agreed at the said meeting. a subsequent meeting was held on
HLOT7.2017 with the pamicipation of relevant officials of BOI and
SLSPC and checking on receivables is in progress,

{c} The BOI has filed acase in the Cowrt of Appeal (CARIOR 16 and moved
the Cowrt to have the said onder of the Commercial High Court ordering
BOI to pay Bs. 102,138,350/ to M's Million Garmeenes (Pt} Led, be set
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aside snd restore the BOL o the original status before the said order by the
Commercial High Courl.

The Court of Appeal afler granling leave 1o progeed gramted an inlenim
order in favowr of the BOI staying the operation of the order dated
18,12.2014 delivered by the Judge ol the Commercial High Court and
further proceedings of the case bearing no. HC {ARB) 1254/2002 until the
hearing and final determination of the application {CA/RINDE16). This
case 18 Axed for inquiry on 05.07.2018 and the stay order extended nll
Q7.07 2018,

{d) Mr. R, A, Dharmadasa who was the Director (Cooperate Services) at
MNorth Western Regional Gffice was terminated [om the service by the
Board of Directors based on the findings of a domestic inquiry held against
him,

Mr. Dharmadasa filed action against the terminarion betore the Labour
Trbunal Colombe. The judgment was delivered on 23072006, Hon, LT
President has commented (hat the respondent Bourd has Faled 1o prove the
charges levelled apainst Mr, Dharmadasa and has concluded that the
termination was unjust and unfair and has ordered the BOL to pay the
applicant 05 years” salary g the compensation. Accordimgly, the 130 was
ordered to pay Es 3,627 900/- (Bs, 60,465/ x 60,

Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30" August 2016 has granted
approval fo deposil the smd sum al the Labour Tobunal Colombe and 1o
appeal against the said judgment. Accordingly, BOI appealed against the
said judgment before the High Court Western Province and the High Cowrt
judgement was delivered in favouwr of the BOL Thereatler, Mr.
Dharmadasa has filed @ case against the High Court judgément betore the
Supreme Court and said Supreme Court case is pending at present.

ie] The land extent of 818 Acres which was owned by BOI was mansferred
back to the state, as per the Extraordinary Gazette Noufication No.
191 319 which was published on 07.05.201 5.

BOI, by the letter dated 27.01.2017 has requested the District Secretary of
[rincomalee to sllocate a sukable alternative Iand to BOL

At the Investmenl Approval Facilitation Commitiee {TAFC) meeting held
on 09032017, BOI was instructed to not to procecd the survey work in
view of possible objections expected from the politicians of the area.

({1 Malidowakanda Estate

The Board of Directors of BOI decided at its meeting on 06.07.2018 that
lzasing out of BOI owned land at Keragala to Higher Institute of
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Technology (Guarantee) Limited (HITRC) and decided 1o get approval of
the Cahinet of Ministers alsr lor leasing the Kerazala land (o HITEC st a
nomanal tental of  Rs, 100,000/- per annum imitially for a period of five
vears and extendable thereafier on mutually zgreed rental and allow them
to sublel the land.

(2) Tsumami Relief Fund - Action has been initiated to purchase some
eguipment tor the Physiotherapy  Unit ol
Mabhamoaodars Hospital m Galle using balance in
the Tsunami Belief Fund,

Funds lor Commaonweulth FDI Promotion - Moted

ihp A suitable party has slill not been selected since the bids received did not
comply with the reguirements, hence the Technical Evaluation Commites
recommendation i3 to re-invite bids.

() Key Perlormanes Payment (KPP) scheme has been implemented as

mentioned under item no. 2.4 {a) & (b} above, allocating a higher weighi
for performance of emplovees.

7. Svytems and Controls

Contral over Personnel Emaluments

According to the present policy BOI raises invoices for Annual License Fee in
respect of the Enterprises which are not in arrears of Annual Fees and not closed,
cancelled or suspended.

¥ e have talkken many steps over the past several vears o stresmhng and improve the
collection of dues from Enterprises, The procedure followed 15 explained below;

= Ensure that invoices are sent 1o Investors by 1% January each year.

= As lhe Enterprises are under obligation to settle the Annual Fee / Ground Reni
for a particular year by 10" January sach year in ferms of the agreement, the
first reminder 35 sent during the 01% week of Febrary giving them notice of

suspension of services with effect from 01% March.

* In addition, a aotice is displayed by 31° Japuary ot Fead Office and Zone
offices giving the deadline for pavmen: of Annual Fee ! Ground Rent.
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* By 25" Februsry. the Finance Department informs all departments to suspend
services provided to Enterprises which are in default.

= A statement of owtstanding balances as at end of each maonth is sent wo Directors
Accountanty’ Muanagers at Aones and Regiomnal (Ml1ices and they ane msiructed o
follow up on the dues.

» 02 & 3™ Reminders are sent by 309 June & 017 week of September cach yvear
respectively.

» Default interest is charped for settlement of dues after 10% January of the
relevant year,

® At the beginning of each year, a list of Enterprises who bave defaulted Annual
Fee'Ciround Renl in the preceding vear is subimiited o Monitoring Departmen
i the BON lor lermination ol the Agreement.

= Prior to making arrangements for cancellation of projects a Letter of Non-
compliance is senl by the Moniloring Department reguesting the puyment ol
dues

= Commencing from year 2012, the Legal Departiment is informed o take Legal
Action in respect ol the delaullers irrespective. of the stalus of the Enterpnse,
Prior (o that, Letters of Demand were sent only in respect of cancelled projects,

Ihe average recovery rate of Ground rent and Annual Fee s 97% of invoiced
valie.

As per the formal precedures, tender approvals. calling bids ete., have w be
followsed. Howsver, [urther steps will be laken o expedite capital works in the
forthcoming year and avoid undue delays,

Accouniing .

Houses for sale in Wathupitiwala EPZ have been shown under the current assets as
per the LKAS 2. It should be noted that these assets are held for sale in the form of

imventory Lor selling purpose,
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pirector General's Office
Director General, |
|
Board of Investment of Sri Lanka !
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World Trade Center, @ |
|

Colomba 01.

Board of Investment of Sri Lanks |

Ministry Procurement Committee are considering your procument of services for the
construction of sales outlets of Board of Investment of 5¢l Lanka enterprises and to design &
contract BOI pavilion for 40°" anniversary of the Open Economy — Exhibition, held at National
Youth Service Coundl, Maharagama.

02, Ministry Procurement Committee has approval your procument accordingly following prices

condition.

01. M/s Gravitas integrated Holding [ PVT) Ltd

(To design and construct BOI pavilion) - Cost- Rs. 7,405,000.00 (Excluded VAT)

02. M/s M.W. Ventures International [ Pvt) Ltd

| Bt

T.V.D. Damayanthi 5. Karunarathne
Additional Secretary
Far Seu-gt_aﬂ _

Ministry of Develcpment Strategles and International Trade

P = =
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Board of Investment of Sn Lanka

CONFIDENTIAL

TO: Juh:mrﬂunl
ED (Inv Pra)
ED (R

EXTRACT OF BOARD MINUTES T et

Please find reproduced below extract of Board Minutes of Board Meeting held 28% July, 2017 for. '
your information and compliance please.

Board Meeting No. 362

Date : 28" July, 2017
Board Paper No. ‘ 362/28

ltem MNo. : 5.7

40™ ANNIVERSARY OF THE OPEN ECONOMY — EXHIBITION
(27 -31 JULY 2017) EXHIBIT (B P NO. 362/28)

Board noted the contents of the paper which requested covering approval for the expenses
mentioned therein and meet the timelinas required as directed by Hon. Prime Minister’s
Office and as such the inability to follow the standard procurement process currently in
place. The Board granted the approval for the above paper and 1o spend the funds as
mentioned and requestsd Director General to obtin approval from the Ministry
Procurement committee for the deviation from procurement policy.

= g
s

03% August 2017
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BOARD PAPER
Boerd Paper No.: b 3 ‘,“
TO : The Members of the Board
THROUGH : Chairman/Director General
FROM - Executive Director (investmant Promaticn)
DATE 1 26 July 26, 2017
SUBJECT : 20th Anniversary of the Open Econamy - Exhibition (27 - 31 July, 2017) BOI Exhibit

Purpgse;
Th_phn qltﬂt-ﬂmr,:l;lpu'ls to soficit appraval for the utilization of funds from the year 2017 Promotion budget
MqHHM ﬂ;ﬂwmrﬁhht at the Exhibition to commemaorate the 40th Anniversary of the Open Economy to

be hﬂdﬁﬂumruﬂm:ﬁ:uﬂicr_nur From 27 - 31 July, 2017,

e carTminicatio 1A 10 this event from the Office of the Honorable Prime Minister was directed to the 801
ﬂqmughﬂri Jm“wg af mu-e!npment Stratagies & International Trade (MODSIT) om 18 July 2017 (Annexure 1),
Ehlhuﬁ'nlr'rl'tﬁpthll, lnﬁiﬁ'ﬂ was held on 18 Iluly, chaired by State Mindster for ivternational Trade, with Secretary
hﬂlﬁlﬁ‘l‘ ﬂhﬂ&rﬂtﬁ'ﬂi H:Hmd other senior officials of MODSIT and BOY, where It was decided that the BOV Is to
munmmmmmﬂ'mummmmdmwnm as to facilitate 15
B eompanies 1o dl:mlly stalls and products for ke,

Given the sigrificant tiree constraing related fo executing this decision, approval of the Boeard of Directors was sought
wia email, wﬂhmm by means of a Mermo raised by Director (Media & Publicity} through Executive
Director ﬂnuﬂnnt?mﬂiﬂnm!mm Director (Special Projects] and Director General 1o the Chalrman.

3. Proposal:
i is proposed fo-obtain formal covering approval for the expenses related to this event, as the related timeline:

mentianed sbove made i imposible for the standard procurement process to be followed.

4. Ratienale;
Given the urgency of the reguest and the fact that it originated from the Office of the Honotable Prime Mbinister, it was

clarified {o the Board of Directors (Anrexure 2 that such deviston from the standard procurement process would be
mecessarny if the B0 were 1o comply with the said reguest.

5. Approval sought:
Cevering approval s sought for the following:
i} Toutilize funds from the year 2017 Promation bedget to mest theeots relates to this svent.

i} To asshgn commissisning of thie BDI exhibit to Ms Gravitas Integrated Holdings PVT LTD.*
li#} To assign the instaistion of cubides for 801 cormeary stalls to M/ MW Ventumes Intermational PAT LTD.®
W) To pay mobilization sdvances as requested by the above supplers,

* & per guotations appended

- ﬂ“* e o N
Sk

Executive Df==ctor [investmen Prormstlon)
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Thresigh ; Diractor General

Through : Executive Directar (invesument Promoetion)/Executiveunrectar (Specha | Progects)

Frem ; Director (Media & Publicity]

Date ; 21 juby 2017

Subject 1 &0th Anniversary of the Open Economy - Exhibition (27 - 31 July, 2017) BOI Exhibit

Attached herewith is the communication recelved from the Minlstry of Development Strategies & International
Trada [MODSIT] an 18 July 2017, regarding the abave exhibition [Annexure 1),

mtuequ!nliylmutmmhdﬂnn mJuiy,mthrmrd,ﬂﬂr!dmmmnerfmlmﬂmﬂm%
Secretary MODSIT, Director General BO! and other senbor officials of MODSIT and BOE, At the said meeting it was
decided that the BOI is to display an exhibit supporting the theme of “BOF: contribution to 54 Lankan
Dovaloprment” as well as 1o faciiitate 15 BO) companies to dispay stalls and producty for sale,

‘Given the extremaly short deadline it was decided to obfain #ﬁl'mﬁm_ﬁ s Gravitas Il'ltb‘.'gr_Imd Holdings PYT
LTD, an agency the BOI has very satisfactory previows experience with, The hiring of cubicles was asigned to M/
BAW Ventures International BVT LTD 25 they are the selected serviee pravider for marquess and eibices by the
Brganizers of the event. ilustrations of the stall are dttached for your perusal,

Theattached quotations were obtained [Annextire 2,3, mS}!ﬂﬂﬂuﬂrﬁlpmmﬂmﬁfﬂ'ﬂrm&methtu
for international Trade and senior offidals of the BOI. The fegs for design and creative artwark which have been
csentnted due to-gxpected repedive veage mﬁs‘ﬂhﬂﬂ:huhﬂn dﬂﬁhﬁh‘h&ﬂdi‘t mnﬂrgm:ﬁ
informed by Smte Ministér for internationai Trade: ]

L Design work: Rs. 3,275,000/-*
2 Fabricating & installation: Rs. 2, 770.000/-=
i Hiring of aguipment: Res. 1,330,000/

4, Installetion of 3m x Sm cubides Rs,  125,000/-
' *The abowve charges will be subject to NET (25%) anmd VAT [15%)

Thvé total cost estimated for this purpose Indusive of taxes anid levies will be Rs. 5,758,575/~ It ako recommended
to make an allowance of 5% of this projected total (Rs. 437,92875) 25 a m-wummr-m event,

m{ﬂnmﬁimﬂmﬂm app::ml i% muﬁ'ﬁ fnrthn i:ﬂhi-lmz. pendiﬂgmacﬂn:tppruw to be uhhfm-d
at the Board Meeting to be bedd on 28 duly 2017,

L Toutilipe funds frors the year 2017 Promotion buadget to meet the costs related 1o this awent.

b & Tn'iﬂj;nmmhﬂmh!gdﬂmﬂﬂleﬂﬁtltﬂ-ihw mentianed exhibition to /s Gravitas Integrated

Holdings PVT LTD as per guatations indicated as 1 - 3 above,
3. Toassign the installation of cubicles for BO| company stalk to My's MW Vantures intermadonal PVT (TD
i, To pay a mobilratios sdvance of 50% of the quoted value as specified, on 24 July, 2017.

Director (Media & Publicity]
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Chalrman,

Board of Investments 5r Lanka

40" Anniversary of the Open Economy

In commemaoration of 40 years of the Open Economy of S Lanka , the Government has planned to hold
a'series of exhibition to highlight the development of all the sectors of the economy owing to open
economic policy initiatives introduced in 1977.(The letter no PMO/1/of Secretary to the Prime Minister

dated 13.07.2017 s attached)

The first such exhibition is proposad ta be held in Mational Youth Center, Maharagama from 27™-30™
luby 2007. Each Ministry/Department/Board/Corporation/State. Owned Entities to provide a3 stall
showcasing the progress made during the last 40 years.

Accordingly BOI also has to disptay the contribution made for the economy through investment
promotion and to display how BOI has evolved since 1578, This is also an opportunity for BOI
companies, to showcase the general public their International standard export quality products within®

the atlowed limits,

Expenditure assoclated with this event be incurred within the 2017 Budget of B0 with the approval of
the Board and please make necessary arrangements to expeditiously implement this.

A

Chandanie Wijayawardhana,

Sacretary
e eabieaagye e )
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Anfaxurs B

Procurement. Guidelines to be followed for vaiues above ®s. 5 blllian

1 Approval of the Board of Direciors suthorizing allocation of funds hor the 2oty

3, Callfor s sealed quaations from 20) registeced woppiers OR suppliers isted in the rainbow
pRpes.

5 Catations received 2o beeveluated by a Technlcs! Tvaluation Commities,

4. Technica! Evaiuation Committee to recommand most sultable greotationto the Procurement
Committes for £5e determination of the award,

5. Theracommensatics of f1a Procurement Committes 3o ho.a pprved by the Directar Geperal.
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Survey Chirgss

Wedical Examination Fees
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LS 00T 206D Copseltaney Service

Cutzide Verification Charges for Custom Oficers
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Annexure.

Initial &incatien
£ TT2.000
3712000

A5D, LE0
350000
530,000
25,500
450,53
&7, 000
186,500
1,300,400

18,658,000
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Ms. 5. Herth™

Senicr Depuity Dirzcoor (Logal)
Bessrel of Investtent of St Linka
Woeld Trade Cenger - West Tower,
Bchelon Squers
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Audit Report - 2017

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was constituted in accordance with the provisions in the Public Finance Circular
PF/PE3 0f 19.11.1999.

Four Audit Committee meetings were held during the year 2017, of which the first two meetings
comprised of following members;

1. Chairman - Mr. Buddhi Athauda (Member of the Board of Directors of BOI)
2. Member - Mr M. C. Cooray (Member of the Board of Directors of BOI)
3. Member - Mr M. A. Neeth Udesha (Member of the Board of Directors of BOI)

Due to a change in the management in the second half of the year, balance two Audit Committee meetings
consisted of following members;

1. Chairman - Mr. Mangala Yapa (Member of the Board of Directors of BOI)

2. Member - Mr. Sagara Gunawardana (Member of the Board of Directors of BOI)

3. Member - Mr. Hemantha Wickramasinghe (Member of the Board of Directors of BOI)

4. Member - Mr Ajit Gunawardene (Member of the Board of Directors of BOI)

5. Observer - Mr. C.Jayasooriya (Representative of Treasury)

6. Consultant - Mr. Lasantha Wickremasinghe (Voluntary Consultant to the Audit Committee)

Actg. Director (Internal Audit) acted as the Secretary / Convener to the Audit Committee.

Superintendent of Government Audit represented the Auditor General at the Audit Committee meetings

as an observer.

The meetings of the Audit Committee facilitated dialogue among the Internal Auditor, representative of
the Auditor General and the management of BOI on the outcomes of the examinations and evaluation of
internal controls.

Compliance with scope and responsibilities of the Internal Audit was confirmed by the Committee
through continuous coordination with the Internal Auditor and reviewing and approving the
Annual Action Plan.

Audit Committee ensured protecting the independence of the Internal Audit by taking a policy decision
prohibiting the staff of Internal Audit engaging in operational activities of the organization which impairs
its independency.

Audit Committee focused on reviewing risk involved in the processes and the implementation of internal
controls and preventive measures to mitigate the affiliated risk and for process improvements.

The Audit Committee was of the view that terms and references for the Committee were compiled within
all material aspects.

152



Annual Report - 2017

e T e |l

Mr. D R Ratnayaka

Chairman

World Trade Center

Mr. D P Ariyasinghe

Director General

World Trade Center

Executive Directors

Name

Mr. P ] Panapitiya Engineering Approvals & Special Projects | World Trade Center
Ms. R M Weerakone Project Monitoring World Trade Center
Ms. C P Malalgoda Research & Policy Advocacy World Trade Center
Ms. S P DE S Mutucumarana Finance World Trade Center
Mr. S P K Wijayatilake Investment Promotion World Trade Center
Mr. KP V D Fernando Investment Promotion World Trade Center
Mr. A R Karunaratne Security World Trade Center
Mr. R M U Senerath Project Implementation World Trade Center
Mr. M Ramanayake Investor Services World Trade Center
Ms. M S R Peiris (Consultant) Legal World Trade Center

Acting Executive Directors

Name
Mr. M K D Lawrance Zone Management Katunayake EPZ
Mr. A K A Mahinda Technical Services World Trade Center

Name

Mr. D S Samarasinghe Media & Publicity World Trade Center
Mr. H M Jayasundara Zone Management North Western Regional Office
Ms. N De Silva Investment Promotion World Trade Center
Mr. ] P C Jayalath Information Technology World Trade Center
Mr. A K Jayasinghe Zone Management Biyagama EPZ

Mr. N N Kumaratunga Investment Appraisal World Trade Center
Mr. W U K M A Wijayakulathilaka |Investment Appraisal World Trade Center
Ms. H S Urugodawatte Industrial Relations Katunayake EPZ

Mr. G Dahanayake Zone Management Koggala EPZ

Mr. M ] K Mohottala Regional Development Kandy Industrial Park
Ms. A S Beling Environment Management World Trade Center
Mr. T M D Thilakaratna Zone Management Wathupitiwala EPZ
Mr. W A G Jayathilake Investment Appraisal World Trade Center
Mr. AS KT R Sibera Investment Appraisal World Trade Center
Ms. P S P Pilapitiya Engineering Approvals & Special Projects | World Trade Center
Ms. S A D D Suraweera Finance World Trade Center
Mr. A K Rajakaruna Investor Services World Trade Center
Ms. P N Samaraweera Research & Policy Advocacy World Trade Center
Mr. BRIG. D A Amunugama Security World Trade Center

Acting Directors

Name

Mr. H M Keerthiratne Human Resource Management World Trade Center
Ms. D A S Amarakoon Internal Audit World Trade Center
Ms. N N Andrahennadi Industrial Relations World Trade Center
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Directory of BOI Offices

Head Office (WTC Office)

Level 05, 06, 08, 09, 19, 24, 25,26 & 27

West Tower, WTC

Echelon Square, Colombo 01.

Tel : 011 2434403-5, 2435027, 2447531,
2385972-6,2346131-3

Fax :011 2447995, 2329795, 2430512, 2422407

E-mail : info@boi.lk

Katunayake Export Processing Zone

Katunayake.

Tel : 011 2252364-5, 2252140, 2252038,
4833737,4833741, 4833774, 4833779,
4833817, 4833819

Fax :011 2253207

E-mail : kepz@boi.lk

Biyagama Export Processing Zone
Walgama, Malwana.

Tel :0112465206-09

Fax :011 2465227

E-mail : bpz@boi.lk

Horana Export Processing Zone
Boralugoda, Poruwadanda.

Tel : 034 2269296, 2269752, 2258077
Fax :034 2255687,2258029

E-mail : hepz@boi.lk

Mirigama Export Processing Zone
Mahayayawaththa, Loluwagoda, Mirigama.
Tel : 033 2274657,2276626, 2276393
Fax :0332274657,2276393

E-mail : mepz@boi.lk

Wathupitiwala Export Processing Zone
Wathupitiwala.

Tel : 033 2281604, 2281381

Fax :033 2282364

E-mail : wepz@boi.lk

Malwatta Export Processing Park
Thihariya, Nittambuwa.

Tel : 033 2288826, 2296166, 2296620
Fax :033 2288826

E-mail : mepp@boi.lk

Seethawaka Export Processing Zone
Awissawella.

Tel :0362231082

Fax :0362231083

E-mail : sip@boi.lk
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Koggala Export Processing Zone,
Koggala, Habaraduwa.
Tel  :0912283425
Fax  :091 2283370
E-mail : kgepz@boi.lk

Kandy Industrial park

Kengalle, Kandy.

Tel  :0812420019, 2420025, 2423992, 2423994
Fax :0812420091, 2423995

E-mail : kip@boi.lk

North Western Regional Office

Mas Fabric Park, Kurunegala Road, Thulhiriya.
Tel : 037 2277037,2277038

Fax :037 2277036

E-mail : nwro@boi.lk

Polgahawela Export Processing Zone
Kegalle Road, Polgahawela.

Tel  :037 2244657,2241526

Fax :037 2244657

E-mail : pwepz@boi.lk

Mawathagama Export Processing Zone
Dynevor Estate, Kandy Road, Mawathagama.
Tel :037 2298147

Fax :037 2296041

E-mail : mwepz@boi.lk

Central Verification Terminal

Ceylon Shipping Lines Yard

No 70, Avissawella Road, Orugodawatte
Tel : 011 2547485, 4411591, 4978969
Fax :0112547485,2053421

Air Cargo Verification Unit
Bandaranayake International Airport
Katunayake

Tel :0112252155,4833834, 2265183
Fax :0112252155

BOI Special Economic Zone

Prima Factory Road, China Bay, Trincomalee
Tel : 0262233003

Fax :0262233002

Mirijjawila Export Processing Zone
100 Feet Road, Mirijjawila,
Hambanthota.

Tel  :047 2258800

Fax :047 2258800

Jaffna Regional Office

NHDA Building, Chundukulj, Jaffna
Tel :0212221336,2222130
Fax :0212221336



